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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu Bureau of Rail & Transit
and the Honorable Council November 7, 2024

State House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Transportation to amend an agreement with Advance Transit, Inc. (Vendor
166573), Wilder, Vermont, Project 68033A, by increasing the price limitation by $330,200, from
$6,404,000 to $6,734,200, effective upon Governor and Council approval, with no change to the end date
of June 30, 2025. The original agreement was approved by Governor and Council on June 14, 2023, Item
#73. 100% Federal Funds.

Funding for this amendment is available in the Fiscal year 2025 budget:

04-96-96-964010-2916 FY 2025

Public Transportation
072-500575 Grants to Non-Profits-Federal $330,200

EXPLANATION

NHDOT has approved a request to amend funding from Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section
5311 Rural Formula Program (Section 5311) by $330,200 from $6,404,000 to $6,734,200. Advance
Transit, Inc. provides public transit service in the Hanover-Lebanon area utilizing Section 5311 to
support eligible operating, and capital expenses.

The Department's SFY 2025 operating budget includes funds from Section 5311 that provides funds for
capital, planning, and operating assistance for public transportation in rural areas with populations of less
than 50,000.

Advance Transit, Inc. will provide the remaining required non-federal matching funds. In the event that
Federal Funds become unavailable, general funds will not be requested to support this program.

The Amendment has been approved by the Attorney General as to form and execution and the
Department has verified the necessary funds are available in the Fiscal Year 2025 budget.
Copies of the fully executed Agreement are on file at the Secretary of State's Office and the Department
of Administrative Services, and subsequent to Governor and Council approval will be on file at the
Department of Transportation.

JOHN O. MORTON BUILDING • 7 HAZEN DRIVE • P.O. BOX 483 • CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03302-0483
TELEPHONE: (603) 271-3734 • FAX: (603) 271-3914 • TDD: RELAY NH 1-800-735-2964 •WWW.NHDOT.COM



Your approval of this resolution is respectfully requested.

Sincerely,

William J. Cass, P.E.
Commissioner

Attachments



AMENDMENTTO AGKEEMKiNT

"I his Grant Aincnclincnt ("AniciKlnicniJ) is ciUcred into this 1 dav (if October
20^. by and between ihc State of New Hampshire, acting by and through the New Hampshire
Dcpanittent ol Trtmsporiation. 7 Hazen Drive.jCotKord NH 03302-()48.T. (hcreintifter referred to
as •'Slate") and Advance Transit. Inc. (hereinafter referred to as -the Grantee"), collectively
referretl to as ('ihe Parties"). j

WHLKL.AS. the Panics have entered into a Grant Agreement, approved by the Governor and
B.Kccutive Council on June 14. 2023. hem 73. (hereinafter referred to as -the Grant");

WHI-KI-AS. ihe Parties desire to amend the Grant as provided in this Amendment: and

by an insinimem in writing executed b\' bothWHI-RHAS. the Grant allows for amendments
Parties:

NOW 1 1 ll.-.REFORL. in cbrisidcrati«:)n of the Ibregoing. and the covenants aiul conditions
contained in the Grant, and set forth herein, thcj Parlies hereto liu hereby agme as fnilows:

1. .Section 1.8. "Grant Limitation" of the G-1 form is amended to read ($6.7.34.201))

-■ Amended.L.xhibii C. Budeet. (3.1 be^ amended to include an atldiiional .$330,200
ol hetleral !• IA 5j 1 1 Rural Area hormula Prognun funds, for a re\ ised contract
price of 56.734.200:

a. Table below
I

(

3, This Amendment hereunder shall become effective upon approval by ilie New
Hampshire Governor and Executive Council.

i
4. Except as specillcally amended and modiHed by the terms tind conditions of this

.Amendment, the Grunt, and the obligations of the Parties hereunder. shall remain in full
lorce and effect with the lenns and conditions set forth herein.



EXmBIT c

BUDGET (REVISED)

Program Funding
i

SFjV 2024 SFY 2025 Amendment
Revised

Total

FTA Section 5311

Administration $917,000 $917,000 $0 $1,834,000

Capital Preventive Maintenance $650,000 $650,000 $0 $1,300,000

Capital ADA $325,000 $325,000 $0 $650,000

Operating $1,310,000 $1,310,000 $320,200 $2,940,200

Rural Transit Assistance Program (RTAP)
- eligible training & technical assistance

$0 $0 $10,000 $10,000

Total FTA Section 5311 Funds $3,202,000 $3,202,000 $330,200 $6,734,200
1

Amended Total Grant Funding !  $6,734,200
b. Funds are conlingeni upon Federal appropriations.



IN W'iTNIiSS Wi il:Kr.Oi-. ihc P:irue.s hereto luivc set their hanci.s to the date firsi-vvriiten

above. I

Ad^'llllcc'rnnisil. Inc.

Prim Nferfie and Title

Nil Department of Transnortathm

i;)aic;

i Vh>Wnmc and Title

it

MrcheMErWinters—15^. ^ '•"'•'iv-s, Rail Sl Trao

Annrovyd hv Altorncv Gcncnil

I'lint Name and Title ^'Zc^vL
Dale;

ncy

Approved hv Governor and Council

G &C item number: 0 &C Meeting Date:



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIPICATI!

f, DiHiiii |\l Sniiihin. S<*i:rrtnr)' ofSiutr nf iho Si:il<; fif New Hampshire, lio herehy ecnify ihiil ADVANt.T. TRANS IT. INl". is

a ."^ew I ladipshitc Nonprofit Corponiiion tctjisicrai to iran.snct business in .New I laiitpshirc on ]aniiar>' 12. I OiN I furihci certify

that all fees and documents required by iJic Secretary of Sltiie's office have been icceivcd and i.s in good standing as lai as this

ofliec is eoiK'cmed.

liiistnes.s ID: S268X

Ceniticaic Number: 0006655S5.t

ai Ofi

3?
la.

s
o

r»o

IN ri-STIMONY WHHRKOF.

I hereto .wl niy hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Kuiiipsliire.

this 2nd day of April A.D. 202-1.

r^ciL-
David M. Sconjan

Scereinrx- ofStatc
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ADVANCE TRANSIT

P.O. Box 1027. Wilder. VTOSOdd • 802-295-1824 • advancetransif.com

Certificate of Authority

I, Matt Osborn, hereby certify that I am Che duly elected Secretary of Advance Transit,

Incorporated. I hereby certify that the following is a true copy of the current Bylaws of the

Corporation and that the Bylaws authorize the Executive Director to bind Che Corporation for

contractual obligations.

I further certify that Adams Carroll currently holds the position of Executive Director

and is thereby authorized to bind the Corporation for contractual obligations.

I further certify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this

certificate as evidence that the person listed above currently occupies the position indicated and
I

that they have the full authority to bind the corporation. This authority shall remain valid for

thirty (30) days from the date of this certificate.

DATED: ATTEST:

(Name & Title) ^



BYLAWS OF

ADVANCE TRANSIT. INC.

Adopted June 19, 2015
t

Revised June 21, 2018

Revised May 16, 2019

ARTICLE I

Name. Purpose and Offices

Section 1. Name and Type. The name of this corporation shall be Advance
Transit, Incorporated, and may hereinafter|be referred to as the Corporation, "AT" or
"Advance Transit". The principal office of the Corporation shall be in Wilder, Vermont, or
such other location as the Board of Directors may determine from time to time. The
Corporation's business shall be conducted in New Hampshire and Vermont.

Section 2. Form and Purpose. The form of the corporation shall be a voluntary,
not-for-profit corporation, incorporated under the laws of the State of New Hampshire
(R.S.A. 292), and registered to do business in the State of Vermont. The purpose of the
Corporation shall be to provide a comprehensive transportation network for the several
towns of the Upper Valley of New Hampshire and Vermont.

Section 3. Limitations. The Corporation is organized and shall be operated
exclusively for charitable, religious, educational, or scientific purposes, including for such
purposes, the making of distributions to organizations under Section 501 (c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1954 (or the corrjesponding provisions of any future Internal
Revenue law). No part of the net earnings of the Corporation shall be to the benefit of or
be distributed to its Directors, officers, or other private persons, except that the
Corporation shall be authorized and empowered to pay reasonable compensation for
services rendered and to make payments and distributions in furtherance of the purposes
set forth above. No substantial part of the activities of the Corporation shall be for the
carrying out of propaganda or othenwise attempting to influence legislation, and AT shall
not participate in, or intervene in (including the publishing or distribution of statements),
any political campaign on behalf of any candidate for public office.



ARTI ;le

Members

Membership in the Corporation having been abolished effective July 1, 2015, the
Corporation shall have no Members. !

ARTICLE

Board of Directors

Section 1. General Powers. All corporate powers of the Corporation shall be
exercised by or under the authority of, and th^ affairs of the Corporation shall be managed
under the direction of, the Board of Directors.

Number. Tenure. Qualification, and Manner of Election ofSection 2.

Directors.

A. The number of Directors (members of the Board) shall be not more than
nineteen (19) nor less than nine (9), chosen jas provided in III.2.B., C., and F. The Board
shall have at least five (5) voting members who are not of the same immediate family or
related by blood or marriage.

B. Up to nine (9) "Municipal" Directors shall be elected by the Directors upon
nomination of the Executive Committee. Municipal Directors shall be recommended for
nomination by those Municipalities providing^ funding to, and served by, the Corporation.

C. For each Municipal Director serving at any time, the Board shall have one (1)
At-Large Director, elected by the Board upon nomination by the Executive Committee
with due regard for assembling on the Board a diversity of talents and backgrounds.

D. Unless otherwise determined by the Board, a Director shall serve for the longer
of: a) three (3) years, or b) until the election and qualification of his or her successor.

E. A Director shall be eligible to serve no more than three (3) consecutive three-
year terms (a partial term shall not be counted for purposes of this provision). A Director



who has served three consecutive 3-year| terms shall be eligible for re-election after
having been off the Board for at least one (1) year. The Board terms shall be staggered
as much as possible so that approximately one-third (1/3) of the directors shall be elected
annually. This rule shall take effect from and after the effective date of these Bylaws. No
term of a Director that commenced prior to' the effective date of these Bylaws shall be
counted against the 3-term limit for that Director.

F. In addition to Municipal and At-Large Directors, the Executive Director of AT
shall serve as a Director Ex Officio, but shall not be entitled to vote.

Section 3. Annual Meeting. The Annual Meeting of the Board shall be held in June
or on such a date and at such a time and plate as the Board of Directors shall determine.
The business of the annual meeting may include, but not be limited to, the election of
Directors, the election of officers, and the presentation of reports.

Section 4. Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board shall be held at
least two (2) times a year, in addition to the annual meeting, at a place and time to be
decided upon by the Board during the Annual meeting. The Board may provide, by
resolution, for a different time and place for regular meetings without further notice than
by such resolution. Attendance at regular board meetings is imperative to conduct
business related to the oversight of the Coriporation. Any Director who misses two (2)
regularly scheduled board meetings including annual meeting, over the course of one (1)
year may be subject to removal following the process outlined in Section 11. Removal of
Director. By prior arrangement with the President, a Director may participate in a regular
meeting by telephone or other electronic means allowing all participants to hear each
other.

Section 5. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board iviay be called by or
at the request of the President or any two (2) Directors, and shall be held at such place
and time as the President or Directors may determine. The person or persons calling a
Special Meeting may call for the meeting
arrangement with the President, a Director
meeting that is to be conducted in person,
person or persons calling the meeting.

to be conducted by telephone. By prior
may participate by telephone in a special
provided the Director so arranges with the

Section 6. Notice. Notice of any meieting, regular or special, of the Board shall
be given at least two (2) days previously thereto by telephone, email, or delivered
personally to each director at his or her address as shown by the records of the
Corporation. |

Section 7. Quorum. A majority of the then-sitting Directors entitled to vote shall
constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of the Board, but if
less than a majority of the Directors is present at any meeting, a majority of the directors
present may adjourn the meeting without further notice



Section 8. Board Decisions. The act of a majority of the Directors present at a
meeting at which a quorum is present shalllbe the act of the Board, unless the act of a
greater number is required by law or by these Bylaws.

Section 9. Action Without a Meeting. Any action required or permitted to be taken
by the Board at a meeting may be taken [^vithout a meeting if the action is taken by
unanimous consent of all Directors evidenced by one or more written consents describing
the action taken, signed by each Director, and included with the minutes or filed with the
records of the Corporation. Action taken by| consents is effective when the last Director
signs the consent, unless the consent specifies a different effective date. A signed
consent has the effect of a meeting vote andjmay be described as such in any document.
Consents may be transmitted electronically by email or other means, provided they bear
sufficient evidence of the Director's signature.

Section 10. Proxies. At any regular; annual or special meeting of the Board, a
Director entitled to vote may vote by telephone, or by proxy executed in writing, including
email, by that director. The proxy must be limited to a specific issue, not general, and
must be signed and delivered to the Secretary one (1) day before the meeting. The proxy
shall not count toward a quorum. '

Section 11. Removal of Director. Any Director may be removed from the Board
by an affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of all of its members entitled to vote. Such action
may be taken at any regular meeting or any special meeting at which due notice of the
proposed removal shall have been given to
of the notice of the meeting.

he Board members together with or as part

Such removal may be accomplished with or without cause, but the Director
involved shall be given an opportunity to be present and to be heard at the meeting at
which his or her removal is considered.

The removal of a Director may be initiated at a regular meeting of the Board
members by a motion made at the meeting) at a special meeting, or by petition signed
and submitted to the Secretary by not less than twenty-five percent (25%) of the voting
Directors. More than one Director may be considered for removal under a single motion
or by a single petition for removal, but vote on the motion of petition for removal shall be
separate as to each Director.

Section 12. Vacancies and New Directorships. The Board may elect Directors
to fill any vacancies on the Board, by majority vote of the Directors present and voting at
a duly called meeting of the Board at which a quorum is present. The Board shall set a
term of office for each Director at the time

exceed three (3) years.
of his/her election, which may in no event

Section 13. Compensation. No member of the Board (with the exception of the
Ex Officio member) shall receive a salary or other compensation for his/her services



except for allowable expenses incurred in connection with official duties of a Director as
defined in Board policy, j

Section 14. Responsibilities. Each Director is expected to support the
Corporation as follows: !

I

1. be fully acquainted with AT's purpose, objectives, programs, and
finances:

2. comply with all AT policies including the AT conflict of interest
policy;

3. serve on at least one (1

4. fulfill those additional c

Bylaws.

) standing committee; and

uties and requirements as set out in these

ARTICLE IV

Officers

Section 1. Officers. The Officers of the Board shall be a President, Vice
President, a Secretary, a Treasurer, Assistant Secretary, and such other Officers as may
be elected or appointed by the Board, all of whorti shall be Directors at all times they
serve as officers except for the Assistant Secretary who may be the Executive Director.

Section 2. Election and Term of Office. The Officers of the Board are nominated

by the Executive Committee and elected by an affirmative vote of a majority of members
of the Board entitled to vote, and shall hold office for the longer of two (2) years or until
their successors are elected or appointed and qualified. An officer may succeed
himself/herself in the same office for two (2) additional terms. After being out of that office
for at least one (1) term, a person may again be elected to that office. The same person
may simultaneously occupy more than one office except for the President, who shall not
hold either the office of Treasurer or Secretary.

Section 3. Removal. Any Officer e
removed by the Board by affirmative vote of
vote whenever in its judgment the best interests of AT would be served thereby.

ected or appointed by the Board may be
two-thirds (2/3) of all of Directors entitled to

The

Officer involved shall be given an opportunity to be present and heard at the meeting at
which his or her removal is considered.



Section 4. Vacancies. A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation,
removal, disqualification, or otherwise may bje filled by the Board for the unexpired portion
of the term.

Section 5. Powers and Duties.

A. President. The President of the Board shall be the Corporation's principal
executive officer and shall have the following specific powers and duties:

1. To preside at all meetings of the Board and the Executive committees.

2. To appoint all committee chairs, except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws.

3. To see that all orders and resolutions of the Board are carried into effect.

4. To meet regularly with the Executive Director

5. From time to time to report to the Bpard of Directors all matters within his or her
knowledge that in the best interest of AT should be brought to their attention.

6. In addition to the foregoing, the President shall have such other powers, duties
and authority as may be set forth elsewhere in these Bylaws or as may be prescribed by
the Board from time to time.

B. Vice President. The Board Vice President shall exercise the powers and
perform the functions that from time to tirjne are assigned by the President or the
Board. The Vice President shall have the powers and shall exercise the duties of the
President assigned to him or her by the Board whenever the President, by reason of
illness or other disability or absence, is unable to act, and at other times when specifically
directed by the President or the Board.

C. Secretary. The Board Secretary shall be the custodian of and shall maintain
the AT books and records and shall be the recorder of all AT formal actions and

transactions. The Secretary shall have the following specific powers and duties:

1. To record or supervise the proper recording of the minutes and transactions of
all meetings of the Directors, and to maintain [separate books at the principal office of AT,
or such other place as the Board may order of all such meetings in the form and manner
required by law.

2. To keep at the principal office, open
times, the original or a certified copy of the
otherwise altered.

to inspection by Directors at all reasonable
Bylaws of the Corporation as amended or

4. To attend to the giving and serving of all notices of the Corporation required by
law or these Bylaws.



5. To attend to such correspondence and make such reports as may be assigned
to him/her.

6. In addition to the foregoing, the Secretary shall have such other powers, duties,
and authority as may be set forth elsewhere in these Bylaws and as may be prescribed
from time to time by the President or the Board.

D. Assistant Secretary. The Assis

other Officers as requested.
ant Secretary shall assist the Secretary and

E. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall oversee the financial affairs of the corporation,
and shall perform all other duties incidental to the office or assigned by the Chair, by these
Bylaws or by Board resolution. The Treasurer will serve as the Chair of the Finance
Committee, and have the following specific powers and duties:

1. To keep and maintain, open to inspection by the President and any Director, at
all reasonable times, adequate and correct accounts of the properties and business
transactions of AT, which shall include all m'atters required by law and which shall be in
form as required by law.

2. To ensure that the Corporation adopts, implements, and follows appropriate
financial controls.

3. To render to the President and Secretary or to the Board whenever they may
require it, an account of all transactions as Treasurer and a financial statement in form
satisfactory to them, showing the condition of AT.

4. Working with AT staff, to prepare and present to the Board an annual budget.

5. In addition to the foregoing, the Treasurer shall have such other powers, duties
and authority as may be set forth elsewhere in these Bylaws, and as may be prescribed
from time to time by the President or the Board.

ARTICLE V

Executive birector

Section 1. The Board shall appoint an Executive Director (ED) who shall be
responsible for the day-to-day operation of the corporation. The ED shall be an ex-officio
member without vote of the Board and all Board committees and shall act as the duly



authorized representative of the Board in all matters except those which the Board has
formally designated some other person or grjDup to act. The duties of the ED shall include,
but not be limited to,Those outlined in the current ED job description.

ARTICLE VI

Committees and Policies

Section 1. Committees. The Board shall have the following Standing
Committees. In addition, the Board, at its discretion, may constitute and appoint additional
committees for such purpose and duration as the Board shall determine. Except for the
Executive Committee, Committees may h'ave, in addition to a majority of Director
members, such other members as the Board shall designate, who shall serve for such
terms as the Board shall specify. All comm|ittees shall have a Board member as chair.
Committee members shall be appointed by
Board President.

he committee chair in collaboration with the

A. Executive Committee. The President, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer,
the Chairs of Standing Commjttees, immediate past President, and Executive Director
shall constitute an Executive Committee, which shall be authorized to exercise the powers
of the full Board between regular meetings of the Board when it is impractical, in the view
of the President (or in the absence or unavailability of the President, a Vice-President), to
call a special meeting of the Board. The immediate past President and Executive Director
positions on the Executive Committee shall be non-voting. Any action taken by the
Executive Committee shall be presented to thie Board at its next regular or special meeting
and shall be included in the minutes or other records of Board actions. The Executive

Committee shall also function as the Board pompensation Committee and Governance
Committee, with responsibility, for nominating board members and board officers, for
maintaining the Corporate Bylaws and for evaluating and setting the compensation and
benefits for the Executive Director.

B. Finance Committee. The Finance Committee, working with AT's staff, is
responsible for development of AT's budget, and monitoring and adjustment of the budget
during each year and from year to year. The Finance Committee interviews prospective
audit firms and makes recommendations to the Board.j

C. Personnel Committee. The Personnel Committee is responsible for policies
and procedures related to employees, employee benefits and staff levels. The Committee
makes recommendations to the Board. I



D. Program Planning and Evaluat on Committee. The Program Planning and
Evaluation Committee establishes the strategic direction of the organization including the
drafting and adoption of Advance Transit's |Five-Year Transit Development Plan and its
associated service designs. The Committee makes recommendations to the Board.

E. Public Relations and Marketing Committee. The Public Relations and

Marketing Committee assists AT in meeting its goals and priorities through effective
strategic communication, marketing and phi
recommendations to the Board.

anthropic initiatives. The Committee makes

Section 2. Policies. The Board, irji its discretion, may implement and adopt
policies to further define the goals and operations of the Corporation including policies
related to charitable giving, financial management, conflicts of interest, employee conduct
and other policies related to matters pertinent to AT. Policies may be implemented,
revoked or amended by the Board' at any time in its sole discretion.

ARTICLE VII

Certificates of Shares

The Corporation has no shares and shall not issue share certificates

ARTIC

Contracts. Checks. Deposi

-E VIII

s. Gifts and Expenditures

Section 1. Contracts. The Board may authorize any officer or officers, agent or
agents of the Corporation, in addition to the officers so authorized by these Bylaws, to

any instrument in the name of and on behalf
may be confined to specific instances.

All checks, drafts or orders for the payment
of money, notes or other evidence of indebtedness issued in the name of AT shall be
signed by such officer or officers, agent or agents of AT and in such manner as shall from
time to time be determined by resolution' of the Board. In the absence of such

enter into any contract or execute and deliver
of AT, and such authority may be general or

Section 2. Checks. Drafts or Orders.



determination by the Board, such instruments shall be signed by the Executive Director
and countersigned by the President of the Board or Treasurer.

Section 3. Deposits. All AT funds shall be deposited from time to time to the credit
of AT, in such banks, trust companies, or other depositories as the Board may select.

Section 4. Gifts. The Board may accept on behalf of AT any contribution, gift,
bequest, or devise.

Section 5. Approval of Expenditures. Any proposed expenditure of $100,000 or more,
not included in the approved capital and/or operating budget, requires an affirmative vote
of two-thirds (2/3) of the members of the Board entitled to vote, the notice of which has
specified the details regarding,the proposed expenditure.

ARTICLE IX

Books and Records

I

AT shall keep: (i) correct and complete books and records of accounts: (ii) minutes
of the proceedings of its Board and committees; and (iii) at its principal office, a record
giving the names and addresses of the Directors entitled to vote. All books and records
of AT are open to inspection by a Director or his/her agent or attomey upon reasonable
written request to the Executive Director or Board President.

ARTICLE X

Fiscal Year

The fiscal year of AT shall be from July 1 through June 30.



ARTICLE XI

Amendment of Bylaws

These Bylaws may be altered, amended or repealed, and new Bylaws may be
adopted by: (1) a majority of the directors of|the Board present at any regular meeting or
at a special meeting, if at least seven (7) days' written notice is given to all directors of
intention to alter, repeal, or adopt new Bylavys at such meeting, or (2) an affirmative vote
at any regular meeting of two-thirds (2/3) of all of the directors of all of the Board entitled
to vote.

ARTICLE XII

Conflicts of Interest and Pecuniary Benefit Transactions

The Directors, officers, members of standing and ad hoc committees and
employees of AT have a responsibility to ayoid conflicts of interest and the appearance
of such conflicts, and to transact the affairs of AT honestly and economically in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations and in a manner which promotes the
best interests of AT. The Board has adopted
appended to these Bylaws as Attachment A.

a written conflicts of interest policy, which is

ARTICLE XIII

Waiver o Notice

Whenever any notice is required to be given under the provisions of Chapter 292
of the New Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated or these Bylaws, a waiver thereof, in
writing, signed by the person or persons entitled to such notice, whether before or after
the time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice.



ARTIC

Disso ution

-E XIV

Upon the dissolution of the Corporation, the Board shall, after paying or making
provision for the payment of all of the liabilities of the Corporation, dispose of all the assets
of the Corporation exclusively for the purposes of AT, in such manner or to such
organization or organizations organized
education, religious or scientific purposes

and operated exclusively for charitable,
as shall at the time qualify as an exempt

organization or organizations under 501 (c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954 (or
the corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue Law). Any such
assets not so disposed of shall be disposed of by the Superior Court of the county in
which the principal office of AT; is then located, exclusively for such purposes or to such
organization or organizations as said court; shall determine, which are organized and
operated exclusively for such purposes.

ARTICLE XV

Indemnification of Officers and Directors

Each officer, Director of the Corporation and member of a Board standing or ad
hoc committee now or hereafter serving as such shall be indemnified by the Corporation
against any and all claims and liabilities to which he or she has or shall become, by reason
of serving or having served as such officer, Director or committee member, or by reason
of any action alleged to have been taken, omitted, or neglected by him or her as such
officer, Director or committee member; and the Corporation shall reimburse each such
person for all legal expenses reasonably incurred by him or her In connection with any
such claim or liability; provided, however, that no such person shall be indemnified
against, or be reimbursed for, any expense incurred in connection with any claim or
liability arising out of his or her!own willful misconduct or gross negligence. The amount
paid or reimbursed to any officer. Director or committee member by way of indemnification
shall not exceed his or her actual, reasonable, and necessary expenses incurred in
connection with the matter involved. The right of indemnification hereinabove provided
for shall not be exclusive of any rights to which any officer. Director of the Corporation or
committee member may othervvise be entitled by law.



ATTACHMENT A

Policy on Conflict of Interest and Pecuniary Benefit Transactions

Conflict of interest and Pecuniary Benefi Transactions.

A. General. It shall be against the policy of the Corporation to have conflicts of
interest \with its directors, officers, members of standing or ad hoc committees, staff or
members of their immediate families. A conflict of interest exists when there is a potential
that an individual may obtain a direct or indiiject pecuniary benefit, or any other improper
gain or advantage, as a result,of activities conducted on behalf of AT, or when actions
advance a person's interests of those of another rather than the interests of AT, or when
actions are adverse to the best interest of A"

There exists between Advance Transit and its Board, officers, members of
I  'standing and ad hoc committees, and maijiagement employees a fiduciary duty. The

Board, officers, committee members, and management employees have the
responsibility of administering the affairs of /^dvance Transit honestly and prudently, and
of exercising their best care, skill, and judgment for the sole benefit of Advance Transit.
Those persons shall exercise the utmost good faith in all transactions involved in their
duties, and they shall not use their positions with Advance Transit or knowledge gained

The interests of the organization must havefrom their position for their personal benefit,
the first priority in all decisions and actions.

B. Annual Questionnaire. Each Director, Board committee member, the
Executive Director, and all employees of AT designated by the President, shall annually
complete a questionnaire to provide information on their related entities and persons and
business activities and those of their immediate families as defined by statute, and such
questionnaire shall be reviewed by the President and Secretary and kept on file at the
office of the Corporation.

C. Pecuniary Benefit Transactions. In the event of a pecuniary benefit
transaction as defined by New Hampshire law in RSA 7;19-a, it shall be the policy of the
corporation to follow the statute. In the event the corporation or any director becomes
aware of any potential pecuniary benefit transaction as defined by law, the corporation
shall follow the procedures prescribed by law^ and give notice of the transaction to the full
board with notice of its next meeting. At the meeting, the board shall vote on whether the
pecuniary benefit transaction is in the best interest of the corporation, after full explanation
thereof and without the director being present and without any director who has had a
pecuniary benefit transaction within the fiscal year being present. If two-thirds of the
entire board shall vote that the pecuniary berjiefit transaction is in the best interest of the
corporation, the transaction shall be allowed. Notice of any such pecuniary benefit
transaction the value of which is $5000 or more shall be published according to
statute. Notice of all pecuniary benefit transactions shall be given to the Director of



Charitable Trusts of the State of New Hampshire annually, and individually for those
transactions exceeding $5000. '

D. Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest.

1. Individuals covered by this policy have a duty to voluntarily disclose any potential
conflict of interest prior to assuming their jresponsibilities or at the time the potential
conflict arises. Further, those individuals have a duty to annually disclose potential or
actual conflicts to the Board. Immediate fanjiily members are also included for disclosure
purposes. Immediate family members are defined as; spouse, child, parent, sibling, and
any person living in the same household as' persons with responsibilities to transact the
affairs of AT. Any possible conflict of interejst on the part of any director, officer, Board
committee member, employee or selected volunteer of AT shall be disclosed in writing to
the Board and made a matter of record through the annual procedure set out in the
conflicts of interest policy and also when the interest involves a specific issue or
transaction before the Board.

2. The Board will comply with all the requirements of New Hampshire law with
respect to conflicts of interest, including but not limited to:

(i) the requirement of a two-thirds (2/3) vote of disinterested directors when
the financial benefit to the director or officer is $500 or more in a fiscal year,

(ii) the advance notice requirements when the benefit exceeds $5,000 in a
fiscal year,

(iii) the limitations on participation by the affected director, officer. Board
committee member, employee or selected volunteer of AT in the decision of
the Board,

and

(iv) the requirement to create a record of the action in the minutes.

D. Role of the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee shall review

the conflicts of interest policy at least annually and oversee the Conflict of Interest
disclosure process assuring that individuals covered by this policy are informed of its
disclosure requirements consistent with applicable laws. The Executive Committee shall
annually conduct a comprehensive survey of the individuals covered by this policy and
analyze other relevant information which may provide information that a potential or actual
conflict of interest exists. The Executive Committee will then report the results of this
process to the Board.



yXCOKO CERTIFICATE OF LI/
,BILITY INSURANCE

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEG'ATIVELY AMEND,I EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. |
IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(le$) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms.and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER '

HIckok & Boardman Insurance Group
346 Shelburne Rd
Burlington, VT 05401

[c^n^act Melissa Kavanagh

iwc.'No.Ext): (802) 383-1621 wc.no1:(802) 658-0541
mkavanagh(a>acrisure.com

1  INSURERIS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC«

1 INSURER A Continental Western Insurance 10804

INSURED

Advance Transit, Inc.
PO Box 1027

Wilder, VT 05088

1 INSURERS Acadia Insurance ComDanv 31325

! INSURER C
'INSURER 0

[insurer E

[insurer F

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHST/LNDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
ITR TYPE OF INSURANCE

AOOL SUBR '  POLICY NUMBER LIMITS

A X COMMERCIAL GE NERAL LULBILrTY

)E 1 X 1 OCCUR X CPA 5153286-20 7/1/2024 7/1/2025

EACH OCCURRENCE
j  1,000,000

CLAIMS-MAC
DAMAGE TO RENTED j  300,000

MEO EXP lAnv one oerson)
j  10,000

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY
J  1,000,000

GENX AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE
,  2,000,000

POLICY 1 X 1 I X 1 LOC
OTHER:

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGO
J  2,000,000

s

3 AUTOMOBILE LIASILITY

CAA 5474531 -13 7/1/2024 7/1/2025

COilBlNEO SINGLE LIMIT ,  5,000,000

1

JL ANY AUTO

:heduleo
ITOS

,

BODILY INJURY (Per oerton) s

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

HIR^
AUTOS ONLY

SC
AC BODILY INJURY (Per ecridenll s

NC
aC

PROPERTY D/LMAGE
(Per aeddenti $

s

B;X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

X occur

claims-made!
i

1

CUA 5474532 -13 7/1/2024 7/1/2025

EACH OCCURRENCE
J  4,000,000

AGGREGATE
^  4,000,000

DEO 1 1 RETENTION $ s

A WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS'LIABILITY Y/N '
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECOTIVE rm i
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N j
(M»»»ditoryln NH) ' '!
II yes. describ* und«r
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS bMnw 1

N/A

WCA 5153288-20 7/1/2024 7/1/2025

V PER OTH-
^  .STATUTE ER

E-L. EACH ACCIDENT
^  1,000.000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE
J  1,000,000

F I r)ISFA.SE - POLICY LIMIT
,  1.000,000

1

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORD 101, AddlUon«l R«<n«Hi« SchMluK
Additional Insured status applies for The New Hampshire Department of Transpo
form CO 2010 04/13.

[ mcv b* attachtd if mon tpaca l» r«qulr*d)
'ilation on the General Llablll^ policy per terms and conditions of attached

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

New Hampshire Department of Transportation
Bureau of Rail and Transit

PO Box 483

Concord, NH 03302

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25(2016/03) I  ©1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



POLICY NUMBER: GLR 0574256 06 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CG 2010 04 13

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED ̂  OWNERS, LESSEES OR
CONTRACTORS - SCHEDULED PERSON OR

ORGANIZATION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under he following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Name Of Additional Insured Person(s)
Or Orqanization(s)

i

Location(s) Of Covered Operations

ON FILE WITH THE COMPANY

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not; shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. Section II — Who Is An Insured is amended to
include as an additional insured the person(s)
or organi2ation(s) shown in the Schedule, but
or^ly with respect to liability for "bodily injury",
"property damage" or "personal-and adver
tising injury" caused, in whole or in part, by:

1. Your acts or omissions: or

2. The acts or omissions of those acting on
your behalf;

in the performance of your ongoing operations
for the additional insured(s) at the location(s)
designated above.

However:

1. The Insurance afforded to such additional

insured only applies to the extent permitted
by law; and

2. If coverage provided to the additional in
sured is required by a contract or agree
ment, the insurance afforded to such addi
tional insured will not be broader than that
which you are required by the contract or
agreement to provide for such additional
insured.

B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these
additional insureds, the following additional
exclusions apply;

This insurance does not apply to "bodily injury"
or "property damage" occurring after:

1. All work, including materials, parts or
equipment furnished in connection with
such work, on the project (other than
service, maintenance or repairs) to be
performed by or on behalf of the additional
insured(s) at the location of the covered
operations has been completed; or

2. That portion of "your work" out of which
the injury or damage arises has been put to
its intended use by any person or organiza
tion other than another contractor or sub
contractor engaged in performing opera
tions for a principal as a part of the same
project.

CG 20 10 04 13 © Insurance Services Office. Inc., 2012 Page 1 of 2



C. with respect to the insurance afforded to these
additional insureds, the following, is added to
Section Ml - Limits Of Insurance:

If coverage provided to the additional insured is
required by a contract or agreement, the most
we will pay on behalf of the additional insured
is the amount of Insurance:

1. Required by the contract or agreement: or

2: Available under the applicable Limits of
Insurance shown in the Declarations;

whichever is less.

This endorsement shall not increase the appli
cable Limits of Insurance shown in the Declara
tions.

Page 2 of 2 © Insurance Services Office. Inc., 2012 CG 2010 0413



POLICY NUMBER: GLR 0574256 06 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

C6 20 10 04 13

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED OWNERS, LESSEES OR
CONTRACTORS - SCHEDULED PERSON OR

ORGANIZATION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Name Of Additional Insured Person(s) j
Or Orqanlzatlonfs) 1 Localion(s) Of Covered Operations

ON FILE WITH THE COMPANY

Information required to complete this Schedule, if no| shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. Section II - Who Is An Insured is amended to

include as an additional insured the person(s)
or org3nization{$) shown in the Schedule, but
only with respect to liability for 'bodily injury",
"property damage" or "personal and adver
tising injury" caused, in whole or in part, by;

1. Your acts or omissions: or

2. The acts or omissions of'those acting on
your behalf;

in the performance of your ongoing operations
for the additional insured(s) at the location(s)
designated above.

However:

1. The insurance afforded to such additional
insured only applies to the extent permitted
by law; and

2. If coverage provided to the additional In
sured is required by a contract or agree
ment, the insurance afforded to such addi
tional insured will not be broader than that
which you are required by, the contract or
agreement to provide for , such additional
insured.

B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these
additional insureds. the following additional
exclusions apply:

This insurance does not apply to "bodily injury"
or "property damage" occurring after:

1. All work, including
equipment furnished
such work, on the
service, maintenance

materials, parts or
in connection with
project (other than
or repairs) to be

2.

CO 20 10 04 13

performed by or on behalf of the additional
insured(s) at the location of the covered
operations has been completed; or

That portion of "your work" out of which
the injury or damage arises has been put to
its intended use by any person or organiza
tion other than another contractor or sub
contractor engaged in performing opera
tions for a principal as a part of the same
project.

O Insurance Services Office. Inc.. 2012 Page 1 of 2



Certificntions and Assurances Fiscal Year 2024

FILDER/VL FISCAL YEAR 2024 CERTIFjlCATlONS AND ASSURyVNCES FOR R A
ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS

(Signature pages alternate to providing Ccrtincutions and Assurances in TrAMS.)

Name of Applicant: T^/)/V^/7 //V^.
i

The Applicant certifies to the applicable provisions of all categories: (check here)

I

Or.

The Applicant certifies to the applicable provisions of the categories it has selected:

Cntegoi*)' I Ccrtificalion

01 Certifications and Assurances Required of Evcr>' Applicant

02 Public Transportation Agency Safety Plans

03 Tax Liability and Felony Convictions

04 Lobbying

05 Private Sector Protections

Ob Transit Asset Management Plan

07 Rolling Stock Buy America Reviews and Bus Testing

OS Urbanized Area Formula Grants Program

09 Formula Grants for Rural Areas

10 Fixed Guideway Capital Investment Grants and the Expedited
Project Delivery for Cnpitnl Investment Grants Pilot Program

1 1 Grants for Buses and Bus Facilities and iLow or No Emission
Vehicle Deployment Grant Programs



CertiHcauons nnil Assurances Fiscal Year 202^1

In signing (his docunicni I declare under ;>cualiics of pojut)- tha( (he furegoing Ccnificaiions and /Usiininccs. and
Biiy odiet sia(ementa nu^ by r^irtThchalf uf iIk Applicani itre due untl iM;cur4(e.

Sigtiaiure.

Naii»e_ APA-I^S . CW^U-

l)4ie;

. Authorized Represenuitlve of Appticani



FFY 2024 MASTER AGREEMENT

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT

The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Federal Fiscal Year 2024 Master Agreement
requires recipients and siibrecipients to comply with the requirements contained in the
agreement in order to receive Federal fiinds-jThe language contained in the Master
Agreement must be incorporated into the administration of the agreement my agency has
with the New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT).

I acknowledge receipt of the FFY 2024 Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Master
Agreement and understand this agreement is referred to in my agency's agreement with
NHDOT by reference. The Master Agreement remains in force for the tenn of the
agreement.

J/VC.

Name of Agency

Name of Authorized Official

Date

Signature



FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreemenl
n«|i»Hiiii'iii TtmimpmnmtUm

Revised 07/11/2024

h'I'A ami 2 200 Aurvyiuciil

!\'aiiie ofAwarding Ai;encv: Federal Transit Adminislralion (FTA)
!

A'V//Mt' of Recipient Agency: AVu- Hampshire Department of Transportation (SHDO'T)
Name of Siihrecipient Apency: At/vance Transit. Inc.

Advance Transit, Inc.. shall comply wiih all applicable federal laws, rcgiilaiion.s. and
requirements as outlined in the most recent l-edeail Transit Adminisiratitjn (I"TA) Master
Agreement and I'edera) Cerlifieaiions and Assurances. This award includes inl'onnaiion required
by2CFkPari 200 as follows:

FTA award nrolcct description: (As reqnired\to he re.sponsive to the Federal Funding
AccountuhiUty and Trattsparency Act (FFA T.'X)

Amount: $330,200

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number: 20.509
ITA Award Name: FFA SECTION 5311 (RURAL) PUBLIC TR^VN.SrORTATION

PROJECT SOLICITATION |
Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN): iNll-2021-017

Federal Award Date: 9/8/22

Contact information for .sub-awarding official:

Name: Fred J. Butler Title: Public Transportation .Admini.siraior
limail; Frcdcrick.J.Uutlcr@dot.nh.gov Phone: (>05-271-2565
Is this award for research and development? No
NMDOT's cost rtiie for the iederal award: N/.A

■Suhrccinient Informution:
Subrecipient Name: Advance. Tran.\it, Inc.
Subrecipient SAM.GOV I.D.': XR1)YJ3T\VIITZ5
Name of auihori/Jng stibreeipieni oHicial: Adains Carroll
Title of authorizing subrecipient official: Executive Director
Federal Clauses: N/A |
Master Agreemcnt/Cenirications and A.ssurances: \'cs
Subrccipienl Federal indirect cost rate: N/A j
(An approved federally recognized indirect co.'U rale negotiated heiwee/i the subrecipient and the
Federal Govermneni or. ifno such rale e.visis. either a rate negotiated between the po.ts-throiigh
entity and the. subrecipient (in compliance with thi.< part), or a De Minimis indirect {•o.vr rate as
defined in §200.414 Indirect. (FeiA) costs, paragraph tj}).

Subaward Period of [performance:

Stan Date: 6/14/25 End Date: 6/30/25



OC3t
Dtpcrtatemt rfTrmupfUfitoii

William Cass, P.E.
Commissioner

OmS72'23p'.\ 2:0SRCU

THE STA TE OF MEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPAR TMEfh OF TRA NSPORTA TJON

.  G&C #73 73Date 6/14/23

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Stale House

Concord, NH 03301

David Rodrigue, P.E.
Assistant Commhsionfr

AndreBriere, Cotonel, USAF(RET)
Deputy Commissioner

Bureau of Rail & Transit

April 28,2023

REQUESTED ACITON

Authorize the Department of Transportation to enter into an agreement with Advance Transit, Inc.
(Vendor 166573), Wilder, Vermont, for an amount|not to exceed $6,404,000 for public transportation
services for the period July 1, 2023 through June 30,2025, cfFcctive upon Governor and Council approval.
100% Federal Funds.

Funding for this agreement is contingent upon the availability of funds in Fiscal Year 2024 and Fiscal
Year 2025, with the ability to adjust encumbrances,through the Budget Office between State Fiscal Years
if needed and Justified.

04_96,96.9640IO-29I6

Public Transportation
072-500575 Grants to Non-Profits-Federal

FY 2024

$3,202,000

FY2025

$3,202,000

EXPLANATION

Advance Transit, Inc. has been awarded Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5311 Rural Area
Formula Program funds (Section 5311) in the amount of $6,404,000 to provide public transit service in the
Hanover-Lebanon area. FTA Section 5311 support eligible operating and capital expenses.

Advance Transit, Inc. is a private, non-profit organization that provides rural public transportation in the
Upper Valley region of New Hampshire and Vermont. Each state's share of Advance Transit's funding is
ba^ on a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) |signed by the transit system and the two states and has
been in effect since September 30, 1993. For the FY| 2024-2025 biennium, Advance Transit will receive
$6,404,000 of Section 5311 funds. Details relative to the 5311-funding program and Advance Transit's
award of these funds are outlined below.

The Department's proposed SFY 2024 and 2025 operating budget includes funds from Section 5311 that
provides funds for capital, planning; and operating assistance for public transportation in rural areas with
populations of less than 50,000. ,

The Department released a public notice on Februarj' 16,2023, announcing the availability of Section
5311 funds. Applications for requested funding were due on March 21, 2023. The Department received

JOHN 0. MORTON BUILDING • 7 HAZEN DRIVE • P.O. BOX 483 • CONCORD. NEW HAMPSHIRE 03302-0483

TELEPHONE: (603) 271-3734 ♦ FAX: (603) 271-3914 { TOO: RELAY NH 1-800-735-2964 •VWVW.NHDOT.COM



applications for six (6) rural public transit systems and awarded funding to each transportation system,
liie systems and their respective application scores are as follows:

Transit System Applicant
Average

Score

Concord Area Transit Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
(cxisting'scrviccs) 1

83%

Advance Transit Advance Transit, Inc. Ifexisting services) 81%

City Express VNA at Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services
(existing services) 1 76%

Sullivan County
Transportation

'  !
South'wcsiem Community Services (existing services)

76%

North Country Transit Tri-Cdunty Community Action Program (existing services) 74%

Advance Transit Advance Transit, Inc. (expansion - evening services) 73%

Advance Transit Advance Transit, Inc. (expansion - Saturday services) 73%

Carroll County Transit Tri-Countv Community Action Program (existing services) 72%

An evaluation committee that consisted of the Pub ic Transportation Administrator, Fred Butler, Transit
Grants Coordinator, Paula Devens; and the Transit Compliance Specialist, Cathy Cormier reviewed,
evaluated, and scored Section 5311 applications based on criteria as indicated in the application materials
and the Department's State Management Plan for FTA programs. The evaluation-matrix is provided below
for reference:

Evaluation Criteria Weight

1
The proposed service effectively addresses an NHDOT policy goal (per statewide transit
study) and/or the proposed service is a continuation of existing services.

15%

■2
The applicant has the fiscal and technical capaci^ and adequate budget to operate its
service and demonstrates successful experience in providing transportation services.

30%

3
The application demonstrates an effort to involve the private sector in the delivery of
transportation services as well as involvement in and support for the project, financial and
otherwise, on the part of citizens and local government.

20%

4

The applicant successfully demonstrates service cfTicicncy and effectiveness, measured in
ridcrship, service miles and hours, costs, and fare recovery as applicable. New applicants
must demonstrate the ability to measure performance and achieve goals.

15%

5
The application shows coordination with other transportation providers in the service area:
public, rionprofit, and for-proflt. | 10%

6
The applicant complies with releyant Federal and state regulations and has a history of
compliance with regulations and^reporting requirements.

10%

1 100%
Note: Every application met the Departthent's cnteria for inclusion in its SFY 2024-2025 public
transit funding plan and will be awarded separate amounts for the aforementioned transit systems.

Advance Transit, Inc. will provide the remaining required non-federal matching funds. In the event that
Federal Funds become unavailable, general funds will not be requested to support this program.



The Agreement has been approved by the Attorney General as to form and execution and the
Department will verify the necessary funds are available pending enactment of the Fiscal Year 2024 and
2025 budget. Copies of the fully executed Agreement arc on file at the Secretary of State's Office and
the Department of Administrative Services, and subsequent to Governor and Council approval will be
on file at the Department of Transportation.

Your approval of this resolution is respectfully requested.

Attachments

Sincerely,

William Cass, P.E.

Commissioner



Subj^: SFY 2024 - 2025 f=TA Se^bn 5311

GRANT AGREEMENT

The State of New Hai^shire aad the Gr^t« hereby
Mutually'agree as follows:

3  GENERAL PROVISIONS
iTldentificQdoh wd Deflnidbns.

l.i. State Agchcy.Name

'NH bepartmeht of Transportation
"  !

,, ■

L2: State Agency Adtlrebs - , '
. RO: Box 483 fii'Mazen Dr. Concord;!NH .
03302-0483

1.3. GraritecName i...

Advance TranslClnc:
1,4. Grantee Address . ,

120 Billings Fami Roed, PO,Box-.1027 \Mlder, VT
050^1027 . V. •

1.5 Grantee Phone #

802-295-1824 x201

' 1,6! ̂Account Number j
04^9^96-964010-^16-0
72-M0575 1

1.7. Gjmpletibn Date

June 30. 2025

1.8. Grant Limitation

J B.w.doo

1.9. Grant OfGccr forState Ageqby |
Frederick Butler, F^^|lc trans|Mrtetl6n Adrriinl^tor.
Bureau of Rail & Transit * |

1.10. State Agency Teli^hohe "Number

606-271-2565

If Grantee is a raunicip^ity or village district: "By sjgnlng.ttls form we cei^y thatwc have complied with
any public mectihc reauiremenlt for acceptance of this:^ant, iDcittdine if appHcabie'RSA 31:95-b."
1.11. &an|ec^gaataare 1 ' 1.12. Name & Title of Grantee Signor 1

A Vrh!> CMlOiX, OW
Grantw Signatuie 2
N/A

Name & Title of Graii!ee':Signar 2

N/A

Grantee Signature 3
' N/A ■ "

Nome&TitleofGraritec'Signbr6' -

N/A

1.13 State Agency Sighaturi^s); 1.14 . Name & Title of Slate Agency Signor(s)
1  1 »-c C-. O. w

Director of Acrcnauticl'Rail & IVusit

\^S. Approval by Attoraey.beneral (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifG'& C t^proval required):

By: A^sistl^ Attorney GenOT'ib^

1.16. ADc/ovffli^flUVODor/^ (ifaMlicablc) . u,.,

OF STATE,

iMfL

...

2. SGOPE OF WOI^:"' In cxcAange for girof ftinds provided.by the State ofNewHahip^irc,.acting .
through the AgaicyTdenlificdm block 1,1 (hcfcinato referred to as "the State'^j the G^tee
block 1.3 (hereinafter refcri^'to as *^e Grantee"), shall pcrfoim that.work identified and more'particul^ly
described in the scope of work attached hcrcto'as EXHIBIT B (the scopc pfwbA being hereinafter referred to
as "the Project").

Paged of3
Contractor Initials

Bate '



4.

4.1.

4.2.

ARRA COVERED. Except u othcorise'cpcciricaUy provided (br bcmii. (be
Gnoloc shall pcrfonn Ibc Pniject in, end with rcsp^ lo. the Stste of New
Httfnpshirc. I
RPPRCnVR DATE; COMPLRTfON OP PROJRCT. |
Thb Atreemott. end all obliselions of the partjes heminder. shell become
eflectivo en (he date oo the dais of ipprava) of this Agreement by the Oovereor
end Cotmeil of (be Stale of New Hampshire if reqrdred (Ueck 1.16), or epoo
lieniturc by the State Agency as shown ia block. 1.14 Efrecllve DatO- |
Exeq>t u otherwise ipcdflcally provided herdn; tbc Projoet, Inelixlrag all repont
required by (his Agreement, sMI be completed in ITS eatirely prior to the date lit
block 1.7 ̂ crsinaflcr rcioTcd to as Ihe Completkxi Dale").
GRANT AMOUNT: LlMtTATrON ON AMDI/NT: VOUCHERS

PAYMENT. t I
5.1. TheOrint Amount is identified and more particubrly dcscnbcd in BXHlBtT Q

attached hereto. I
5.2. The raaoneroli Bodschedole of payment shall bees id forth n CXHIBn'C. |
S3, [n accordaoee with the provisieru set (bith is EXHIBfr C, tad in eoosidertUoo

of the sstisfoctory performaocc oftbe Project, as detenmiKd by the Stste, sod as
limited by tubperegrspb 5.5*oI lhae genertl provisions, the Slate itiall pay (be
Crmlee the Grant AmounL 1he Stats shall withhold from (he amouN otberwisb
payable to the Grantee under Otis tubpansraph SJ these sums required, or
pcnnioed. to be withheld pursuant to NJH. RSA ft0:7(hroucb 7-c. |

5.4. \ The payrsenl by the State of the Grant amnrot dtall be (he only, and the complete
payment to the Grantee for all expenses, of arhatevtr, nature, incuiTed by the'
Grtniee in the performance bcrcol, and shall be (be oi^..aod the' eoreplete,'
eoeipensatioo to the Grantee for (be Prcject. TheSteteshaOhavencliibililiesio'
the Grantee otber (heo the Grast AmovaL ; |

j.S. Notwithstnndlog anyAing in thb Agreement lo (be coetrary, and notwithstanding
unexpected cimimstanees, in no event shall (he total of all payments outhorned,'
or idually made, hercundv acced the fitani fa'miiatinn wu frwik in hlrwk l.g nf

gcocral ptovisiofs. I
6. COMPLIANCE nv GRANTEE WtTH LAWS AND REGULATIONS. b|

eooaection with the performance of the Project, the Grantee shall comply arilh all
staiBiea, laws regulKions. and orden of Icderal, state, county, or .muaieipal
authoiitiaadiich shall impose any obligstioRS or doty upon the O^tee, iochidiflg
the ocqutsiiioo of any aod all necessary permits aod 31<95^.

7. RRCOkUS end ALmumtC

7.1. Between the EfTective Dote end tbe dale seven (7) yun aller (he Completioo
Date, unless otherwise required by (ho giant terms or the Agency, (he Otantcc
dull keep drttlM aeooenu of alt-cxpeascs iaeutTed,b connection arith the
Project, but not limited to, costs of adannistnttDo. imiupQitatioe.
insuraocc, tclepbMC calls, and clerical msieriab m semees. Such aecounb
shall be su|^x»ted by recdpts, iu voices, bilb and other similar documents.

12. Detwcen (he EfTcctivc Date md the date seven (7) ycaira aflcr the Coaiplctioa
Dab, esless otherwise required by (be gmt terms or the Agocy ponusnt to
su^eiagraph 7.1, st cny time duriog (be Graelce'i oonn*] busness bours, sod a
ofltn as the State »h«'i domand, (ho Grantee shall make s'vsUabIc to tlie Slate all
records pertahung to matters covered by thb Agreemoil. 'Ihe Grantee shall
permit (be State to audit, exaini&e. end Rp^uce such Rcenii, iod to make audits
of all ooetraets, iovokes. micriab. paynUs. records of personod. data (as chat
tenn la bendosRa dedoed), and other informallon retoUsg to all mauert covered
by (bb Agitenf)^«j^yu^}a ftl;a8tegr8ptw!3ai)akfc;^^ all persons,
natural or fictkmsC affiliated with, controlled by, w under .common ownenbip
with, tbe entity identified u the Grantee b block 1.3'of these provisioas

a. PRRSQNNKL.

a.I. The Oiintccshall. Bi its ows expeitse, provide all pcnoiuici occcasary to perform
the Project The Crmntee wnrrxnls that all pcrsodnd cn^ged I'o Ihe Projeet shall
be quslified lo perform such Project, and shall be properly licensed and tulhorixcd
to pcrfem such Project uiu^ all applicable bwi.

a.2. lire Oraniee shsU not hire, and it sh^ oo( pcnnil any cubcontraetor. subgrutce,
or other person, flrm or corporelion with wbon U b eoga^ is a combmedeflbtl
to perfons (ho Prttjoct, to hire any person who has a contrecluil relationship with
the State; or who u a Stale officer or tmployee, decled or tppoinied.

a.3. The Grant OITiecr shall be the representative of the Stste bercuadcr. Inthecvcat
of any dispnla hereunder, the interprcutmi of thb Agreexneal by (he Grut
Onioet. end bli/hm dcdcon on any dispute, shall be final.

$. DATA: RETKNTION OF DATA: ACCRSS.

9.1. As used lo thb Agreement, (he word "data" shall mean all infocmitlon and things
developed or obtalrKd during the performxnec of, or acquired or developed by
reason of, thb Agreement, iedadln^ but ooi limited to, all studici, tepons, Dlei,
farnuilac, surveys, mapa, dtaiis. soiavd rccurdtngs, video recordbgs,.pictorial
rcproductioas, diawings, analyses, graphic rqvescntaiions,
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eomputer programs, computer printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, paper, and
documcnls. all whether Gaished or uafinisfacd,

'93. Between ihe Effeciive Date and (he CompldioA Dale the Grantee shall gnnt to
the Slnto. or any person designated by it, unresirietcd access to all dala for
cxsminsUots dupilwlon. publiealion. traosUtioo, sale, disposal, or for any other
purpose whatsoever.

93. No dsu shall be subject to copyright in the United States or any ether country^by
anyone otber than the State.

9.4. V On and after the Effeciive Date ill data, and any properly which has been received
Erore the State or purchased with fhnds provided for that-purpose under .thb
Agreanent. tbcll be (be propeny of (he State, and shall be returned to the State
upon demand or upon temuoalioo of thb Agreement for my reuoa. whkfaevcr
s^l flnt occur.

93. Tbe Stale, and anyone il shall designate, shall have onrestrktod authority to
publish, disclose, tibin'bute and otherwise use, m'wtMlcor in'pait, all data.

19. CONDITIONAL NATURE OR AGRRRMKNT. NQtwilhifndlM. tnvthma in

thb Agreemeni to the contrary, all oNigalipns of (he Stale horrmda, 'i^udi(«.
without Umitatioa. (be continuance of payments hereutxfcr. are conlingeoi upon
(he availability or continued appr^fifllMO of (bnds, and in no event shall the Stele
be Ihtole for any payments hewoder in exe«n of such available or appropriated

I fuoib. Id lite evere of a eduction or lermmalMD of tboee fUnds, (he SisK thell
' have (be rigbl to withhold payment until coeb fuads become available, Ifever, and

shall have (he right to terminate thb Agreement immediately upon giving tbe
Graotee notiee of such lesmination.

11. RVRNTQRPRPAULT: RRMT.DIKS.

H.I. AoyeneormoreofthefoUewii^actsorcimssioesoriheGnuitEcehellcoosiItute
an event of default hercunda (hereinafter referred to as "Events ofDcfauk"):

II.1.1 Philurc to peribrm (he Project MlbCKloriiy or on schedule; or
H.I3 Pailore to submit any report required hereunder, or
11.1.7 Rtiliift. to ma'miaio. or pemul •cV'Css to, the records required hereunder; or
II. 1.4 Pbllure to perform any ofthe other covenants and condUioos of thb Agreement
113. Upon (he ocmurenceofany Event of Default, (be State may take any ono, or more,

or all, of(he following actions:
113.1 Give (be Grantee a written notice qsecifying the Event of Default and requiring it

to be remed'ied within, in the discncc of a greala or lesser speciltcatioa of limo,
ihuly (30) days from the dale of the notice; and if tbe Event of Defaah b not
timely remedied, tenninate thb Agreeinoii, cCEcUivo Iww (2) days lAir glviag (he
Grantee notice oftermination; and ,

i 133 Give (be Grantee a written notice tpecUyit^ the Event ofDcfaolt and suspending
ell payments to be tnadt uoder thb Agrecmcrit tod ordering (hat the portion of (be.
Gram Amount which would tXbcnrise accrue to the Oraistee duii^ tbe period
(Vom tbe date of such notice until.such time as the Slats detennina Ihalttho

Grantee has cured the Event of Default shall never be paid to (he Grantee; and
1133 Set nO*against any other obligation the State may owe to the Grantee any damages

(be State suflas reuon of aay Event of De&alt; and
113.4 lYcal tbeagrccment as breacbedaad pursue any of its remedies at bwor inequity,

or both.

II TERMINA-nON.

ill. In (he event of any ctriylcnQiaalien of thb Agreement for aay reason Other than
tbe complelioa of the I^ecl, (he Crantec shall ddivcr to the Grant Officer, not
later Ibu GAeen (IS) days after tbo dale of termmalioo, a report (hercinaiter
referred to as' the 'Tcrninalitm Report") desdibing In detail dl Project Work
performed, aod the Grant Amount earned, to. and including thedaieoftcnniaatioa
la (he event of Terminaiioa under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these gctteral

12.1 provisiora, dtc approval of sudt a Teimioatiea Report by Che State shall entitle
tbe Grantee to receive that ponJoa of the Grant amouoi earned to and iocludiRg
the date of terminaiioo.

ia Ihe event of Termination untlcr paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these gstcnil
123. provisions, (he approval of such a Terminatine Report by the State shall in oo

event relieve the Graotee Gom any and all liability for'damagcs sustained or
incurred by (he State as a rcrall of (ho Orantec'i breach of ib obiigaiions
hereunder.

Notwithstanding.anylhing in (his Agreeoient to (he conlnry, cither the Stale or,
114. cxeept where notice default bss been given to (he Grinteehaeunder,'tbe Grantee,

may terminate thb Agrocroeat wtboul canso upoo thirty (30) days written notice.
13. CONFLICT OP INTEREST. No ofTieer, otemba of einployeo of the Grantee,

and no represontativc, ofGcer or employee of the State ofNcw Hampshire or of
the gotrenung body of the loealily or. Ibctlilies In which the Project b to be
peifonned. wbo exereisa any futscijcns or responsibiliiies in the review tv

CZonti^ctor Intials

Date



14.

IS.

^6.

19.

10.

17.

17.1

17.1.1

17.1.2

approval of Rw uadcftakjrsg or carrying ool of cucfa Project, shall pantdpoleib 17.2.
any decision ie!adn| lo (tris Asnemeni which afTecu hb or her personal tnleresl
or (he iotensl ofany corporation', partnership, or association ia which be or she
b Jirvcily or iodtrcclly inlereated, nor ikall he or she have any. personal or
pecuniaty mtaest, direct or,it)dirccl. in this Agrecmeal or the prece^ (laeof.
CRAhfTTE'S RELATION TO THR STATE, b (bo pcrfonnaiiee of tl^
Aerecrecrtt the Orsniec; ib cmpbyocs, and any nbeontraetor or sobtrtrttee of IS.
the CrtDlce are in all respects radepcrKlcot contrecioa, at^ are neither ofcou
nor ofDploycca of the Stsia Neither the Orantoe nor any of it* oRiee^
cnyloytxi. aseots. tnembco, subconUactcr* or stAtcreatcci, shall havo aitthority
to bbd the State oor are they eatUled to any of (he benefits, workmen's
coopeasation or cmohiincnts provided by the State to it* employees. |
ASStCNMENT AND SDBCOffTRACTC. "rhe (>intee ibaU not tssiert. <*
otherwise tnnsfcr any interest b thb Agreemeat without the prior wrilim
Consent of (ho Stale. Nooc of the Project Work shall be subcoetracted or
tubtramed by the Grantee other than as set forth b Exhibit B without the prior
writtCD cooscnl of the State. |
INDKMNIPICATION. The Gnnlee shall defend, bdermify end hold
hannleu the Stale, its ofilcen and employees, from «ad esabst any and ail
loties suffered by the State, its ofTicers end emptoyeca, and any and all claims,
iiabtlilia or pcoahies asserted agairist the Slate, its dfnccri'and employees, by 21.
or oo behalf of any person, on account of, based 00, resultbg from, ariilai out
of (or which (nay be cbimed to arise out of) Ibe acb or omissions of the Gnnteo
orsttocootfBctor, ortubgreateeerolberegenloftbeOrinlee. Notwithstaodin|
Ibe (breeoiog, cKXhbg bcreio cootaioed shall be deemed to eonstitute a wtlvv
of (be sovereign iuunmity of (be State, which imnamHy is hereby reserved to -
the State. This covenant shall survive the teTmiitaliori of (his agreement. 1 22.
fNSURANCIL I
The Grantee riiall, at its own expense, ebtab and maintab to force, or shall 23.
reqsiic any subcootnctor, subgrmtee or assignee performing Project work to
obtaiA and citaitttaln b Ibtce. both for the benefit of (be State, (ollowic^
inseranco: {
Statutory workcn' eompcMalion and onpbyecs liability iiuurtnue (br ■{] 24.
en]pieyMatgBgcdmlheperfoniianceofllieF^cct,'tnd |
General Utility insoiance agaiiol all cliims ofbedily iitjaries, death or property
dasage, in amounts net leas than 31,000,000 per occurrence and 32,000,000
aggrcpb for bodily it\jury or death any ooc ioci^t, and S300.000 for property
dajnage in any ooe incident; and '

The pNicia described in tid>parigrt;d> 17.1 orihis paragraph shall be tbestandotd
form employed in the State ofNew Haotpshire, Issued by underwriters acceptable
to(heStste,sndiiu(borized<odobusinessin(heSatBofNewHampshire. Grantee
shall furnish to the Stele, certifieatc* of iaaursnee for all rcncwal(s) of tnsurattec
required under (his Agreement DO lata-than lea (10).day* prior to the expiration
date ofeaeh msuiancc policy.
WAIVER OP BREACH. No faihoe-by (be State to enforce any proviaioos
hereofaficr aity Event of Defhuk shall be deemed a wa ivcr of! is rights with regard
to that Event, or any subsequent Evcot. No express waiver of any Event of Dcfouli
sbaJI be deemed a waiver of any prtryjmoiu hereof. No ntch failure of waiver
shall be deemed a waiver of the of the State to enfbrco eaeh and til of (he
provisioixs boeof upon any frirther or other default eb the part of the Grantee.
NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to (be other parly ^ill be deemed to have
bcoi duly delivered or gireo at the time of laaiUng by certified mail, ptatage

.prepaid, ia a United States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
first above given. •
AMENPMRhfr. TNj AgrcctneBl may be amended, waived or discharged ooiy
by on instrument io writing signed by the parties hereto and only after spproval of
such ataendsieni. wtivo or discharge by the Corcmor and CouncO of the Stnte
ofNewHampshlre, if required or by the cigntng State Agency.
CONSTRUCnOW OP AQRRRMRWT AND TERMS. This Acreemeat shall
beeoostmcd in tccotdaDee with Ibe law of the State of New Hampchirc, and is
binding upon tad taurcs to (he bertefit of the parties and their rapectivo successoa
and assignees. The ceptions and coitlmts of (be "subject" blank ire used only as
a matter.of coBvcaicnce, aad are not to be considered a pan of this Agreement or
to be used in delemining the Intend of (be parties hereto.
THIRD PARTIES. The paitis hereto do net intend to benefit any third parties
aad this Agreemesi shall not be coustiued to confer any such bhaefiL
ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This A^cement, which may be executed b a namber
of counterparu,- eseb of wttich shall be deemed an original, coostitutes (he entire
agreement and vodertttBdiag betweea (be panics, and aupcncedoi *11 prior
•grecsKnts and uodcrsfasdlnfs rdating hereto.
SPECIAL PROVISIONS. The nhJitionsl or modiiying provisions set (onh m
Exhibit A hereto are incorporated as part of (his ogrconenL
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

A.l. Amend G-1 Section 2. "SCOPE OP WO^" by flddtng the following:
I

2.1. The Grantee may change services as described In Exhibit B, Scope of Services (hereinafter (he
"Services") only with the prior written agreement of the State and in accordance with opplicable
Federal Transit Administration (IT'A) requirements.

!  I
A2. Amen(l C-1 Section 3. "AREA COVERED" by adding the following:

3.1. Services may extend to adjacent states with prior written approval from the State. The State
reserves the right to require formal cost aUocation measures.

i
A3. Amend G-1 Section 5. "GRANT AMOUNT: LIMITATION ON AMOUNT: VOUCHERS:

PAYMENT" by adding the foUomng:

5.6. As applicable based on Federal participation ratios, the amount paid by the State to the Grantee
shall not exceed 50% of diowable operating costs less fare revenues plus 80% of allowable
administrative and capital costs. Operating, admiinistrative and capital costs are identified in
Exhibit C. The Grantee shall provide and^ document the availability of local fimds sufficient to
meet the project cost in excess uf the Grant Price Limitation.;  • j / ■ ■ 1

•  5.7. In the event that revenues exceed the total allowable costs, said revenues in excess of total

allowable costs shall be,placed in an interest-bearing account within 30 days of the Completion
Date and made available to the State upon demand.

5.8. The Grantee shall submit a request for payment to the State or} a form specified by the State on a
monthly or quarterly basis, together with all information to support the request. Such requests for
payment shall be properly completed and signed. Rcquests'for payments must be for allowable
costs only as defined in 2 CFR Part 200. No requests for advance payment will be accepted by
(he S(ate. *

5.9. Upon receipt of the request for payment, the Slate shall review the request to determine the
allowability of costs. In ̂ connection with this, review, the State may demand production of (and
the Grantee shall produce) and inspect any documents and records desaibed in Section 7.

5.10. Within 30 days of receipt of the request for payment and other documents and records required
by the Slate, (he Stale shall determine the allowability of costs and the amount due and owing to
(he Grantee and shall pay said amount, subject to other provisions of this Agreement.

5.11. Final Payment. The Grantee's provision
condition precedent to final payment.

of all reports required under this Agreement is a

A4. Ameod G-1 Section 6. "COMPLIANCE , BY GRANTEE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATTONS" by adding the following.

6.1. The Grantee shall post in conspicuous places, available to ̂ employees and applicants for
employment, notices setting forth the provisions of the Federd Title VI non-discrimination
requirements.

6.2. The Grantee shall state, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees, that all qualified
applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, age, creed,
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sex, or national origin.

6.3. The provisions of 2 CFR 200 shall apply to local administration of this agreement and any
subgrantee under this agreement.

A.5. Amend G-1 Section 12. "TERMINATION" by adding the following;

12.5. The Termination Report must be approved by the State and the Federal Transit Administration
(FTA) prior to final payment. |

12.6. Completion of Services; Payment of Price. Excepting those obligationis of the Grantee which, by
the terms of this Agreement, do not expir^e on the Completion Date, .upon the completion of the
Services and upon payment of the Grant Price, this A^eement,.and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall cease and neither party shall have further recourse under the Agreement

I  j ^

A.6. Amend C-1 Section 9." "DATA; RETENTION OF DATA; ACCESS" by adding the
following; , j » . '

9.6. ^The following restrictions apply to all subject data first produced in the performance of this
Agreement: . '

9.6.1 Except for its own internal use. the Grantee may not publish or reproduce such data in
whole or in part, or in any manner or form, nor'may (he Grantee authorize others to do so,
without the written consent of the State, until such time as the FTA may have either
released or approved the release of such data to the publ ic.

1  ■ j '
9.6.2 As authorized by 2 CFR 200,, the FTA reserves a royalty-free, nonexclusive and

irrevocable license to reproduce, publish and otherwise use, and to authorize others to
'  use, for Federal purposes, any workjdeveloped under a grant, cooperative agreement,

cub grunt, ur (hirii party grunt, irrespective of whether o copyright has been obtalndd;>and
any rights of copyright to which a recipient, sub-recipient, or third party contractor
piux:hases owiershlp with Federal assistance.

9.7. It is the FTA's intent to Increase the body of mass transportation'knowledge. Therefore, the
Grantee und^tands and agrees that in addition to (he rights set forth in 9;6 (bj above, the FTA
may make available to apy recipient, subgrantee, grantee or subgrantee its license in the copyright
to. the date derived under this Agreement or a copy of the data First produced under this

"• Agreement. |

9.8. The Grantee shall indemnify, save, and hold harmless the State and United States, their officers,
agents, and employees acting within thej scope of their official duties against any liability,
including costs and expenses, resulting from any willful or intentional violation of the proprieta^
rights, copyrights, or right of privacy, arising out of the publication, translation, reproduction,
delivery, use, or disposition of any data furnished under this Agreement.

9.9. ^ Nothing contained in this clause shall imply a license to the United States under any patent or be
construed as affecting the scope of any license or other right otherwise granted to the United
' States under any patent.

9.10. Sections 9.4, 9.5, and 9.6 above arc not applicable to material fumisbcd to the Grantee by the
State or United States and incorporated in the work furnished under the agreement; provided that
such incorporated'material Is identified by the Grantee at the time of delivery of such work.

9.11. In the event that the project is not completed for any reason, all data developed under the project

J
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shall become subject Dato as defined in Sec(ion9.1 and shall be delivered as the State or the FTA
may direct. • !

A.7. Amend G-1 Section 15. «ASSIGNMENTS/AND/SUBGRANTEES" by odding the following:

1S. 1 The Orantee shall cause the provisions of this grant to be inserted in all subgrants for any work
covered by this Agreement so that the provisions will be binding on each subgrantee; provided,
however, that the foregoing provisions shall not apply to subgrantees for standard commercial
supplies or raw materials. The Grantee shall take such action with respect to any subgrant as the
Slate may direct as a means ofenforcing such provisions, Including sanctions for noncompliance.
The Grantee shall ensure that any subgrantee.has obtained all licenses, pennits or approvtUs
required for the performance of grant Services.

A.8. Amend G-1 by adding "D£FIh(mONS"|as Section 25:

25. DEFINITIONS

AIXOWABLE COSI^: Costs that are incurred in the performance of the Services which
satisfy the requirements of 2 CFR 200.

FTA: U.S. E)epartment of Transportatioi^ Federal Transit Administration

PROJECT APPLICATION: The narraiivc, charts, figures and/or maps submitted to the State
detailing the scope of the public transportation program of the Grant as modified and approved
by the State.

RF.VF.NTIF.; Fiirc.i from individuals or other direct income for the public traasportation services
being provided by the Grantee. Revenues also include ftmds from sub^ants, contracts, purchase
of service agreements, and excess matching funds that directly bcncfit.thc tronsportotion service.

SECTION 5311: Section 5311 oftheFcderolTransit Act of 1964, as amended..

STATE: The State ofNew Hampshire, acting throu^ the Department ofTransportaiion, Bureau
of Rail and Transit

A.9. Amend G-1 by adding "ACCOUNTING, BOOKKEEPING AND REPORTING
REQUIREMENTS" as Section 26:

\  '

26. ACCOUNTING. BOOKKEEPING AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

26.1. Ledgers. Grantee and/or sub^antee shall establish and maintain ledger sheets-for each budget
category. Entries shall be made and shall reflect the fmancial.activitics of the Grantee. The ledger
sheet must be in a form approved by the State. The ledger will indicate the funds remaining in each
line item of the Grant Budget at the beginning.of each rnonth. Entries shall be made on a running

<  basis and carried over to the following month'; that is, figures will be brought forward cumulatively.
Grantee shall also prepare and submit to tHe State a profit and -loss statement quarterly if such

1  information is not provided with invoices.

26.2. Acconnts Reccivoblc. The Grantee and/or subgrantee shall deposit all revenue in an interest-
bearing account with a banking institution injthis State. Grantee shall prepare and maintain receipt
vouchers for all revenue, 'immediately upon receipt, Grantee and/or subgrantee shall credit all
revenue Co the appropriate receipt account. Grantee end/or subgrantee shall establish and maintain
on Accounts Receivable Ledger. The receipt number appearing in (he Ledger shall correspond to
the receipt voucher number. A receipt voucher must be completed on a form approved by the State
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and shall identify each component of every deposit. All appropriate supporting documents for each
deposit should be attached to the receipt voucher.

I

26.3. Payables. Grantee and/or subgrantce shall prepare vouchers to document all expenditures of funds.
The voucher shall include the following information and shall be prepared on a form approved by
the State: The Division account numl:^ from which the funds will be drawn, the date of
expenditure, a voucher number running in sequence, and any appropriate comments supporting the
expenditure of funds (e.g., invoices and payroll vouchers). All Invoices received by the Grantee
shall be checked for accuracy and allowability. Each invoice must be approved for payment by the
Grant Manager or designee. .Immediately upon payment. Grantee and/or subgrantee'shall make
entries to the appropriate ledger sheets documenting payment. (Each'Subgrantee shall identify a
Grant Manager).

26.4. Voucher and Receipt Register. Grantee and/or subgrantee shall establish and maintain two
registers Chat will contain a running total of all pay^le receipt vouchers.'The registers will provide
a summary of voucher or receipt numbers, amount, 'and purpose of action. No self-designated

.  abbreviations are to be used. |
1

26.5. Check Register. Gmntee and/or subgrantce shall maintain a check register. This register is also
considered a book of original entry and is posted to the ledger immediately.

26.6. Time Sheet, Taxes, and fieneflts. Grantee and/or subgranlM shall require each of its employees
to 1) submit weekly time reports designating work performed and time spent on such work, or 2)
be included in an indirect cost allocation plan approved by the cognizant Federal agency. The
Grantee shall summarize time reports by task and apply employee's rates of pay to the hours
worked. The Grant Manager shall review completed and signed time reports and .cause them.to be
postal to the appropriate category in the general ledger. The Grantee shall maintain records of.
employee payroH'and'benefits and .shall post this information to the appropriate category in the
general ledger. The Grant Manager shall ensure that oil payments are on a timely basis.

26.7. Reimbarsements. On a monthly basis, the Grantee shall submit a description of Grant activities,
in a format as r^uired.byithe State. Should,the Grantee show a profit for any month, the Grantee

/  shall apply the amount of profit against subsequent reimbursement requests. The Grantee shall
agree to provide infdnnatipn in addition to the monthly narrative at such times and in such manner
as the State may require, and to prepare any reports which may be requested by the State including
but'not limited to a final or termination report if operations cease.

26.8. Malntenaace of Records. The Grantee shall keep and maintain the records, documents, and
accounts described herein for a period of three years after the'FTA grant is closed. The Grantee
shall maintain, and make available to the State and the FTA, records.relating to complaints and
comments received from the public. In thejevent the State disputes the Grantee's operations or
records as submitted for payment or otherwise, final resolution shall rest with the State.

26.9. Audits and Inspections. Between the Elective Date and the Completion Date, and for a period of
three (3) years after the FTA grant is closed or the date of resolution of all matters relating to this

- Agreement, whichever is later, at any time during the Grantee's normal business hours, and as often
as the State or the FTA may demand, the Gnmtec shall make availobie to the State and Ihc FTA or
their designees all records pertaining to matters covered by tliis Agreement The Grantee shall
permit ihe State and (lie FTA to Rudit,.examinc, and reproduce such records, and to make audits of
all contracts, grants, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel,, Data (as defined in G-1
section 9.1) and other infoimation relating to all matters covered by this Agreement. As used in
this paragraph, "Grantee" includes all persons, natural or fictional, alTillatcd with, controlled by, or
under common ownership with, the entity identified as the Grantee in 1.3.of G-1.

26.10. Independent Audit. The Grantee shall submit one audit done by one Certified Public Accountant
(CPA) for the entire project, or, as the State may require, for any part of the project upon demand.
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Monies required for payment of the audit shall be set aside in the Grant Budget for that specific
puipose.

26.10.1 In the event the audit reveals that monies are due and owing to the State from the
Grantee, for whatever reasons, the Grantee shall pay to the State such sums within thirty
(30) days oftfae audit date. i

I

26.11. The Grantee shall submit quarterly performance, drug and alcohol, tmd charier activity reports
within 30 days of the end of each quarter 'and shall submit'any forms, information or reports
required by tl^ Stale to complete the FTA's Natkmal Transit Database (NTD) reporting.

>  I
26.12. Genera] Transit Feed Specification (GTFS). The Grantee shall generate and keep updated General

Transit Feed Specification (GTFS) data and submit related data for reporting to the National Transit
Database (NTD) as required. The Grantee shall submit related data to the Stale upon request.

A. 10. Amend C-1 by adding "PROJECT EQUIPMENT AND'REAL PROPERTY" as Scction'27:

27. PROJECT EQUIPMENT AND REAL PROPESITY. The following terms and condlUons
apply to all equipment-and real property |purchascd''ln v^ole or In part with funds provided
through this or other Agreements between i^e State and the Grantee:

27:1. All procurements shall be made in accordance with 2 CFR 200 and ETA Circular 4220.IF and
future amendments, and with Buy America requirements) 49 CFR Parts 661 and 663.

j

27.2. All vehicles shall be purchased by the State unless the Grantee has received prior approval from
the State to procure vehicles.

27.3.' All other, equipment with a cost in excess of five hundr^ ($500) per unit shall be purchased by
the Grantee,subject to the prior approval of the Stete.

!
27.4. Title to all project equipment funded or otherwise provided by the Grantee shall be in the name

of the Grantee; provided,' however, that the Graiitee shall give the Stale a security interes't in all
such equipment at the time of purchase and .shall execute financing statements and do all other
acts necessary or useful to the perfection of d\at interest and the renewal thereof. In connection
with the purchase of any motor vehicles pursuant, to this Agreement, the Grantee shall give the
State a security interest in the motor vehicles at the -time of purchase and shall take all steps
necessary to protect the State's security interest, including taking steps to identify the State as a
lien holder of such motor vehicles on the motor vehicle titles.

27.5. In the event that this Agreement is terminated, all project equipment and property become the
property of the State and it is understood and agreed that legal title to such equipment shall be
'transferred to the State as soon as feasible. Project equipment will be disposed of in accordance
with FTA Circular 9040. IG and the State f^anogement Plan unless written approval is received
from the Slate.

•  .

A.U. Amend C-1 by adding "EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATION" as section 28:

28. EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATION. The Grantee shall maintain a current inventory listing of
all Project Equipment and Real Property involycd in this Agreement. The Grantee shall submit
to the State a cetfification that the Project Equipment.and Real Property as referenced in Section
27, is slill being used in occordance with the terms of the Agreement The inventory listing and
equipment certification shall be supplied to the State on on annual basis beginning June 30,.2024.

A.12. Amend G-l by odding "EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE" as section 29:

29- EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE. The Grantee sliall be responsible for the maintenance
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and repair of all equipment used in the Services'described iii Exhibit D. The Grantee shaJi
maintain all such equipment at a high level ofcleanliness, safety, and mechanicaJ soundness. The
Grantee shall certiiy that a proper maintenance plan that meets or exceeds the original equipment
manufacturer's preventive maintenance guidelines is followed. Vehicle maintenance plans must
be approved by the Grantee's Board bf Directors. All maintenance, repair and physical
improvement activities on equipment shall be conducted by the. Grantee and at a location
specified by the Grantee. The Grantee shall notify the Stale of any changes in this location. The
Grantee further agrees to maintain, repair, or make any physical improvemcril to equipment as
requested by the Stale. The State, the FTA, and/or their designecs shall have the right to conduct
periodic inspections for the purpose of confirming proper maintenance and repair.

j  \
A.13. Amend G-l by adding "REPAIR RECORDS AND REPORTS" as section SO-

SO. REPAIR RECORDS AND REPORTS. The Grantee shall maintain o compleie and up to date
record of all motor vehicle repairs and shall make such records available to the State and the FTA
upon demand.

A.14. Amend G-I by adding "VEHICLE STORAGE" as section 31:

31. VEHICLE STORAGE As applicable, with respect to any motor vehicles purchased in whole or
part under this Agreement, or maintained under this Agreement, the Grantee shall park or garage
each vehicle so as to ensure maximum available protection and safety for each vehicle. The
Grantee shall also ensu!;e that each vehicle will be parked or garaged in such a manner that its
daily operations are not Impaired or jCurtaUed by conditions of weather or any other
circumstances. The' Grantee shall notify die State of the location of the parking or garaging site
and any relocation.

A.I5. Amend G-l by adding "TRAINING AND DRIVER REVIEW" as sectioo 32:
I

32. TRAINING AND DRIVER REVIEW. The State may require participation In training courses
determined to be essential to FTA program management in this grant period and may require
participation in such training programs as it deems necessary by drivers and other employees
involved in the transpor^on of the public. Training may include defensive driving, passenger
assistance, cmcrgctKy procedures and periodic refresher training every three (3) years. The
Grantee agrees that the State shall have the'right to review the performance of all drivers who are
employed in connection with (his Agreement, and to disallow the use of any driver whose
performance as a driver is determined to be unsatisfactory by the State.

A.16. Amend G-l by adding "SAFETY REQUIREMENTS" as section 33:

33. SAFETY REQUIREMENTS. As appliLibIc, all project equipment shall, be inspected and
certified by the Department of Safety and shall meet ail applicable Federal Motor Vehicle Safety
Standards and Federal Motor Carrier Saifcty Regulations as required by the United States
Department of Transportation, and by thc|Ncw Hampshire Department of Safety under RSA
266:72-a, in the purchase and operation of all project equipment.

33.1. As applicable, the Grantee shall provide the Stale with full, and prompt written notifjcation
of any accident involving any vehicle used in its Services, In addition, the Grantee shall be
responsible to report any accident in compliance with State law.

33.2. The Grantee shall submit to the Stale by February 15 of each year a report covering the
previous year (January 1 through December 31), summarizing the results of its alcohol
misuse prevention and anti-drug programs on FTA approved forms. This shall be in
compliance with 49 CFR Part 655.
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'  ■ I
33.3.. The Grantee shall submit any data/documentation related to FTA's Transit Asset

Management or Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan purposes as required by
NHDOT for compliance purposes, j

A.17. Amend G-1 by adding "SERVICE LIMITATIONS" as section 34:

34. SERVICE LIMITATIONS, the Grantee shall hot engage in the provision Services other than
those described in Exhibit B. or outside jthe service area described in Exhibit B, without the
written consent of the State and, as opplicabie, without obtaining the appropriate operating
authority. The Grantee shall not engage in charter or school bus operations except as permitted
by 49 CFR Parts 604 and 605, rcspcctivdy.

A.18. Amend G-1 by adding "GRANTEE REPRESENTATIONS" as section 35: '

35. GRANTEE REPRESENTATIONS. The Grantee warrants that with respect to the Service to
be performed, it has obtained all licenses,jpermits, or approvals which arc required by any lew,
order or regulation of any authority, state or federal, or which may be necessary for the

.  performance of the Services hcreundex. The Grantee warrants that all personnel engaged in the
Services shall be qualified to perform such'Services and shall be properly licensed and authorized
to perform such Services under all applicable laws.

A.19. Amend G-1 by adding "LABOR PROVISIONS" as sMtion 36:

36. LABOR PROVISIONS. The Grantee agrees to adhere.to the terms and conditions of the Unified
Protective Arrangement; Section 5333(b) of 49 USC 53 or as amended, incorporated herein,for
the protection of the employees of any employer providing transportation services assisted'by
this Agreement, and the employees ofj any other surface transportation providers in the
transportation service area identified in Exhibit B.

i
A.20. Amend G-1 by adding "PATENT RIGHTS" as sccllon 37:

37. PATENT RIGHTS. If any invention, improvement, or discovery of the Grantee is conceived or
first actually reduced to practice in the course of or under this grant, which Invention,
improvement or discovery may be patentable under the laws of the United States o'r-any foreign
country, the Grantee shall immediately notify the State and provide a detailed report. Tlie rights
and responsibilities of the Grantee and the State with respect to such invention, improvement, or
discovery will be determined in accordance with applicable Federal laws, regulations, policies,'
and any waiver thereof.

A.21. Amend G-1 by adding "BROKERAGE REPRESENTATION" as section 38:

38. BROKERAGE REPRKENTATION. The Grantee warrants that it has not employed or
retained any company or person, other thanja bono-fide employee woricing solely for the Grantee,
to solicit or secure this Agreement; and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any company or
person, other than'a bona-fide employee working solely for the Grantee,, any fee, commission,
percentage, brokerage fee, or any other consideration, contingent upon or resulting frotn.thc
award or making of this Agreement. For breach or-violation of this warranty, the State shall have
the right to annul this Agreement without liability or, in its discretion to deduct from* the
Agreement price or consideration, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such fe^ commission,
percentage, brokerage, brokerage fee, gift, or contingent fee.



ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. The Grantee, Advance Transit Inc., Oicrcinaftcr the "Grantee") shall provide the fdllowLng
public transit service(s): !

1

a. Fixed route, demand-responsive, and/or route deviation public transit services in the
Greater Hanover-Lebanon area as detailed in the 'Troject Description" of the
Grantee*s application to the New Hampshire Department of Transportation, Bureau
of Rail and Transit (hereinafter "the State") for Federal Transit Administration (FTA)
Section 531 \ funding. The Grantee's application is hereby incorporated by reference
and made part of this agreement

2. The following terms.and conditions apply to all of the public transit services provided by
Grantee pursuant to this agreement:

a. The State may require the Grantee to provide additional transportation services or to
reduce transportation services provided under this Grant. Any alterations to such
transportation services shall be submitted in writing by the State to the Grantee. The
Grantee shall implement the alterations within thirty (30) days unless a different
timeframc is agreed to by the State and the Grantee.

b.. The Grantee may request to revise transportation services, as submitted in the
Grantee's grant application to the State, to add, reduce, or adjust transportation
services provided^under this Grant. Ajiy alterations to such transportation services,
including alterations for the provision of service to special events, shall be requested
in writing by the Grantee to the Statcj for approval at least 30 days in advance.
Revisions subject to,a public comment period shall be requested at least 60 days in
advance. Upon approval of the State, the Grantee shall implement any alterations
within thirty (30) days unless a different timefiame is agreed to by the State and the
Grantee.

c. The Grantee shall not change, add, otj.deletc any route or make any fare, service, or
operating schedule adjustments without the prior written agreement of the State,
.except in an emergency situation. In such an emergency, the Grantee shall notify the
State no later than the next working day following the day of such changes. Such
emergency changes will be valid for a maximum of five days; thereafter, the written
approval of the State shall be required to continue such emergency changes.

I  . .

d. All project vehicles, including those Federally funded vehicles outlined in Exhibit D,
Project Equipment, as identified by their Vehicle Identification Numbers, as well as
any additional vehicles utilized for the project, shall be used in accordance with all
applicable Federal and State laws as well as State requirements.



ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC
EX3DBITC

BUixiET

I. Tlic Grant price, as defined in Section 1.8 of the General Provisions, is the FTA Section 5311
portion of the eligible project costs. Federal funds ore granted as follows;

n.

1 SFV 2024 SFV 2025

FTA Section 5311 t

Administration 1 $917,000 $917,000

Capital Preventive Maintenance 1 $650,000 $650,000

Capital ADA 1 $325,000 $325,000

Operating i $1,310,000 ' $1,310,000

Total FTA Section 5311!FuGdj 1 $3^02.000 $3,202,000

Total Two-Year Contmct Fnnds 1' $6,404,000

a. Funds are contingent upon Federal and State appropriations.

Not less than fourteen days prior to the subniission ofthe Grantee's first request for FTA
reimbursement, the Grantee shall submit to uie State a budget incorporating ail funds to be
expended in the provision of services pursuit to this Grant. Budget revisions may be made
with written approval of the State.

m. The Grantee may seek reimbursement only or eligible expenses listed in the budget and
detail-of-cost form provided by the State, with the exception of funds specifically reserved, if
any, and identified in "Specifically Programmed Funds," at the end of this Exhibit

IV. The Grantee shall submit appropriate procurement documentation to the State for review and
approval prior to any capital procurement. Upon approval, the Grantee may proceed with the
procurement and submit an invoice to the State for reimbursement of project expenses in
compliance with Federal guidance, including FTA Third Party Procurement guidelines and
FTA Circular 4220.IF or most recent.

V. At the sole discretion of the State, the Grants may carry forward any unexpended portion of
the federal funds included in the Grant Price to a subsequent Grant, if any, between the State
and the Grantee.



ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
EXBIBIT D

VEHICLE LIST

Transit Vehicles: 25

2019 LOW FLOOR DIESEL j 15GGE2714K30935I4

2011 OUlig Hybrid LLC Bus 15GGB3016B1176561

2011 Gillig Hybrid LLC Bus 15GGB30I4B1176560

2012 Gillig 35'Low Floor Hybrid Bus i ]5GGB3012Cn80088

2014 Eldorado National AerotecH 240 • 1GB6G6BL7En28919 *

2016 Gillig 35'Low Floor Hybrid Bus { 15GOB2716GI187034

2016 Gillig 35' Low Floor Hybrid Bus 15GGB27I8G1187035

2016 Gillig 35' Low Floor Hybrid Bus / 15GGB27IXG1187036

2017FrcightllnefFXCC76 . WDPPF4CC6H9724205

2018 35 ft GUIig Diesel Bus 15GGB2710J3188756

2018 35'Gillig Diesel Bus | 15GGB2715J3188753

2018 35'Gillig Diesel Bus | 15GGB2717J3188754

2018 35'Gillig Diesel Bus , • I5GGB2719J3188755

2018 Ford Eldorado Aero Elite Bus 1FDAF5GT8HEE36704

2018 Ford Eldorado Elite Bus IFDAF5GTeHEE36703

2018 Ford Escape 4 cyl | lFMCU9HD2nJC87893

2018 Ford F350 Diesel Pickup | 1FDRF3BT5JEB73897

2018 Gillig 35' Diesel Bus I5GGB2713J3188752

2019 G\n\g29 LOW FLOOR 15GCE2712K3093513

2019 GUlig29' LOW FLOOR | 15GGE2710K30935I2

2019 GilligLow floor diesel ^ . 15GGE2716K3093515

2020 Gillig Bus Diesel G27E Low floor bus 15GGE27rXL30938yi

2020 Gillig, G27E Low Floor Heavy Duty Bus, 26 pas I.5GGE27I1L3093892 ■

2022 FORD E450 Cutaway Turtle Top Terra Transit 1FDFE4FN1NDC25951

2022 Ford Turtle Top Terra Transit Super Duty Cutaway 1FDE4FN6NDC25945



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERT FICAXE

I. David M, Sconlan, Secretary of State ofthc Stale ofNew Hampshire, do hereby certify Ihci ADVANCE TRANSIT. INC. is

oNew Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered (o (nmsact business in New Hampshire on Jimuary 12,19S4.1 furtha certify

thai all fees and documents required by the Secretary of Stale's ofTice have been received and is in good stsoding as far as this

ofDcc is conceroed.

Business ID: 52688

Ccrtlhcatc Number 0006197380

Op

Pi,

o

A

1^.

•PD

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

1 hereto set my hood and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the Stale of New Hampshire,

this 5th day of April A:D. 2023.

David M. Scanlon

Secretary of State



Certificate of Authority U 2 (Ccrporotion, Non^Pr^ Corporation)

ComorntclBvlnws

am duly elected Clerk/Secrctary/OfFicer of1, ^ . hereby certify that
(Name) ■

ACK'A/Vil\$ (.A/C • . I hcrcb^ certify the following is a true copy of the
(Name of Corporation )

\

current Bylaws or Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation and that the Bylaws or

Articles of Incoiporation authorize the following officers or positions to bind the

Corporation for contractual obligatiotts
{list officer titles or position)

I further certify that the following individuals currently hold the office or positions

authorized:

{list individuals holding positions authorized)

I further certify that it is understood that the State of New. Hampshire will rely on this

certificate as evidence that the person listed above currently occupies the position indicated

and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. This authority sli5D;i^ajn^yaUdi

ibr3hirti!^ days from the date of this certificate.

DATED: 4/28/23 ATTEST:

(Name & Title)

Rebecca Owens
Senior Planner, City of Lebanon
Secretary, Advance Transit, Inc.



BYLAWS OF

ADVANCE TRANSIT. INC.

Adopted June 19, 2015
i  '

Revised June 21, 2018

Revised May 16, 2019
j

article I

I

Name. Purpose and Offices

Section 1. Name and Type. The name of this cprporation shall be Advance
Transit. Incorporated, and may hereinafter be referred to as the .Corporation, "AT" or
"Advance Transit". The principal office of the Corporation shall be in Wilder, Vermont, or
such other location as the Board of Directors may determine from time to time. The
Corporation's business shall be conducted in New Hampshire and Vermont.

Section 2. Form and Purpose. The form of the corporation shall be a voluntary.
not-for-profit corporation," incorporated under tiie laws of the State of. New Hampshire
(R.S.A. 292), and registered t9 do business in the State of Venoont. The purpose of the
Corporation shall be to provide a comprehensive transportation network for the several
towns of the Upper Valley of New Hampshire and Vermont.

I

Section 3. LimitMlons. The Corporation is organized and shall be operated
exclusively for charitable, religious, educational, or scientific purposes, including for such
purposes, the making of distributions to organizations under Section 501 (c)(3) of the
Intemal Revenue Code of 1954 (or the corr;esponding provisions of any future Internal
Revenue law). No part of the net earnings of the Corporation shall.be to the benefit of or
be distributed to its Directors, officers, or other private persons/' except that the
Corporation shall be authorized and empowered to pay reasonable compensation for
services rendered and to make payments and distributions in furtherance of the purposes
set forth above. No substantial part of the activities of the Corporation shall be for the
carrying out of propaganda or otherwise attempting to influence legislation', and AT shall
not participate in, or intervene in (including the publishing or distribution of statements),
any political campaign on behalf of any candidate for public office.



ARTICLE II
i

Members

Membership in the Corporation havirig been abolished effective July 1. 2015, the
Corporation shall have no Members. i

ARTICLE

Board of Directors

Section 1. General Powers. All corporate powers of the Corporation shall be
exercised by or under the authority of, and the affairs of the Corporation shall be managed
under the direction of. the Board of Directors.

Section 2. Number. Tenure. Qualification, and Manner of Election of

Directors. j
A. The number of Directors (members of the Board) shall be not more than

nineteen (19) nor less than nine (9). chosen |as provided in III.2.B., C., and F. The Board
shall have at least five (5) voting members who are not of the same immediate family or
related by blood or marriage.

B. Up to nine (9) "Municipal" Directors shall be elected by the Directors upon
nomination of the Executive Committee. Municipal Directors shall be recommended for
nomination by those Municipalities providing^ funding to, and served by, the Corporation.

C. For each Municipal Director serving at any time, the Board shall have one (1)
At-Large Director, elected by the Board upori nomination by the Executive Committee
with due regard for assembling on the Boarc a diversity of talents and backgrounds.

D. Unless otherwise determined by the Board, a Director shall serve for the longer
of: a) three (3) years, or b) until the election and qualification of his or her successor.

E. A Director shall be eligible to serve no more than three (3) consecutive three-
year .terms (a partial term shall not be counted for purposes of this provision). A Director
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who has served three consecutive 3-year' terms shall be eligible for re-election after
having been off the Board for at least one (1) year. The Board terms shall be staggered
as much as possible so that approximately one-third (1/3) of the directors shall be elected
annually. This rule shall take.effect from and after the effective date of these Bylaws. No
term of a Director that commenced prior to the effective date of these Bylaws shall be
counted against the 3-term lirtiit for that Director.

F. In addition to Municipal and At-Large Directors, the Executive Director of AT
shall serve as a Director Ex Qfficio, but shall not be entitled to vote.

Section 3. Annual Meeting. The Annual Meeting of the Board shall'be held in June
or on such a date and at such a time and place as the Board of Directors shall determine.
The business of the annual* meeting may include, but not be limited to. the election of
Directors, the election of officers, and the presentation of reports.

Section 4. Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board shall, be held at
least two (2) times a year, iniaddition lo the annual meeting, .at a place and time to be
decided upon by the Board ciuring the Annual meeting. The Board may provide, by
resolution, for a different time' and place for regular meetings without further notice than
by such resolution. Attendance at regular board meetings is imperative to conduct
business related to the oversight of the Corporation. Any Director who misses two (2)
regularly scheduled board meetings including annual meeting, over the course of one (1)
year may be subject to removal following the process outlined in Section 11. Removal of
Director. By prior arrangement with the President, a Director may participate in a regular
meeting by telephone or other electronic means allowing all participants to hear each
other.

Sections. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board may be called by or
at the request of the President or any two (2) Directors, and shall be held at such place
and time as the President or Directors maVjdetermine.- The person or persons calling a
'Special Meeting may call for the meeting to be,conducted by telephone. By,prior
arrangement with the President, a Director may participate by telephone in a special
meeting that is to be conducted iri person,
person or persons calling the meeting.

provided the Director so arranges with the

Section 6. Notice. Notice of any meeting, regular or special, of the Board shall
be given at least two (2) days previously
personally to each director at his or her
Corporation.

thereto by telephone, email, or delivered
address as shown by the records of the

Section 7. Quorum. A majority of the then-sitting Directors entitled to vote shall
constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of the Board, but if
less than a majority of the Directors is present at any meeting, a majority of the directors
present may adjoum the meeting without further notice



Section 8. Board Decisions. The act of a majority of the Directors present at a
meeting at which a quorum is present shail^ be the act of the Board, unless the act of a
greater number is required by law or by these Bylaws.

Section 9. Action Without a Meeting: Any action required or permitted to be taken
by the Board at a meeting rnay be taken jwithout a meeting if the action is taken by
unanimous consent of all Directors evidenced by one. or more written consents describing
the action taken, signed by each Director, and included with the minutes or filed with the
.records of the Corporation. Action taken by consents is effective when the last Director
signs, the consent, unless the consent specifies a different effective date. A signed
consent has the effect of a meeting vote and may be described as such in any document.
Consents may be transmitted electronically by email or other means, provided they bear
sufficient evidence of the Director's signature.

Sectiori 10. Proxies. At any regulaij, annual or special meeting of the Board, a
Director entitled to vote may vote by telephone, or by proxy executed in writing, including
email, by that director. The proxy must be jlimited to a specific issue, not general, and
must be signed and delivered to the Secretary one (1) day before the meeting. The proxy
shall not count toward a quorum. I

I

Section 11. Removal of Director. Any Director may be removed from the Board
by an affirmative vole of two-thirds (2/3) of ail of its members entitled to vote. Such action
may be taken at any regular meeting or an;^ special meeting at which due notice of the
proposed removal shall have been given to
of the notice of the.meeting.

the Board members together with or as part

Such removal may be accomplished with or without cause, but the Director
involved shall be given an opportunity to be present and to be, heard at the meeting at
which his or her removal is considered.

The removal-of-a Director may be initiated at a. regular meeting of the Board
members by a motion made at the meeting' at a special meeting, or by petition signed
and submitted to the Secretary by not less than twenty-five percent (25%) of the voting
Directors. More than one Director may be considered for removal under a single motion
or by a single petition for removal, but vote on the motion of petition for removal shall be
separate as to each Director.

Section 12. Vacancies and New Directorships. The Board may elect Directors
to fill any vacancies on the Board, by majority vote of.the Directors present and voting at
a duly called meeting of the Board at which
term of office for each Director at the time

exceed three (3) years.

a quorum is present. The Board shall set a
of his/her election, which may in no event

Section 13. Compensation. No member of the Board (with the exception of the
Ex Officio merhber) shall receive a salary or other compensation for his/her services



except for allowable expenses incurred in connection with official duties of a Director as
defined in Board policy. j-

Section -14. Responsibilities. Each Director is expected to support the
Corporation as follows:

1. . be fully acquainted wi
finances:

h AT's purpose, objectives, programs, and

2. comply vyith all AT policies including the AT conflict of interest
policy;

3. serve on at least one (1) standing committee; and

4. fulfill those additional c

Bylaws.
uties and requirements as set out in these

ARTICLE IV

Officers

Section 1. Officers. The Officers of the Board shall be a President, Vice

President, a Secretary, a Treasurer, Assistant Secretary, and such other Officers as may
be elected or appointed by the. Board,'all of whom shall be Directors at all times they
serve as officers except for the Assistant Secretary who may be the Executive Director.

Section 2. Election and Term of OfficiB. The Officers of the Board are nominated
an affirmative vote of a.majority of members
office for the longer of two (2) years or until

by the Executive Committee and elected by
of the Board entitled to vote, and shall hold
their successors, are elected or appointed and qualified. An .officer may succeed
himself/herself in the same office for two (2) additional terms. After being out of that office
for at least one (1) term, a person may agairji be elected to that office. The same person
may simultaneously occupy more than one office except for the President, who shall not
hold either the office of Treasurer or Secretary.

Section 3. Removal. Any- Officer elected or appointed by the Board may be
removed by the Board by affirmative vote of| two-thirds (2/3) of all of Directors entitled to
vote whenever in its judgment the best interests of AT would be served thereby. The
Officer involved shall be given an opportunity to be present and heard at the meeting at
which his or her removal is considered.



Section 4. Vacancies. A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation,
removal, disqualification, or otherwise may be filled by the Board for the unexpired portion
of the term.

Section 5. Powers and Duties.

A. President The President of the Board shall be the Corporation's principal
executive officer and shall have the following specific powers and duties:

I

1. To preside at all meetings of the Board and the Executive committees.
1

2. To appoint all committee chairs, except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws.
,  1

3. To see that all orders and resolutions of the Board are carried into effect.

4. To meet regularly with the Executive Director

5. From time to time to report to the Board of Directors all matters within his or-her
knowledge that in the best interest of AT should be brought to their attention. ^

6. In addition to the foregoing, the President shall have such other powers, duties
and authority as may be set forth elsewhere in these Bylaws or as rhay be prescribed by
the Board from tirifie to time.

B. Vice President. The Board Vice President shall exercise the powers and
perform the functions that from lime to time are assigned by the President or the
Board. The Vice President shall have the powers and^shall exercise the duties of the
President assigned to him or her by the BjDard whenever the President, by reason of
illness or other disability or absence, is unable to act. and at other times when specifically
directed by the President or the Board.

C. Secretary. The Board Secretary shall be the custodian of and shall maintain
the AT books and records and shall be the recorder of all AT formal actions and
transactions. The Secretary shall have the following specific powers and duties:

1. To record or supervise the proper recording of the.minutes and transactions of
all meetings of the Directors, and to maintain separate books at the principal office of AT,
or such other place as the Board may order jof all such meetings in the form and manner
required by law.

xy

2. To keep at the principal office, open to inspection by-Directors at all reasonable
times, the original or a certified copy of the Bylaws of the Corporation as amended or
otherwise altered.

4. To attend to the giving and serving of all notices of the Corporation required by
law or these Bylaws. i



5. To attend to such correspondence
to him/her. '

and make such reports as may be assigned

6. In addition to the foregoing, ttie Secretary shall have such other powers, duties,
and authority as may be set fpr^ elsewhere in these Bylaws and as may be prescribed
from time to time by the President or the Board.

D. Assistant Secretaiy. The Assis

other Officers as requested.

ant Secretary shall assist the.Secretary and

E. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall oversee the financial affairs of the corporation,
and shall perform all other duties incidental to the office or assigned by the Chair, by these
Bylaws or by Board resolution. The Treasurer will serve as the Chair of the Finance
Committee, and have the following specific powers and duties;

1. To keep and maintain, open to inspection by the President and any Director, at
all reasonable times, adequate and correct accounts of the properties and business
transactions of AT. which shall include all rnatters required by law and which shall be in
form as required by law. j

2., To ensure that the Corporation adopts, implements, arid follows appropriate
financial controls.

3. To render to the President and. Secretary or to the Board whenever they may
require it. an account of all transactions as Treasurer and a financial statement in fonm
satisfactory to them; showing the condition of AT. «

4. Working with AT staff, to prepare and present to the Board an annual budget.

5. In addition to Hie foreyoiny, the TieaSuidf shall have such plliei pOweiS, duties
and authority as may be set forth, elsewhere In these Bylaws, and ais may be prescribed
from time to time by the President or the Board.

I
. s

ARTICLE V

^JExecutiyelDire

(memggr;^itttd'ut;:;vote;;of;j^^^^



(but'jndt'belimitedTo.'those'^'outlined'in^the^currentlE.D^^

ARTICLE VI
I

' Committees and Policies

Section 1. Committees. The Bpard shall have the following Standing
Committees. In addition, the Board, at its discretion, may constitute and appoint additional
committees for such purpose,and duration as the Board shall determine. Except for the
Executive Committee, Comrriittees may have, iri addition to a majority of Director
members, such other members as the Board shall designate, who shall serve for such
terms as the Board shall specify. All .committees shall have a Board rhember as chair.
Committee members shall be appointed by the committee chair in collaboration with the
Board President.

A. Executive Committee. The President, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer,
the Chairs of Standing Comrnittees, immediate past President, and Executive Director
shall constitute an Executive Committee, which shall be authorized to exercise the powers
of the full Board between regular meetings o,f the Board when it is impractical, in the view
of the President (or in the absence or unavailability of the President, a Vice-President), to
call a special meeting of the Board. The immediate past President and Executive Director
positions on the Executive Committee shall be non-voting. Any action taken by the
Executive Committee shall be presented to ttie Board at its next regular or special meeting
and shall be included in the minutes or other records of Board actions. The Executive

Committee shall also function as the Board Compensation Committee and Governance
Committee, with responsibility for nominating board members and board officers, for
maintaining the Corporate Bylaws and for evaluating and setting the compensation and
benefits for the Executive Director.

B. Finance Committee. The "Finarice Committee, working with AT's staff, is
responsible for development of AT's budget, and monitoring and adjustment of the budget
during each year and from year to year. The Finance Committee interviews prospective
audit firms and makes recommendations to the Board.

C. Personnel Committee. The Personnel Committee is responsible for policies
and procedures related to employees, employee benefits and staff levels. The Committee
makes recommendations to the Board.



p. Program Planning'arid Evaluation Committee. The Program Planning and
Evaluation Committee establishes the strate|gic direction of the organization iriciuding the
drafting and adoption of Advance Transit's Five-Year Transit Development Plan and its
associated service designs. The Committee makes recommendations to the Board.

E. Public Relations and Marketing Committee. The Public Relations and

Marketing Committee assists' AT in meeting its goals and priorities through effective
strategic corrimunication, marketing and phi
recommendations to the Board.

anthropic initiatives. The Committee makes

Section 2. Policies. The Board, in its discretion, may implement and adopt
policies to further define the .goals and'operations of the Corporation including policies
related to charitable giving, financial management, conflicts of interest, employee conduct
and other policies related to matters pertinent to AT. Policies may be implemented,
revoked or amended by the Bpard at any time in its sole discretion.

ARTICLE VII

Certificates of Shares

The Corporation has no shares and shall not issue share certificates.

ARTICLE VIIIs  I
Contracts. Checks. Deposits. Gifts and Expenditures

Section 1. Contracts. The Board may authorize any officer or officers, agent or
agents of the Corporation, in.addition to the officers so authorized by these Bylaws, to
enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf
of AT. and such authority may be general or may be confined to specific instances.

Section 2. Checks. Drafts or Orders. All checks, drafts or orders for the payment
of money, notes or other evidence of indebtedness issued in the name of AT shall be
signed by such officer or officers, agent or agents of AT and in such manner as shall from
time to time be determined by resolution of the Board. 'In the absence of such



determination by the Board, such instruments shall be signed by the Executive Director
and countersigned by the President of the Board or Treasurer.

Section 3. Deposits. All AT funds shall be deposited from time to time to the credit
of AT, in such banks, trust corhpanies, or other depositories as the Board may select.

Section 4. Gifts..The Board may accept on behalf of AT any contribution, gift,
bequest, or devise.

Section 5. Approval of Expenditures. Any proposed expenditure of $100,000 or more,
not included in the approved capital and/or operating budget, requires an affirmative vote
of two-thirds (2/3) of the members of the Board entitled to vote, the notice of which has
specified the details regarding the proposed expenditure.

ARTICLE IX

Books and Records

AT shall keep; (i) correct and complete books and records of accounts; (ii) minutes
of the proceedings of its Board and committees; and (iii) at its principal office, a record
giving the names and addresses of the Directors entitled to vote. All books and records
of AT are open to inspection by a Director or his/her agent or attorney upon reasonable
written request to the Executive Director or Board President.

ARTICLE X

Fiscal Year

The fiscal year of AT shall be from Ju y 1 through June 30.



ARTICLE XI

Amendment of Bylaws

These Bylaws may be altered, amended or repealed, and new Bylaws may be
adopted by: (1) a majority of the directors ofjthe Board present at any regular meeting or
at a special meeting, if at least seven, (7) days' written notice is given to all directors of
intention to alter, repeal, or adopt newBylaws at such meeting, or (2) an affirmative vote
at any regular meeting of two-^thirds (2/3) of |all of the directors of all of the Board entitled
to vote.

ARTICLE XII

Conflicts of Interest and Pecuniary Benefit Transactions

The Directors, officers, members of standing and ad hoc committees and
employees of AT have a responsibility to avoid conflicts of interest and the appearance
of such conflicts, and to transact the affairs of AT honestly and economically in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations and in a manner which promotes the
best interests of AT. The Board has adopted a written conflicts of interest policy, which is
appended to these Bylaws asjAttachment a!

ARTIC.E XIII

Waiver of Notice

, Whenever any notice is required to be given under the provisions of Chapter 292
of the New Hampshire Revised Statutes Anrpotated or these Bylaws, a waiver thereof, in
vi/riting, signed by the person or persons entitled to such notice, whether before or after
the time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice!



ARTICLE XIV

Dissolution

Upon the dissolution of the Corporation, the Board shall, after paying or making
provision for the payment of all of the liabilities of the Corporation, dispose of all the assets
of the Corporation exclusively for the purposes of AT, in such manner or to such
organization or organizations organized |and operated exclusively for charitable,
education, religious or scientific purposes as shall at the lime qualify as an exempt
organization or organizations under 501 (c) (3) of the. Internal Revenue Code of 1954 (or
the corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue Law). Any such
assets not so disposed of shall be disposed of by the Superior Court of the county in
which the principal office of AT is then located, exclusively for such purposes or to such
organization or organizations as said court; shall determine, which are organized and
operated exclusively for such purposes.

ARTICLE XV

rndemnification of Officers and Directors

Each officer. Director of the Corpora ion and member of a Board standing or ad
hoc committee now or hereafter serving as such shall be indemnified by the Corporation
against any and all claims and inabilities to which he or she has or shall become, by reason
of serving or having served as such officer, Director or committee member, or by reason
of any action alleged to have been taken, omitted, or neglected by him or her as such
officer. Director or committee'member; and the Corporation shall reimburse each such
person for all legal expenses reasonably incurred by him or her in-connection with any
such claim or liability; provided, however, that no such person shall be indemnified
against, or be reimbursed for, any expense incurred in connection with any claim or
liability arising out of his or her own willful misconduct or gross negligence. The amount
paid or reimbursed to any officer. Director or committee member by way of Indemnification
shall not exceed his or her actual, reasonable, and necessary expenses incurred in
connection with the matter involved. The right of indemnification hereinabove provided
for shall not be exclusive of any rights to whijch any officer, Director of the Corporation or
committee member may othenwise be entitled by law.



ATTACH

Policy on Conflict of Interest and

WENT A

Pecuniary Benefit Transactions

Conflict of Interest and Pecuniary Benefit Transactions.

A. General. It shall be against the policy of the Corporation to have conflicts of
interest with its directors, officers, rhembers of standing or ad hoc committees, staff or
members of their immediate families. A conflict of interest exists when there is a potential
that an individual may obtain a direct"or indirject pecuniary benefit, or any other Improper
gain or advantage, as avesult of activities conducted on behalf of AT, or when actions
advance a person's interests or those of another rather than the interests of AT, or when

'actions are adverse.to the best interest of A".

There exists between Advance Transit and its Board, officers, members of
standing and ad hoc committees, and management employees a fiduciary duty. The
Board, officers, committee members, and management employees have the
responsibility of administering the affairs of /jidvance Transit honestly and prudently, and
of exercising their best care, skill, and judgment for the sole benefit of Advance Transit.
Those persons shall exercise the utmost good faith, in all transactions involved in their
duties, and they shall not use their positions with Advance Transit or knowledge gained

The interests of the organization must havefrom their position for their personal benefit,
the first priority in all decisions and actions.

B. Annual Questionnaire. Each birector. Board committee member, the
Executive Director, and:all employees of AT| designated by the President, shall annually
complete a questionnaire to provide information on their related entities and persons and
business activities and those of their immediate farnilies as defined by statute, and such
questionnaire shall be reviewed by the President and Secretary'and kept on file at the
office of the Corporation.

C. Pecuniary Benefit Transactions. In the event of a pecuniary benefit
transaction as defined by New Hampshire law in RSA 7:19-a, it shall be the "policy of the
corporation to follow the statute. In the event the corporation or any director becomes
aware of any potential pecuniary benefit transaction as defined by law, the corporation
shall follow the procedures prescribed by lavi and give notice of the transaction to the full
board with notice of its next meeting. At the meeting, the board shall vote on whether the
pecuniary benefit transaction is in the best interest ofthe corporation, after full explanation
thereof and without the director being present and without any director who has had a
pecuniary benefit transaction .within the fiscal year being present. If two-thirds of the
entire board shall vote that the pecuniary benefit transaction is in the best interest of the
corporation, the transaction shall be allowed. Notice of any such pecuniary benefit
transaction the value of which is $5000 ]or m'ore shall be published according to
statute. Notice of all pecuniary benefit transactions shall be given to the Director of



Charitable Trusts of the State of New Harnpshire annually, and individually for those
transactions exceeding $5000.

b. Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest.

1. Individuals covered by this policy have a duty to voluntarily disclose any potential
conflict of interest prior to assuming their responsibilities or at the time the potential
conflict arises. Further, those individuals have a duty to annually disclose potential or
actual conflicts to the Board. Immediate family members are also included for disclosure
purposes. Immediate family members are defined as: spouse, child, parent, sibling, and
any person living in the sameihousehold as persons with responsibilities to transact the
affairs of AT. Any possible conflict of interest on the part of any director, officer, Board
committee member, employee, or selected volunteer of AT shall be disclosed in writing to
the Board and_made a matter of record through the annual procedure set out in the
conflicts of interest policy and also when the interest, involves a specific issue or
transaction before the Board:

2. The Board will comply with all the requirements of New Hampshire law.^with
respect to conflicts of interest,'including but no! limited to:

(i)' the requirement of a two-thirds (2/3) vote of disinterested directors when
the financial benefit^to the director or officer is $500 or more in a fiscal year,

(ii) the advance notice requirements when the benefit exceeds $5,000 in a
fiscal year.

(iii) the limitations on participation by the affected director,.officer. Board
committee merriber,' employee or selected volunteer of AT in the decision of
the Board,

and ■

(iv) the requirement to create a record of the action in the minutes.

D. Role of the Executive Committee. The Executive Cornmittee shall review
the conflicts of interest policy at least anrjiually and oversee the Conflict of Interest
disclosure process assuring that individuals covered by this policy are informed of. its
disclosure requirements consistent with applicable laws. The Executive Comrhittee shall
annually conduct a comprehensive survey'of the individuals covered by this policy and
analyze other relevant information which may provide information that a potential or actual
conflict of interest exists. The Executive Committee will then report the results of this
process to the Board.
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POLICY NUMBER: GLR 0574256 06

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE

COMMERCIAL OENERAL LIABILITY

^ CG 20 10 0413
•  ■ I

POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - OWNERS, LESSEES OR
CONTRACTORS - SCHEDULED PERSON OR

ORGANIZATION

This endorsement modifies Insurance provided under the following:

I  ̂ I
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABIUTY COVERAGE PART

.SCHEDULE

Name Of Additional Insured Person's)
Or Oraanlzatfon's)

•; J • ■

Locatlon(8) Of Covered Operations

ON FILE WITH THE COMPANY

•r

t

Information required to complete this Schedule. H not shown above, will be shown In the Declarations.

A. Section II - Who Is An Insured is amended to
Include as an addrtional Insured the personis)
or organization's) shown In the Schedule, but
only with rcopool to liability for "bodily Injury",
"property damage" or "personal and adver*
tislng injury" caused, in whole or In part, by;
1. Your acts or omissions; or •

2. The acts or omissions of those acting on
your behalf;

in the perfonnance of your ongoing operations
for the additional Insured's) at the location's)
designated above.

However:

1. The Insurance afforded toisuch additional
Insured only applies to the extent permitted
by law; and

2. If coverage provided to the addltlonai in
sured Is required by a contract or agree
ment, the Insurance afforded.to such addi
tional insured will not be broader than that
which you are required by<the pontract or
agreement to provide for such additional
Insured.

CG 20 10 04 13

\Ylth respect to the Insurance afforded to these
addltlonai insurads, the following additional
exclusions apply:

This Insurance does not apply to "bodily injury"
or "property damage" occurring after

1. All work, Including materials, parts or
equipment furnished In connection with
such work, on the project (other than
service, maintenance or repairs) to be
performed by or on behalf of the additional
insured's) at the location of the covered
operations has been completed; or

2. That portion of 'your work" out of which
'  the injury or damage arises has been put to

Its Intended use by any person or organlze-
tlon other than another contractor or sub
contractor engaged in performing opera
tions for a prlncTpa! as a part of me same
project.

C Insurance Services Office. Inc., 2012 Pagei 1 of 2



C. With respect to the insurance afforded to these
additional tnsureds, the following is added to
Section 111 - Ltmtte Of Insurance:

if coverage provided to the additional Insur^ Is
required by a contract or egreernent, the rhost
we will pay on behalf of the .additional Insured
Is the anrx>unt of Insurance; '

1. Required by the contract or agreement; or

Page 2 of 2

2. Availabia under the applicable Limits of
.Insurance shown In the Declarations;

whichever Is less.

This endorsement shall not increase the eppli-
cable Umlts of Insurance shown In the Declara-
doris.

j

O Insurance Services Office, Inc.. 2012 CG2010 04 13



CeiiifiCQlions and Assurnnces . Fiscal Yeor 2023

FEDERAL RSCAL YEAR 2023 CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES FOR FTA

ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS

(Signature pages nlteninle (o providing Certifications nnd Assurances in TrAMS.)

Name of Applicant: jf^C.

Tlie Applicant ccrtifies-to the applicable provisiois of all calegories: {check het-e) _
J,

The Applicant certifies to the applicable provisions of the categories it has selected:

Category

01 Certifications and Assurances Required o

Certincatfon

■Every Applicant

1)2 Public Transportation Agency Safety Plans

03 Tax Liability and Felony Convictions

04 Lobbying

05 Private Sector Protections

06 Transit Asset Management Plan

07 RoJiing Stock Buy America Reviews and Bus Testing

08 Urbanized Area Formuld Grants Program
k

09 Fonnula Grants for Rural Areas

10 Fixed Guidewny Capital Investment Grants and the Expedited
Project Delivery for Capital Investment Grants Pilof Program

11 Grants for Buses and Bus Facilities and Low or No Emission
Vehicle Deployment Grant Programs



Ccrtiftcations and Assurances

12 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities
Programs

13 Stale of Good Repair Grants

14 Infraslnicturc Finance Programs

15 Alcohol and Controlled Substances Testing

16 Rail Safety Training and Oversight

\

17 Demand Responsive Service

Fiscal Year 2023

^18 Interest and Financing Costs

19 Cybersecurity Certi fication for Rail Rol
C^eratioDS.

20 Tribal Transit Programs

21 Emergency Relief Program

ing Stock and

CRRTtmCATIONS AND ASSURANCES SIGNATURE PACK

AFPrRMATION OPAPPLICANT

Nime oriho Appltctne.
/\Dv AwCt T'^/uSI.7, irJC.

BY SIGNING BELOW, oo behitf of the AppUcaol. I declare thai it hu duly autborized me to make these
CertincBliom araj Axsunmces and bind its compliance Thus, U t^ces to comply with all federel bws, regulations,
and requiremenb. follow applicable federal guidance, and comply, with (be Ceitiricalioos and Assurances as *
indicated on the foregoing page applica'bic to each epplicatioo' ib Authorized Rqjtcsenlalive makes to the Federal
Tnmsil Admlnlsiralioa (FTA) in the fedcralTucal year,'irrespective ofwhether Ibe individual that acted on his or
her Applicant's behalf continues to rcpresoU it.

The CertiOcatidos and Aasuraocti the A^ilicanl selecb apply to'each Award for wbkh U now saeics, or may
bter seek fedcnJ asiisance to be awarded by FTA during tbc fcdenil fi^l year.

The Applicaat ofHrms the truthftilness and accuracy of ll«e Certificnliota and Assurances It has sckcled In tl*
slatcmcnb submitted with (his document aud any other submission made to FTA, aud acknowledges that the
Progrua Fraud Civil Remedies Act of i W6,31 U5.C. { 380l| tl seq., aitd imploneoting U^. DOT rcgulatiotts,
"Program Fraud Civil RerucdJes," 49 CFR part 31, apply to any ceilincatioD. assunuice or subroisstoo made to
FTA. The criminal provisions of 18 U.S.C.$ 1001 apply to any certification, assurance, or subrmsskin made to
connection with a federal petolic tnuispdrtntion program authorized by 49 U.S.C. chapter S3 or any other statute



Ccrtificniions and Assurances Fiscal Year 2023

In sicningihis documcni. I dccloic under penalties of perjury thai Ihc Torcgoins Cccliricaiions and Assurancu. and
any Other siaietnerili^^de by ntc on behalf pr.ihe.Appiicani ore tnie'ond accurate.

Signahire.

Name.

D.. 3
aChi;.tt.QU , g O'g'^^horiaed Rrpre^italivc of Applicant



FFY 2022 MASTER AGREEMENT

ACKNOWLEDGEIVIENT OF RECEIPT

The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Federal Fiscal Year 2022 Master Agreement
requires recipients and subrecipients to comply with the requirements contained in the
agreement in order to receive Federal funds. The language contained in the Master
Agreement must be incorpo^ed into the admudstiBtioQ of the agreement my agency has
with the New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT^.

I acknowledge receipt of the FFY 2022 FedcrL Transit Administration (FTA) Master
Agreement and understand agreement is referred to in my agency's agreement with
NHDOT by reference. The Master Agrtcmen
agreement

Name of Agency

remains in force for the term of the

SI

Name of Authorized OflQcial P/t. turc

Date



i>f>jimitfnefmaoa

Offlte of Labor-Mn nappment Standards

Special Warranty Arrangement

ForAppUcatJon to other Than Urbanl£«d and Over-the>Road BusAcceuibility

Projects

PURSUAHTT0SeCTj0N53331b}0F '
TITLE A9 OF THE U.S. CODE, CHAPTER 53

1  *
Jantjcry3,'201i

The following language shall be made part of the coniroct of essstance by reference In the Federal Transit Actmlnlstration's Master
Agreement as signed by the grantee:

The terms and conditions set forth below shall apply for the protectlm of the (ransportaUoh-rdated employees in the

transportation service area of ̂  ProjecL As a precondition of the rdeaseof assistance by the Grarttee/State Agency to arty
Recipient under the grant, the Grantee shall bind the Recipient to these obligations by Incorporating this arrangement Into tfw

contract of assistance betw^ ihe.Grsntee and the Recipientfs), by referertce. If a Grantee fails to comply with the terms of the

Warranty and falls to bind a Recipient as a prerandldon to the rdease of funds, the Grantee will be a guarantor of the required

protsctions and the Grantee will be required to act as If It were the Recipient of funds unless and until the Grantee Is able to secure

the retroactive agreement of the Recipient to be bound by the terms^of the Warranty.
These protective arrangements are Intended for the benefit of transit employees In the servitt area of the project, who are

considered as third^party benefldaries to the employee protective arrangements Incorporated by referenced In the grant contract

between the U.S. Department of Transportation and the Grantee, and the parties to the rontrM so sipafv by executing that

contract Transit employees are also third par^ beneficiaries to the (rroteclrvearrangements incorporated In subsequent contracts
ofassistance between the Grantee and any Redplent. Employe^ or their representative, mayassertclalmswithrespecttothe

protective arrangements urtder this provision.,This clause creates no Independent cause of action agalnst'the United States

Government. ' '

The term "service area," as used herein, includes the geographic area over which the Project is operated and the area whose
poputatlon is served by the Project, including adjaoent areas affected by the Project The term "Ihiion " as used herein, shall refer to

any labor organization representing employee providing public transportation services In the service area of a Project assisted
under the grant The term 'employee,* as used herein, shall include individuais who may or rnay not be represented by a Union.

The term "Recipient.* as used hettin, shall ref^ to any employerfs) receiving transportation assistance under the grant The term
'Grantee,* as used herein, shall refer to the applicant for as^stancc, a Grantee which receives assistance is also a Recipient

Where the Department of Labor (the Department] dooms it necessary to modify the requlremehdof this Special Warranty

Arrangement so that a particular Grantee or Recipient can o>ntinue to satisfy the requirenrents of the statute, the Department will

issue a supplementary certification letter setting forth the alternative provisions to be included In the contract of a»$tance

between the Grantee and FTA, by reference. Tliesc terms will be made binding upon the particular Grantee or Recipient, along with.

these terms and conditions, for each subsequent grant of assistance until withdrawn in writing by the Department[  \ /
{l).The Project shall be carried out in such a manner and upon such terms and conditions as will f>ot adversely affect employes of

tho Recipient arvi of arty other surface public transportation provider In the transportation service area of the PraJecL tt shall be an

obllgallon of the Redpient to assure that any and all transportation services assisted by the Project are contracted for and operated

in such a mcmrrer that tfiey do not impair the rights and Interests of aRected employees. The term 'Project," as used herein, ̂ 11

not be limited to the particuUr hicility, servkci or operation assisted by Federal funds, but shall indude any changes, whether

organizational, operatkmai, technologicai, or otherwise, whkh are a result of the assistance provided. The phrase 'as a result of the
(h-oject.* shall, when used in this arrangement, include events rdated to the Project occurring in anticipation of. during, and
subsequent to the Project and any program of cffldendes or economic related thereto; provided, however, that volume rises and

falls of business, or cfianges in volume and character of employment brou^t about solely by causes other than the fh^Ject
(including any economies or efncicncies unrelated to the Project) are not within the purview of this arrangemenL

An employee covered by this arrangement, who is not dismissed, displaced or otherwise worser^ in his/her position with regard

to employment as a resul^of (he Projkt, but who Is dismissed, displaced or otherwise worsened solety becuisc of the total or ;
partial termination of the Projector exhaustion of Project funding shall not bedcemed eCgtble for a dismissal or.displacement

ailcmancc within the meanl^ of paragraphs (6) and (7) of this arrangement.



(2) Wh«rc emptoyees of a Recipient aro represeniod for coilcctivo ba^inlng purposes, all Pro}ect services provided by diat
Recipient shall bo provided under and in accordance wfth any collective bargaining agreement appitcablo to such employees which

is then in effect This Arrangemwt does not create ony collective bargaining r^tlonship where one does not already exist or
between any Recipient and the employees of another employer, where the Recipient has no collective bargaining relationship with

the Unions representing employees intheser^c area, the Recipient will not lake any action which impairs or Interferes with the
rights, privileges, and benefi ts and/or (he preseryatiort or continuatloh of the collective bargaining ri^ts of such employees.

(3) All rights, privileges, and benefits (including pension rt^b and benefits) of employees covered by this arrangement (including

employees having already retired) under ezistlng collective bargaining agreements or otherwise, or under any revision or renewal

thereof, shall be preserved artd continued; provided, however, that such rî ts, privileges and benefi ts which are r>ct foreclosed

from further bargaining under applicable law or contract may be modified by collective bargaining and agreement by the Recipient

and the Union Involved to substitute other rights, privileges and benefits. Unless otherwise provided, nothingin this arrangement

shall be deemed to restrict any rights the Recipient may otherwise have to direct the working forces and manage its business as it

deemed best, in accordance with the applicable collective bargaining agreement. '

(4) The collective bargaining rights of empfoyecs covered by tNs anaLecment, Includirrg the right to arbitrate labor disputes and to
maintain union security and checkoff Birangements, as provided by applicable laws, poNcfcs and/or existing osUective bargaining

agreements, shall be preserved and continued. Provided, however, that this provision shall pot be interpreted so as lo require the
Redf^ent lo ̂ In any such rights which exist by virtue ofao^lective bargaining agreement after such agreement is no longer in
effect

The Recipient agrees that it will bargain collectively with the Union or otherwise arrartge for the continuation of collective

bargaining, af>d that It wifl enter Into agreements with the Union or arrange for such agreements to be entered into, relative to ail

subjects which are or may be proper subjects ofcollective bargaining, II, at any dme; applicable Law or contracts permit or grant lo

employm covered by this arrangement the right to ubTize any economic measures. noUtIng In this arran^sment shall be deemed
to rorM*ln.v th» wnrriv of .u t^h right.

(5)(a) The Recipient shall provide to bD affected'employees sb^ (60) days' notice of intended actions which may result In
displacements or dismissals or rearrangements of the working forces as a result of tho Pibject. in case of employees

represented by a Union, such notice shall be p^ded by certified mall through their representatives. The notice shall contain a full
and adequate statement of the proposed ctrariges, and an estimate of the nurnbcr of employees affected by the intended changes,
artd the number and classiricattons of any jobs within the Jurisdiction and control of the Redpleni, including those In the

employment of any entity bound by this arrangement pursuant to paragraph (2i), available to be filled by such affected employees.
j  • » •

(!i)(b) The procedures of this subparagraph shall apply to cases where notices Involve employees represented by a Union for
collective bargaining purposes. At the request of either the Recipient or the representatives of such employees, negotiations for the

purposes of reaching agreement with respect to the application of the terms and comStions of this arrangerT>ent shall commence

immediately. These negotiations shalllndude determining the selection of forces from among the mass transportatkm employees
who n\aybeaffected as a result of the Prefect, toeslabUshwhiJi such eiviployees shall be ̂viedeiiiployitita'ilfui wtnJiilwyaie

qualified u( uiti be tiaiiinl. if itu agieeiciuni 1$ leadM^ wllhin Iwenly^fiO) days fioni the commencement of rregotiations, any party
to the dispute may submit Che matter to dispirie settlement procedures In accordarKc with paragraph (IS) of this arrangement.

Unless the parties otherwise mutually agree In writing, no change In operations, services, facilities or equipment within the

purview of this paiagraph (S) shall occur until after either 1} an agreement with respect to theappUcatlon of the terms arid
conditions of this arrangement to the intended change(s) is reached; 2) the dedsldn of the arbitrator has been rendered pursuant
to.this subparagraph (b); or 3) an arbitrator selected pursuant to Paragraph (15)Vf this arrangement detenmlnes that the intended
changefsjmaybelnstituledprlortolheflnatizationofimplementlngarrangcments. '

(5)(c) In the event of a dispute as to whether an intended change Within the purview of this paragraph(5) maybe Instituted at the

end of tho 60^y notice period ar)d before an Implementing agreement Is reached or a final arbitration decision Is rendered

pursuant lo subparagraph (b),any Involved party may immediately ̂ mit that issue to arbitrallon under paragraph (IS) of this
arrangement. In any such arbibatlon, the artiitrator shall rely upon the startdards and criteria utilized by the Surbce Transportation

Board (and Its predecessor agency, the Inte^te Commerce Commission) to add^ the "precbnsummatlon' issue In cases
involving employee protections pursuant to 49 U.S.C. Section 11326 (or Its predecessor, Section S(2)(i) of the Interstate Commerce

Act, as amended). If the Recipient demonstrates, as a threshold matter in'any such arbitration, that the intended action isa

trackage rights, lease proceeding or similar transaction, and not a merger, acquisition, consolidaticn. or other simllartransactlon,

the burden shall then shift to the invotved labor orpnizatiorKs) to prove that under the standards and criteria referenced abowe,

the intended action should not be permitted to beirtsiituted priof.to'the effective date of a negotiate or arbitrated implementing
*  I C *

agreement if the Recipient fails to demonstrate that the intended action is a trackage rights, ̂ se proc^ing. or simitar
transaction. It shall be the burden of the Recipent to prove tt\at under the standards and criteria referenced above, Oie intended

action shodd be permitted to be irudtuted prior to the effective date of a negotiated or arbitrated implementing agreement. For

purposes of any such arbitration, the time period within whldi the parties are to respond to the list of potential arbitrators



uibmitted by the American Arbitration Aisodation Service shall bo tive (S) days, the notice of hearing may be given orally or by
facsimile, the hearing will beheld promptly, theoward of the arbitrator shall be rendered promptly and, unless otherwise agreed to

by the parties. r>o later than fourteen (14) days from the date of dosing tl)e hearings, with Hve (5) additional days for mailing if
posthearing briefs are requested by cither party. The intended chan^ shall not be Irutliuted during (he pendency of any
arbitration proceedings under this subparagraph (c).

(S)(d) if an Inter>ded change within the purview of this paragraph (5) is instituted before an implementing agreement Is reached ora

final arbitration dedsion is rendered pursuant to subparagraph (b), all employees affected shall be kept financially whole, as If the

noUced and Implemented action has not taken place, from the lime they are affected until the effective date of an Implementing,,
agreement or final arbitration dcdslon. This protection shall be in addition to the protective period defined In paragraph (14) of this'

arrangement, which period shall begin on the effective date of the Implementing agreenient or firul arbitration decision rer>dered

pursuant to subperagmph (b).

An employee selecting, bidding on, or hired to fill any position established as a result of a noticed and implemented action prior to
Che consummation of an ImplemenllngagreemenI or final arbitration decision shall accumulate no benefits under this
arrangement asa result thereof during that period prior to the consummation of an implementing agreement or final arbitration
dedsion pursuant to subparagraph (b).

(6}(a) Whenever an employee, retained in service, recalled to service, or employed by the Recipient pursuant to paragraphs (5), (7)
(c), or (16) hereof Is placed In a worse position wltfi respect to compensation as a result of the Projecl, ihe employee shall be

considered a 'displaced employee", and shall be paid a monthly 'displacement allowance' to be determined In accordance with

this paragraph. Said dlsplacemerit allowrancc shall be paid each displaced employee during the protective period so long as the

employee Is unable, In the exercise of his/her seniority rights, to obtain a position produdng compensation equal to or exceeding

the compensation the employee received In the position from which the employee was displaced, adjusted to reflect subsequent

general wage adjustments, including coct of living adjustments where prt>vjdcd for.

(6)(b) The displacement allowarKc shall be a monthly atlowarKc determined by computing the total compensation received by the

employe, Including vacation allowancesandmonthlycompensatlon guarantees, aixl his/her total time paid for during the last

twelve (12) months in whkh the employee performed compensated service moro than fifty per centum of each such months, based

upuri lite employee's normal work schedule. Immediately preceding (he date of hls/herdisplacement as a result ol the Project, and

by dividing separately the total compensation end the inml lime paid^ for hy twelve, thereby producing the average monthly
compensation and the average monthly time paid for. Such allowanco shall be a<|usted to reflect subsequmt general wage

adjustmenb, mduding cost of living adjustments e4>ere provided for] If the displaced employee's compensation In his/her current
position is less In any month during his/her protective period than the aforesaid avera^ compensation (adjusted to r^ect
subsequent general wage ac^ustments. Including cost of living adjustmenb where provided ioi), the employee shall be paid the

dlFferefwe, liess compensation forany time tost on account of voluntary absences to the extent that the employee IsnM avallatrie
for service equivalent to his/her average monthly time, but the employee sttall be compensated In addition thereto at the rate of

the current position tor any time worked In excess of the average monthly time paid for. if a displaced employee bib to exercise

his/her seniority righb to secure another position to which the employee Is entitled under the then existing collective bargaining
agreement, and which carries a wage rate and compensation exceeding that of the position which the employee elecb to retain,

the employee shall thereafter t>e treated, for the purposes of this paragraph, as occupying the position the employee elecb .to

decline.

(6)(c) The displacement allowance shall cease prior to the expiration of the protective period In the event of the displaced

employee's resignation, death, retirement, or dismissal for cause In accordance vdth any labor agreement appUcabtc to his/her

employmenl.

'(7)(a)Wheneveranyempioyce is laid off or otherwise deprived ofemploymentasB resultofthe Project, in aaordance with any

coHective bargaining agreement applicable to his/her employment, the employee shall be condderod a 'tflsmissed employee' and

shall be paid a monthly dismissal allowance to.be determined in accordance with tNs paragraph. Said dismissal allowance shall

first be paid each disnussed employee on the thirtieth (30th) day follc^ng the day on tivhich the employee is "dismissed' and shall
continue during the protective period, as follow:

Employee's length of service
prior to arivpfse effort Period of protection

1 day to 6 years equivalent period

6 years or m ore 6 years

The monthly dismissal allowance shall t>o equivalent to one-tv/elfth |l/12lh) of the total compensation received by the employee in

the last twelve (12) months of his/her employmenl in whkh the employee performed compensation service more than fifty per

centum of each such month based on the employee^ normal work schedule to the date on which the employee was first deprived



of employment as« result ofthe Project Such aUowdnce shall be adjusted to reflect subsequent general wage adjustments.
irKluding cost of living adjustments where provided for.

{7)(b) An employee shall be regarded as deprived of employment and entitled to a dismissal allowance when the position the

employee h<Ms Is abolished as a result of the Project, or when the position the employee holds isrmt abolished but the employee
loses that position as a result of the exercise of srmlorlty rights by an emplo^ whose position IsaboQshedasa result of the Project
or as a result of the exercise of seniority rights by other employees brought about as a result of the Project, and the employee is

unable to obtain another'posltlon, either try the exercise of the employee's seniority rights, or through the Recipient, in accordance

with subparagraph (e). In the absence of proper nodce followed by an agreenSentor decision pursuant to paragraph (s) hereof. no
employee who has been deprived of employment as a result of the Project shall be required to exercise his/her seniority rights to
secureanotherpositionlnordertoquati^roradismlssalQltowancehereunder. •

(7)(c) Each employee receiving a dismissal allowance shall keep the Recipient informed as to his/her current address and the
current name and address.of any other person by whom the employe may be regularly employed, or If (he employee is self-
employed.

(7](d) The dismissal allowance shall be paid to the regularly assigned Incumbent of the position abolished. If the position of an
employee Is abolished when the employee 1$ absent frorn service, the employee will be entitled to the dismissal oUowanca when
the employee is available for service. The employee temporarily filling said position at the time It was abolished vrill be 0ven a
dismissal allowance on the basis of that position, until the regular employee Is available for service, and thereafter shall revert to

the employee's previous status and will be ̂ven the protectloru of the agreement In said position, if any are due him/her..

(7)(ej An employ(w receiving a dismissal allowance shall be subject to call to return to service by the employee's former employer;
notification shall be In accordance with the terms of the then-existing collective barplning agreement if the employee is

represented by a union. Prior to such call to return to woii by his/hef| employer, the employee may be required by the Recipient to
(accept reasonably comparable employment (or which the emplbyeo Is physically and mentally qualinod, or for wNch the employee
can become qualified after o reasonable tralr^hg or retraining pcrlodj provided It docs not require a change In residence or Infringe
upon the employment rights of other employees under tfien-exIsUng collecdvo bargaining agreements.

(7)(n When an employee who Is receivinga dismissal allowance apin commences employmmt in accordance vrilh subparagraph
{e} above, said allowance shall cease while the employee Is so reemployed, and iKe period of time during which the employee Is so
reemployed shall be deducted from the total period for which the employee Is entitled to receive a dismissal allowance. (Xiring (he

time of such reemployment, the employee shall be entitled to the protections of this arrangement to the extent they are ap{>ltcabie.j  1
(7}(g) The dismissal allowarKe of any employee who is otherwise employed shall bo reduced to the extent that the employee's
combined monthly earnings from such other employment or self-employment, any benefits received Irbm any unemployment
insurance law, and his/her dismissal allowance exceed the amount u^ which Ore employee's dismissal allowance is basedl Such
employee, or Ns/her union representative, and the Redplent shall apee upon a procedure by which the Recipient shall be kept
currently Informed of the earnings of such em^oycc in employment other than with the employee's former employer, Including
self-employment, and the benefits received. ^ ^

(7Kh) The dismissal allowarrce shall cease prior to the expiration of the protective period in the event of the failure of the ̂ ployee-
without good cause to return to service in accordance with the applicable laboragreement, or to accept employment as provided
under subparagraph (e) above, or in the event of the employee's resignation, death, retirement, or dismissal for cause in
accordance with any tabor agreement applicable to his/her employrnent.

(7){i) A dismissed employee recetving a dlsn^ssal allowance shall actively seek and not refuse other reasonably comparable
employment offered him/her for wHch the employee Is physically and mentally quatiRed ar>d does notrequireachangeinthe
employee's place of residence. Failure of the dismissed.emplbycc to comply with this obligation shall be grounds for
discontlnuancoofthecmployee'saliowancei'pfovidedthatsald.dlsmlssalallowanceshallriotbedtscDntinucduntilfinai '

determination Is made ellhcr by agreement between the Recipient and the employee or Ns/her representative, or by final ^

arbitration decision rendered In accordance with paragraph (15) of tiu arrangement thai such emptoyee did not comply with this

obligation.

(8) In determining ler^gih of service of a displaced or dismissed employee for purposes of (Ns arrangement, such employee shall be
^en full service credits in accordarKC with the reconls and tabor agreements applicable to him/her and the employee shall be
given additional service credits for each month In which the employee receives a dismissal or displacement allowance as if (he
employee were continuing to perform servkxs in his/her former position.

'  / I
(9) No employee shaQ be entitled to either a displacement or dismissal allowance under paragraphs (6) or (T) hereof because of the
abolishment of a position to which, at some future time, the employee could have bid, been transferred,or promoted-



(10) No ̂ployec rcccMngsdismiiul or displacement sliowaiice shall be dep'nved. during the employee's protected period, of
sny rights, privileges, or benefits attaching to his/her employmcht. including, without limitation, group life insurance,
hospitalization and medical care, free transportation for the employee and the employee's family, sick leave, continued status and
partldpatiqn under any disability or retirement program, and such other employee benefits as Railroad Retirement, Sodal Security,

Workmen's Compensation, and unemployment compensation, aswril as any other benefits to whkh the employee may be entitled

under the same conditions and so long as such benefits continue to be accorded to other employees of Che bargaining unit, In

active service or furioughed as the case may be.

(U)(a) Any employe covered by this arrangement who Is retained Inl the service of his/her employer, or who Is later restored to
service after being enliUed to r^ive a dismissal aliowarscc, and who Is required to change the point of his/her employment in
order to retain or secure active employment with the Recipient in accordar>ce with this arrangement, and wt>o is required to move

his/her place of residence, shall be reimbursed for all expenses of moving his/her household and other personal effects, for the
trav^lng expenses for the employee and members of the employee's Immediate family, including living expenses for the employee

and the employee's Immediate family, and for his/her own actual wage loss during the limp necessary for such transfer and for a

reasonable dme thereafter, not to exceed five (S) working days. The cxaa extent of the responsibility of the Recipient under this

paragraph, and ttw ways and means of transportation, shall be agreed upon In advance between the Recipient end the a ffected

employee or the employee's representatives.

(11)(b) If any such employee is laid off within three (3) years after changln'g his/her point of employment in accordance with

paragraph (a) hereof, and elects to move his/her place of mslderKe back to the ori^rusl p^nt of employment, the Recipient shall
assume the expenses, losses and costs of moving to the same extent protridcd In subparagraph (a) of this paragraph (LI) and

paragraph (I2)(a) hereof.

(11)(c) No cbim for relmbursment shall be paid under the provisions of this paragraph utiess such dalm Is presented to the
Redplent in writing within ninety (90) days after the dale on which the expenses were Incurred. ■ -

(ll}(d) Except as otherwise provided In subparagraph (b), changes iJplacc of resident, subsequent to the initial changes as a
result ol the Project, wttlch are not a result ol the Project but grow out of the rrormal exerdse of seniority rights,'shall not be

considered within the purview of ibis paragraph.

(12)(a) The following conditions shall apply to the orient they are applicable In each instance to any employee who is retairted in

the service of ̂  employer (or who is later restored to scr^ce after being entitled to receive a dismissal allowance), who Is required
to change the point of his/her employment as a result of the Project, and Is thei^ required to move his/her place of residence.

'  [ '
If the employee is under a contract to purchase his/her home, the Redplent shall protect the employee against loss under such

contract, and in addition, shall relieve the employee from any furtherobllptlon thereunder.

If the employee holds an unexplred lease of a dwelling occupied as the employee's home, the Recipient shall protect the employee

from all loss ar>d cost In securing the canceliadon of said lease.

^(12)(b) No dalm for loss shall be paid under theprovidons of this paragrai^ unless such ̂ alm Is presented to the Recipient in
wridng within one year after the effective date of (he change in residence.'

(L2)(c) Should a controversy arise In respect to the value of the home, the loss sustained in Its sale, the loss under a contract for

pufthaM, loss and cost In securing tcrminadon of a lease, or any other ques^ in connection with these matters, It shall be

dedded through a joint conferersce between the employee, or his/her union, and the Redplent. In the event they are unable to

agree, the dispute or controversy may be referred by the Redpient or| the union to a board of competent real estate appraisers
selected in the following manner one'(i) to be selected by the representati^ of the employee, and one (1) by the Redpient, and
those two, if unable to agree within tMrty(30) days upon ihcvaluadon, shall endeavor by agreement with ten (10) days thereafter

to select a third appraiser or to agree to a method by'which a third appraiser shall be selected, and falling such agreement, either

party may request the State and local Board of Real Estate Commissioners to designate within ten (10) days a ̂ ird appraiser,

whose desigrtatlon will be blndir>g upon the pities and whose jurisdiction shall be limited to determination of the issues raised in

this paragraph only. A decision of a majority of^the appraisers shall be required and said decision shall be final, binding, and
condusive. The compensation and expenses of the neutral appralscr|induding expenses of the appraisal board, shall be t>ornc
equally by the parties to the proceedings. All other expenses shall be paid by the party incurring them, (nduding the compensation

of the appraiser selected by such party.

(J 2)(d) Except as otherwise provided in paragraph (UXb) hereof, changes in place of residence, subsequent to the Initial changes as

a result of the Rroject, which are not a result of the Project but grow out of the normal cxcrdsc of senioriiy rights, shall not be



conddered wdthin the purvfew of this paragraph.

(i;i)(e) "Change in residence* means transfer to a worit location wduch Is either (A) outside a radius of twenty (20) miles of the

cmployeo's former work location and farther from the employee's resfderKe than was hls^er former work location, or (B) b more

than thirty (30) normal highway route miles from the employee's residence and also farther from his/her resldersce than was the
emptoyM's fpimerworktocBllon.
/  ■ ,

(I3)(a) A dismissed employee er^tltlcd (o protection under this arran^mont may, at the emptoyM's option within twenty-one (21)
days of his/her dismissal, resign and (in lieu of all other benefits and protections provided in this arrangement) accept a lump'sum
payment computed in accordat>ce with section (9) of the Washlngtori Job Protection Agreement of May 1936:

lonfth of Snfvkn finpa ration Atlowancn

1 year and less than 2 years 3 months' pay

2"*"*3*6""

5---"10»i2**

10-"-"l5"12"*

15 • ■ over 12 " "
/

In the case of an employee with less than one year's service. Hve days' pay, computed by multiplying by 5 the normal dally earnings
(including regularly scheduled overtime, but ̂ uding other overtime payments) received by the employee in the position last
occupied, for each month In which the employee performed service, will be paid as the lump urrh.

' V

Length of service shall be computed as provided in Section 7(b) of the WasHngton Job Protection Agreement, as loltbws:

f=or the purposes of this arrangement, the len^ of service of the employee shall be determined fr^ the date the employee last
acquired an'employment status wfth the empt^hg carrier and the employee shall be given credit for one month's service for each
month in which the mployee performed any service (In any capacity whatsoever) and twelve (12) such months shall be aedited as
one year'sservlce. The employment status of an employe shall not be Interrupted by furlough In instances where the employee

has a right to and does return to service when called. In detem^nlnglcngth of service of an mployee acting as an officer or other

official representative ol an employee organization, the mployee wilt be given credit for perfonning sendee while so enga^ on

leave of absence from the service of a carrier.

(13)(b) One month's pay shall be computed by muldptying by 3U the nonnai daily earnings (including regularly scheduled overtime,
but ecciuding other overtime payments) recei^ by the employee m the poslUon last occupied prior to time of the employee's
dbmissoi as a result of the Project.

(14) Whenever used herein, unless ihe context r^uiresotherwlse, the term 'protective period* means that period of time during

which a displaced or dismissed employee b to be provided protection hereunder and extends.from the date on which an employee

is displaced or dismissed to the expiration of ̂  (6) years therefrom, provided, however, that the protective period for any
particular employee during which the employee Is entitled to receive the benefits of these provisions shall not continue for e longer

period foUovring the date the employee was displaced or dismissed than the employee's len^ of service, as shown by the records
and labor agreements applicable to his/her employment prior to the date of Ihe employee's displacement or dismissal.

(15)(a) In the event that cmployec(s} arc represented by a Union, any dispute, claim, or grievance arising from or relating to the

interpretation, application or enforcement of the provisions of this arrangement, rtot otherwise governed by paragraph 12{c], the

Labor-Management Relatioris^, asamcnded, the R^Iway Labor Act, as amended, or by Impasse resolution provisions In a

collective bargaining or protective arrangement involving the Recipient ar>d the Union, whkh cannot bo settled by the parties

thereto within thirty (30) days after the dispute or controversy arises] may be referred by any such party to any final and binding
disputes setUement procedure acceptable to the parties. In the event they cannot agree upon such procedure, the dispute, claim, '

or grievance may tre ̂ bmi tted at the written request of the Recipient or the Union to fiiul and binding arbl tQtion. Should the
partiesbeunablebagreeupontheselectlon of a neutral arbitrator within ten (10) days, any party may request the American

Arbitration Association to furnish, from among arbltn)tors who are (hen available to serve, Tive (5) arbitrators from which a neutral

artiitrator shall be selected. The parties shall, within ffve (5) days after the receipt of such list, detennine by lot the order of

eUminatlon and tiicrcaftcr each shall, in that order, alternately eliminate one name until only one, name remairu. The remaining

person on the list shall be the neutral arbitrator. Unless otherwiu provided, in (he case of arbitra lion proceedings, under paragraph

(5) of this arrangement, the arbitration shall commence within fifteen (IS) days after scliKtion or appomtm'ent of the neutral
arbitrator, and the dcdsion shall be rendered within forty-live (45) days after the hearing of the dispute has been concluded and the

record closed. The decision shall be Gnat and biodi ng. All the conditions ol the arrangement slrall continue to be effective during

the arbitration proceedrr^s.



(ISHb) The compensation and expenses of the neutral arbitrator, and^any other join^ irKurred expenses, shad be borne equally by
the Unlon(s) and Recipient, and all other expenses shall be paid by the party incurring them.

(lS)(c) In the event that employee(s) arc not represented by a,Union, any dispute, claim, or grievance arising from or relating to the
interpretation, eppifcatfon or enforcement of.the provisions of this arrangement whkh cannot be settled by the Recipient and the
employce(s) within thirty (30) days after the dispute or controversy arises, may be referred by any such party to any final and
binding dispute settlement procedure acceptable to the parties, or ln|the event the parties cannot agree upon such a procedure,
the dispute or controversy may be referred to the Secretary of Labor for a fir«l and bir*fing determlnallon.

'  ** I
(lS)(d) In (ho event of any dispute as to whether or rwl a particular employee was affected by the Proicct, It shall be tbe obUgation
of the employee or the representative of the employee to Identify thcjproject and specif the pertJr>ent facts of ihe ProJect reUed
upon. It shall (hen be the burden of the Recipient to prove that factors other than the Project affected the employee.'The claiming
employee shad prevail if It Is esUbdshed that the Project had an effect upon the employee even if other factors may also have
aRcctedihocmployet(SeeHodgson'sAffldavHlnCivHActlonNo.fl25-71). i

(IS) The Recipient will be flnancially responsible for'the application of these conditions and will make the necessary arrangements

so that any employee covered by this arrangenrent may dte a written claim of Its violaUon, through the Union, or directly if the ,
employee Is outside the bargaining unit, with the Recipient within sixty (SO) days of the date the employee Is terminated or bid off
as a fMuitof the Project, or within eighteen (ifl) months of the date the employee's position with respect to his/her employment is

Otherwise worsened as a result of the Project In the latter case. If thejevents ̂ ng rise to the claim have occurred over an
extended period, the 18-moflth UmltaUon shall be.measured from the bst such event No benefits shad be payable for any period
prior to six (6) months from thedate of the filing of any cbim.Uniess such dalms are filed with the Recipient within said time
limitations, the Recipient shad thereafter t>e relieved of all IbbilltJes and obligations related to the ctolm.

The Recipient will fully honor the claim, making appropriate payments, or will give notice to tho claimant or his/her representative
of the basis for denyfngor modifying such claim, ̂ Ing reasons therefore, if the Recipient fa,R$ to horror such dalm, the Union or
rron<bargalrdngunli employee may Invoke the follovdng proc^ures for further Joint investigation of the claim by ̂ vlng notice In
writing. Within ttn (10) days from the receipt of such notfce, the parties shad exchange such factual material as may be requested of
them relevant to die cflspoddon of the claim and shall Jointly take such steps as may be necessary or desirable to obtain from any

third party such addldonal factual materials as may be relevant. In the event tho Redplent rejects the claim, the dairn may be
processed to arbitration as herelnabove provided by paragraph (IS).

(17) Nothing in this orrangcfflent shad be construed as depriving any employee of any rights or benefits which such employee may

have under existing employment or codeclive bargaining agreements or otherwise; provided that there shall be no dupllciatlon of
benefits to eny employee, and. provided.further, that any benefit under this arrangement shall be construed to include the
conditions, responsibiUdes, and obligations accompanying such benefit. This arrangement shall not be deemed a waiver of any
rights of any Union or of any represented employee derived from anyjOlhcr ngreemen t or provision of fedemi, state or local law.
(18) During the employee's protective period, a dismissed employee shad. If the employee so requests. In writing, be granted
priority of employment or reemployment to fid any vacant position vrithin thejurlsdiction ai>d control of the Rcdplcnt reasonably •
comparable to that which the employee held when dismissed. Including those in the employment of any entity bound by this
arrangement pursuant to paragraph (21) herelh, for which tho employee Is, or by training or retraining can become, qualified; not.
however, In contravention of collectfve bargaining agreements relate^ thereto, in die event such employee requests such training
or re-training to fill such vacantposition, tho Recipient shall provide for such training or re-tralningatno cost to (he employee. The
employee shall be paid the salary or Irouriy rate provided for in the applicable collective bargaining agreement or otherwise
established In personnel policies or practices for such pod lion, plus any displacement allowance to which the employee may be
otherwise entitled, if such disntissed employee vrho has made such r^uest fads, without good cause, within ten (10) days to accept
an offer of a position comparable to that wfuch the employee held when dl^issed for which the employee is qu^lfled, pr for which
the employee has satisfactorily completed such training, the employe shall, effective at the expiration of such ten-day period,
forfeit ad rights and benefits under this arrang^cnt.

As betvrcen employees who request employmCTt pursuant to this paragraph, the following order where applicable s^d prevail In
hiring sud) employees:

(a) Employees In the craft or class of the vacancy shall be given priority over emplc^rees wltiroul seniority in such gaft or class;

(b) As between employees having seniority In the craft or class of ihC|yacancy, the senior employees, based upon thefr service In
that craft or dass, as shown on the appropriate seniority roster, shad prevail over Junior employees;

(c) As between employees not having seniority In the craft or dass of ̂the vacaitcy, the senior employees, based upon their service in
the crafts or dasses in vriUch they do have seniority as shown on the appropriate seniority rosters, shad prevail over junior

employees. ,•



(19) The Recipieni will post, in ̂  pfomineni and accessible place, a notice stating that the Recipient has received lederal assisunce
under the federal Transit statute and Has agreed to comply with the ̂trqvisionsof <9 U.S.C.. Section 5333|b). This notice shall also

specify the terms and conditions set forth herein for the protection ofjemployees. The Recipient shall ntainiain and keep on file all
relevant books and records in sufTicieni detail as to provide the basic information necessary to the proper application,

administration, and enforcement of this arrangement and to the proper determination of any claims arising thereunder.

(20) In the event the Project is apptwed for assistance under the statute, the foregoing terms and condidons shall be mode part of
the contract of assistance between the federal government and the applicani for federal funds and between the applicant and any

recipient of federal funds: provided, however, that this arrangement ̂all not merge into the contract of assistance, but shall be
independently binding and enforceable by arid upon the parties thereto.'and by any covered employee or his/her representative, in
aaordance with'its terms, nor shali any other employee protective agreement merge into this arrangement, but each shall be

independently binding and enforceable by and upon the parties thereto, in accordance with its terms.

(21) This arrangemerl shall be binding upon the successors and assigns of the parties hereto, and no provi$ions.|terms. or
obligations herein contained shall be affected.'modlfied. altered, or c^nged in any respect whatsoever by reason of the
arrangements made by or for the Recipient to manage and operate the system.

Any person, enterprise, body, or agency, whether publicly - or privately-owned, which shall undertake the rnanagcment. provision
and/or operation of the Project services or the Recipient's transit system, or any parlor portion thereof, under contractual
arrangementsof any form with the Recipient, its successors or assign's, shall agree to be bound by the terms of this arrangement
and accept the responsibility with the Recipient for full performance of these conditions. As a condition precedent to any such
contractual arrangements, the Recipient shall require such person, enterprise. body or agency to so agree.

(22) In the event of the acquisition, assisted with Federal funds, of any transportation system or services, or any part or portion
thereof, the employees of the acquired entity shall be assured employment, in comparable positinms. within the juri.sriir.ilnn aori

control of the acquiring entity, including positions In the employment of any entity bound by this arrangement pursuant to
paragraph (2i). All persons employed under the provisions of this paragraph shall be appointed m such corriparable positions
without examination, other than that required by applicable federal, sta.te or federal law or collective bargaining agreement, and

shall be credited with their years of service for purposes of seniority. iracaUons. and pensions in aaordance with the recordsof
their former employer and/or any applicable collective bargaining agreements.

(23) The employees cov^ed by this arrangement sliall continue to receive any applicable coverage under Social Security, Railroad
Retirement. Workmen's Compensation, unemployment compensation, and the like. In no event shall these benefits be worsened

as a result of the Project.

(24) In the event any provision of this arrangement is held lo be invalid, or otherwise unenforceable under the federal, state, or
local law. in thecontext of a particular Projecc-tfie remaining provisions of this.arrangement shall noibe aRccted and the invalid or

'unenforceable provision shall be renegotiated by the Recipient and t^ interested Union representatives, if any, of the employees
involved for purpose of adequate replacement under Section 5333(b). II such negotiation shall not result in mutually satisfactory
agreement any party may invoke the jurisdiction of the Secretary of llabor to determine substitute fair and equitable employee
protective arrangements for application only to the particular Project, which shall be incorporated in this arrangement only as
applied to that Project, and any other appropriate action, remedy, or|relief.
(25) If any employer of (he employees covered by (his arrangement shall have rearranged or adjusted its forces in anticipation of
•the Project, with the effect of depriving an employee of benefits lo which the employee.should be entitled under this arrangement,
the provisions of this arrangement shall apply to such employee as of the date when the employee was so aflected.

Last Updated: 02-07-18

Filinyand Forms Reports. Oisclesure.,

ContactUi OLMS En Espafiot

Lawiand Reeulations About



Offkc of Laber*M«nagem«nt

Standards

An *(enc)r within iht U.S.

Oepanmtni ol Labor

TOO Conslllulion Avt NW

w»sNngion,C)C20210

FEDERAL GOVERNMENTS

Whiio House

Coronavlrus Resources

LABOR DEPARTMENTG)

About OOL

Guidance Search

Severe Storm and Flood Recovery AssistanceEspanol

Disaster Recovery Assistance

OisasterAssistance.eov

USA.gov

No Fear Ad Data

U.S. Office of Special Counsel

Office of Inspector General

ABOUT THESITE0

Freedom of Information Act

pisclaimers

Piug-lns Used on 00l.gov

Accessibility Statement

Subscribe to the OOL Ne%vsletter

Read the OOL Newsletter

Emergency Accountability Status Link

A to Z Index

r



{  ■

FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 07/18/2022

FTA and 2 CFk 200 Agreement

Name of Awarding Agency: Federal Transit Admlntsirallon (FTA)

Name df Recipient Agency: New Hampshire. Department of Transportation (NHDOT)

Name of Subreciplent/Contracting Agency: ylrfja/rce Transit, Inc.
Advance Transit, Inc.. shall comply with all applicable federal Jaws, regulations, and
requirements as outlined in the most recent Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Master
Agreement and Federal Certifications and Assurances. This award includes information,required
by 2 CFR Part 200 as follows;

FTA awnrd proicct description: (As requiredlo u
Tronsparenof Ad (FFATA)

Amount: $6,404,000

Catalog.of Federal Dom^ic Asisistonce (CFDA]

raponsive lo the Federal Funding Accountabillfy and

number: 20.509

FTA Award Name: FTA SECTION 5311 (RURAL) PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION PROJECT

SOLICITATION

Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN):

Federal Award Date: 9/8/22

ra-2021-017

Contact information for sub-awarding officia :

Name: Michelle L. Winters Title: Director of Aeronautics, Rail '& Transit
Email: Michellc.L.Winters@do^.nh.gov Phone: 1503-271-2449 - Director
Is award for research and development? No-
NHDOT-s cost rate for the federal award: N/A,

Subrecipieht/Contractor Information:

Subrccipient/Contractor Name: Advance Transit, Inc.

Subrccipicnt/Contractor SAM.GOV I.D.: XRDYJ3TWHTZ5

Name of authorizing subrecipieht/contracting official: Mattliew Osbom '

Title of authorizing subrccipient/contracting official: President
Federal Clauscs:,N/A v. - '

Master Agreement/Certifications and Assurances: Yes
Subrccipient/Contractor Federal indirect cost rate: N/A
(An approvedfederally recognised indirect cost rale negotiated between the subrecipient/cbnlractor and the Federal
Government or. ifno such rale exists, either a rale negoliaied between the pass-through entity and the subrecipieni
(in compliance with this part), or a De /Kinlmis indirect cost rate as defined in §200.414 Indirect. (F&A) costs,
paragraph (f)).

"^Siibaward Period of performance: ^

Start Date: 7/1/23 End Date: 6/30/25



T
FTAand 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 07/18/2022

Total amount of FTA sub-award obligated by this action (contract/amcndmeni):
000For FFY; 2024 Section: 5311 Amount: $6,404,

Total amount of FTA sub-award committed to the subrecipient {oritinai contraci & amendrntms):

For FFY: 2024 Section: 5311 Amount: $6,404,
Pass-through requirements:

The Subrecipicnt/Contractor, Advance transit.

000

^ t

Inc. agrees to meet all requirement imposed by
the pass-through entity (NHDOT) on the subrecipient so that the Federal award is used in
accordance with Federal statues, regulations and the terms and conditions of the Federal award.

The Subrccipient/Contfactor, Advance Transit Inc. agrees to any additional requirements that
the pass-through entity (NHDOT) imposes on tlie subrecipient" in order for the passTthrough
entity (NHDOT) in order for the pass-through entity (NHDOt) to meet its own responsibility to
the Federal awarding agency (FTA) including idcntificationiof any required financial and
pertomance reports.

The <^nhr«-ripipni/Cnntractor. Advance Transit. Inc. agrees to permit the pass-through entity
(NHDOT) and auditors to have access to the subrecipients records and financial statements as
necessai7 fhr the pass-through entity to meet the requirements of this part; and appropriate terms
and conditions concerning closeoul of the subaward.

Date: iM-
ficial: Matthew OsbomName of authorizing subrecipient/contracting o

Title of authorizing subrecipient/contracting official: President

Signature of authorizing subrecipient/contracting official:



InternalRevonue Service

Dbtrlct

Olreotor

Advance Transit, Inc.
Billings Commerce Park
Post Office Box 035
Wilder, VT 05008-0635

Department of the Treasuiy

P.O. Box 16W, GPO Bro6klyn, NY 11202

Dais: MAY 13

Person to Contact:

Patricia Holub"
Contact Telephone Number:
(718) 488-2333
BIN: 22-2558706

Dear Sir or Madam:

Referenoe is made to your r;eque8t for. verification of the
tax exempt status of Advance Trjaneit, Inc.

A determination or ruling letter Issued to an orcanisction
granting exemption under the In'ternal Revenue Code remains in
effect until the tax exempt ata'tus has been terminated, revoked
or modified.

C^r records indicate that exemption was granted as shown below.

Sincerely yours,

Tatricta Holub
Manager, Customer
Service Unit

Name of Organization: Advance Transit, Inc.
r

Date of Exemption Letter: February 1985

Exemption granted pursuant to siction 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code.

Foundation Classification (if applicable): Not a private
foundation ae you are an organization described in.sections
509(a)(1) and' 170(b)(l)(A)(vi) of the Internal Revenue Code
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Veroff & Austin
CcrtilVii PuUic AceuununW

StwifMW Ad'cMK A KUitkgmtml Crmullint*

=1716 Solution Group

To the Board of Directors of

Advance Transit. Inc.

Wilder, Vcrmoni

independent Auditors* Report

Report on the Audit of tlic Fiiinncial Statements

Opinion {

We have audited the accompanying financinrstQiemcnts of Advance Tmnsii. Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which
comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30,'2032, and the related slaicments of activities, functional
e^tpenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the nnnncial statements.

In our opinion, the nnancial statements present fairly, in alt material respects, the financial position of Advance
Tmnsii, Inc. as of June 30, 2022, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year (hen ended in
accordance with accounting principlesgenerally accepted in (he United States of America.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and (he standards applicable-to financial audits contained in Covcrnment Auditing Standards, issued, by the
Comptroller General of (he United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for (he Audit of the Financiaf Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of Advance Transit, Inc. and to meet our oiher ethical responsibilities, in aecordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence wc have obtained is sufncienl and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Stntemcnls

Management' is responsible for iho preparation and fair presentation of (he financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted iii the United States of America, and for (he design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the prepantion and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misslatenient, whether due to fraud or crrorJ

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the a^regatc. that raise substantial doubt about Advance Transit, Inc.'s ability to continue as a going
concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor's Responsibilitiesfor the Audit of the Financial Slotenients

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial sintements as a whole arc-free from
material misstatenicnt, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report (hat includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards
will always detect a material misstaicmeni when It c.xists.plte risk of not detecting a material misslatemcni resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may invotye collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of Internal control. Misstatements are' considered material if there ts a substantial
likelihood (hat, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by n reasonable user based
on the financioJ statements. I

PO Qo.v 886.368 River Sifcci, Springfield. VT 05156 802-885-5340 Fo.\ 802-885-4999
■  174 Coun Street, Uconia, KM 03246 603-527-8721 Fw 603-527-818?

Website: w\vu-.vcn)fl'-;iiisiiii.eum



VerofF &; Austin
Ccrtiilwl PiMk' AcNunUiUi

BiuifMSS Advyor* Ic ̂ Uni£cnKi« ComdUnii

The Solution Group

j  '

In performing nn audit In accordoitcc witlt generally accepted auditing standards and Covtv7;/ne;i/ Auditing
Standards, we;

»

•  Exercise professional judgntent and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

«  . Identify and assess the risks of material mtsstatemeni of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
' * \ f *

error, and design and perfonn audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures Include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding ihe|amouiil5 and disclosures In the financial slotemenls.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design aiidir procedures that are
oppropriaic in the circumsionces, but not for tite purpose of expressing an opinion on (he. effectiveness of
Advance Transit, Inc.'s intentai control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

!

«  Evaltinte (he appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evajuaie lite overall presentation of the financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, (here arc conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about Advance Transit, Inc.'s
period of lime.

ability to continue as a going.concem for a reasonable

We ore required to communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and liming of the audit, significant audit findings^ and certain internal control-related matters (hat we.
identified during the audit. j

Siippletnentary In/onnadoii j • ^
Our audit was cCMtducied for the purpose uf fuiinlMg Jn upiuiun un the fiimnciul sialcuicnix nx ii wholr., Tbe
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal owardsi as required'by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform .Administrative Requirements. Cost Princi/des. and Aiulii Requirements for Federal. Awards, is
presented Ibr purposes ofadditional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such infunnation
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and lelates directly to tlie uudcHylng Hccouiiliiig und other
records used to prepare the financial siaiemcnls. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied -in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare'the financial
slatcmcuts or (o the financial statements themselves, and; other addiiiottal procedures in accordance with auditing
sImidarUs generally accepted in tlic United Slates of America, in our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal
avVards is faliiy slated, in all material riespects, In relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Cbvernnieni Auditing Standards

In accordance with Covernineni Auditing Standur^, we have also issued our report dated August 29, 2022, on oiir
consideration of Advance Transit, Inc.'s internal contipl over financiol reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with cenain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
rei^n is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance ond
the results of that testing, ond hot to provide an opinioW on the effectiveness of Advance Transit, Inc.'s Iniemnl
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral port ofan audit performed in accordance
with Covernment Auditing Standards In considering Advance Transit, inc.'s internal control over financial reporting
and compliance. ' - ! v

(£" ̂ asC/k
•Verorr& Austin PLLC

Laconia, New Hampshire
August 29, 2022
VT Reg. W92.013.';74

PO Do.n R86. 368 River ̂ irwsL Springhcld. VJ 05156 '802-«85-53'll> Kix 802-885-4W
174 Couti SircciJjiconuuNH 03246 603-527-8721 Pax 6031-527-8187

Website; wvv.vcfol't'-iumin.com



ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30,2022 and 2021

A^ETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable

Restricted municipal and contract pledges receivable
Prepaid expenses

Security deposits

Total current assets

PROPERTY AND EQUTPM ENT, net

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll expen^
Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities

LONG-TERM LIABLLmES

Payroll protection program note payable
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

Designated

Capital reserve

Operating reserve

Strategic r^rve

' Undesignatcd

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2022

802,5S|9

1,691,364

253,007

27.715

6,740,064

I j

See Accompanying Notes to Financiol Statements
-3-

2021

3.965.379 $ .3,451,227

494,183

926,066

261,016

5,132,492

10,341,035 •. 10.956.634

17.081,099 $ 16.089.126

71,835 S 159.212

182,828 212,013

- 743

254,663 371,968

673,300

254,663 1,045,268

500.000 459,190

2,000,000 1,900,000

442,700 500,000

L896,773 344,294

11,986.963 11,840,374

16,826,436 15.043.858

17,081,099 s 16,089,126



ADVANCE TRANSIT. INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES /InD CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Year endingJune 30.2022 .*

REVENUE AND SUPPORT

Federal government: section S311, operating
Federal and state govemment: section 5339/5311, capital
Federal govomment: CMAQ, operating
Contract

Municipal ■ *

State of New Hampshire
Donations

Sponsorships
PPP Loan Forgiven

Gain on Sale of Fixed Assets

Other

Net assets released from restrictions

Without

Donor

Restrictions

)

3.913,887 $

241,499

289,8)1
265,645

34,782

92,569'

68,976

682.172

13,550

10,529

With Donor

Restrictions

505,953

1,310,065
381,299

51,806

(2,147,967)

Total

3,913,887

505,953

241.499

1,599.876
646,944

34,782

144,375

■ 68,976
682.172

. 13,550

10,529

Total revenue and support 7,761,387 101,156 7,862,543

EXPENSES

Program services '
Public and other transporatioo

,

'

5,178,666 5.178.666

Total program services 5,178,666 ^  *• i 5,178,666

Support services
General and administrative

Pundraising

829,455

71,844

• -  829.455

'  71.844-
Total supjMrt services 901:299 - 901,299

Total expenses 6,079,965 6,079.965

Change in net assets before transfers 1,681,422. 101,156 1,782,578

Transfers of local share to restricted (45,433) ■  , 45,433 -

Net assets, beginning of year 3,203,484 11,840,374 15,043,858

Net assets, end of year S  4,839,473 $ 11,986,963 S 16.826.436

. .

See AccompanyingNotes to Financial Statements
.4.



ADVANCE TRANSIT, [NC. ,

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITTES AND CHANGES EN NET ASSETS

For the year endingJune 30,2021

Without

• Donor.

Restrictions

With Donor

Restrictions

Total revenue and support

EXPENSES

Program scrwces

Public and other transporatlon
Total program services

•  Support services

Gerteral artd administralive.

Fundraising
Total support services

Total expenses

Change in net assets before transfcn

Transfers of local share to restricted

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

7,509,120

S,4S8,952

5,488,952

779,213

87,981

867,194

6,356.146

1,152,974

(117,179)

2.I67.;589

(312,158)

117,179

12,035,353

Total

REVENUE AND SUPPORT

Federal goverruncnt: section 5311, operating $  4,347,595 S -  $ . 4,347,595

Federal and state government: section 5339/5311 capita - 951,359. 951,359

Federal government; CMAQ.'opcraliog 170,000 170,000

Federal government; RTAP 1,704 -• 1,704

Contract 335.897 691,000- 1,026.897

Municipal 128,850 235,066 ' 363,916

State of Vermont 110,000 - :  110,000

Other 49,704 •  • M9,704

Donations 175,787 - 175,787

Nct.asscts released from restrictions 2,189,583 (2,189,583) . -

(312,158) . 7,196,962

5,488.952

5.488.952

779,213

^.981
867.194

6,356.146

840.816

14,203.042

3,203.484 S 11,840,374. 8 15,043,858

Sec Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
-5-



ADViWCETRANSET. FNC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCnONAL EXPENSES

For the year.ending June 30, 2022

Progr^
Services Support Services

Public 1
and Other General and

Transportation Administrative Fund raising

Total

Support

Services Total

Expenses:

Salaries $  2,469,508 $ • 279,544 S  S 279,544 $ 2.749.052

Payroll taxes 177,020 33,038 - 33,038 210,058

Benefits v 562,102 80,929 • 80,929 643.031

Fuel 205,790 1,428 -• 1,428 207,218

Repairs 221,623 1,676 - 1,676 223,299

Consulting - 265,064 44,038 309,102 309,102

Office 43,142 62,362 27,806 90,168 133,310

[lisurance 277,106 10,688 - 10,688 287,794

Travel 1,767 215 - 215 1,982

Uniforms 19,642 - - ' 19,642

COVID -19 supplies and equipment 3,895 1,278 - 1,278 5,173

Building 132,878 - - - 132,878

Ports inventory 6.113 - - - 6,113

Interest - 8,873 - 8,873 8,873

1,058,080 84,360 - 84,360 1,142,440

Total expenses $  5,178,666 $ 829,455 $  71,844 $ 901,299 $ 0,079,965

See Accompanying Notes to Fmancial Statements
-6-



ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the year ending June 30,2021

Program

Services Support Services

Public 1
arid Other General and

Transportation Administrative ■Fundraising

Total

Support
Services Total

Expenses:
Salaries S  2,566,112 S 394,914 $  J 394,914 $ 2,961,026
Payroll taxes 189.477 39,714 - 39,714 229.191

Benefits 711,195 104,335 - 104,335 81.5,530

Fuel 165,393 973 - 973 166,366
Repairs 215,572 2.569 - 2,569 218,141
RTAP grant 1,704 - - - 1.704
Consulting 0 87,320 49,945 137,265 137,265
Office , 40,967 60.094 38,036 98,130 139,097

Insurance 307,080 9,274 - 9,274 316,354

Travel 1,840 151 - 151 1,991

Uniforms 19,669 • - - 19.669

COVID 19 supplies and equipment 75,271 2,105 - 2,105 77,376
Building 151,180 - - - 151,180
Parts Inventory 27,032

^,764
- ♦ 27,032

Depreciation .1,016,460 - 77,764 1.094,224

Total expenses $  5,488.952 $ 779,213 $  87,981 $ 867,194 $ 6,356,146

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
-7-



ADVANCE TRANStT, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year ending June 30,2022 and 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to

net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization

Gain Ooss) on disposal of equipment

PPP Loan forgiven

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable

(Increase) decrease in municipal and contract pled^ receivable
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses

Oncrease) decrease in inventory

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable

Increase (decrease) in accrued payroll expenses

Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING 'ACTIVITIES |
Purchases of prc^rty and equipment

Proceeds from the sale of equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVES TING ACTl VITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH'

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YeIaR

2022 2021

1.782,578 $ 840,816

1,141,996 1,094.224

(13,550) 4,500

(673,300) . •

(308,417) 306,570

(765,298) 60,625

(4.674) 54.723

(15.032) -  ,

(87,381) 90,615

(29,186) (23.506)

^43^ (40,071)

1,026,993 2,388,496

(535,890) (1.062,442)

23,050 ♦

(512,840) ■  (1,062,442)

514,1.53 I,326,0'54

3,451,226 2,125,172

$  3.965.379 S 3.451,226

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Slatemcnti'
-•S-



ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2022 AND 2021

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

Advance Transit, Inc. (the "Organization'^ is a volun^, not-for-pront corporation incorporated under the
laws of the Stale of New Hampshire and is organized exclusively for charitable and educational purposes
within the meaning of Section 501(cX3) of the Internal Revenue Code pf 1986, as amended. Its mission is
to provide a comprehensive transportation networ1( for the several towns of the Upper Connecticuf River
Valley Region of New Hampshire and Vernioni. 1

NOTE 2 - SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Organization are prepared on -the accrual basis. Under the accrual basis,
revenues and gains are recognized when earned, and expenses and losses are recognized wh^ incurred.
The,significant accounting policies followed by the Organization are described below to enhance the
usefiilness of the financial statements to the reader.

Basis of Presentation

The Organization adheres to the Presentation of Financial Statements for not-for-profit organizations topic
of the Financial Accounting Standards Board C'PASB") Accounting Standards Codification (FASB ASC
958 205). Under FASB ASC 958-205, the Organization is required to report information regarding its
financial position and activities according to two classes of net assets. De^ptions of the. two net asset
categories are as follows;

iVithoiit donor restrictions - Those resources not subject to donor-Imposed restrictions. The Board
of Directors has discretionary control over these resources. Designated amounts rq)resent those net
assets that the board has set aside for a particular purpose.

With donor res&ictions - Those resources

satisfied by action of the Oiganization or by the passage of time.
subject to donor-imposed restrictions that will be

Use of Estimates

The prcparalion'pf llnancial slalcroenls in conformity ̂ ith generally accepted accounting'principlcs requires
management to mr^e estimates and assumphons that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estirnates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all unrestricted, highly liquid
investments with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

The Organization's bank deposit acwunt balances are Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FJDIC")
insured up to $250,000, and any excess amounts are fully collateralized by the depository bank through
use of a variety of sweep accounts .desigtied to maintain Organization deposit balances at levels below the
FDIC coverage limiL

-9-



ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

.  JUNE 30,2022 AND 2021 ' ; i

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLiaES (conUnued)

I

Revenue Recognition |

A substantial portion of the Organi2ation's revenue and support is derived from cost reimbursement
contracts with the States of New Hampshire and Vermont. Revenue and support is recognized when
reimbursable expenditures are incuircd. Payments are received, up to each of the contracts' respective cost
limitations upon the OrgBnization's submittal of;written requests for reimbursement of-allowable
expenditures.

Contributions

Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted (without donor restrictions) or restricted.(with donor
restrictions) suppoit, depending on the exigence and/or nature of any donor restrictions.

All donor-restricted support is reported as an increase
restriction. When a restriction expires, (that is, w

in restricted net assets, depending on the i^re of the
ben 0 stipulated tiinc restriction ends or a purpose ̂

restrictioa is accomplished), restricted net assets are reciassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the
statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions. Contributions that are restricted by the donor
are reported as'increases in unrestricted net assets if
contributions are recognized.

Pledges .

the restrictions expire in the fiscal -year In which' the.

I  I

Unconditional promises to give, including capital campaign pledges, are recognized as revenues in the
period received and as assets, decreases ot liabilities, or expenses depending on the tbrm of the benefits
received. Promises to ̂ ve arc recorded at net realizable value if expected to collected in one'year and at
fair value if expected to be collected in more than one year. CooditionaJ promises to give are recognized
when the conditions on which they depend are substantially met

Management provides for probable uhcollectible amounts through a provision for bad debt expense and an
adjustment to an allowance based on its as^ment of the amounts deemed collectible. -.It is the
Organization's policy to charge off uncollectible receivables when management determines that the
receivable will not be collected. ' |

In order to ensure observance of limitations and restrictions placed on the use of resources available to'
Advance Transit, Inc., separate accounts are mainlaincd for each activity. They arc as follows;

Public and Other Transportation - accounts for revenue and expenses involved with'operating fixed
public transportation routes as well as other |non-fixed routes open to the public and expenses for
administration and direct trip reimbursement subcontracted by other agencies or programs.

Rural Transit Assistance Promam f"RTAP'

training in non-urbanized areas.

- accounts for revenue and expenses associated with

. 10-



ADVANCE Tl^NSIT, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30,2022 AND 2021«  I

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income Taxes

Advance Transit, Inc. is a nct'for'profit organization that is exempt from income taxes' under Section
SO 1(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and classified by (he Internal Revenue Service as other than a
private foundation. ^

I

The Organization has adopted the provisions of jpASB ASC 740, Accounting for Income faxes.
Accordingly, management has evaluated the Organization's tax positions and concluded that (he
Organization, had maintained its tax>cxcmpt status, has properly reported any significant unrelated
business income and had taken oo uncertain tax positions that require adjustment or disclosure in the
financial statements.

The Organization's Forms 990, Return of Organization Exempt frorri Income Tax, for'ih'e years ending
June 30, 2021,2020, and 2019 are'subject to exammation by (he IRS, generally for three years after they
were filed.

ProDcrtv and Equipment '

'The Organization records purchases of equipment-ot cost. Expenditures for property, plant and equipment
with a cost greater than S5,000 are capitalized. Depreciation and amortization are computed on the .stmight-
iiitc inclliud bastxl uu Ute fulluwuig uscfuJ lives.. Bxpeixlllures lur iiiaiulciiaucc, repairs and Impruvemeots,
wiuch do not materially extend the useful lives of the ̂ ets, are e)q)ensed.

Years

Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Transportation, office, shop; communication and radio equipment

•  15

10-50

5-12

The Organization's facility and certain transportation equipment are subject to liens held by the States of
New Hampshire and/or Vermont as agents for (he Federal Transit Administration.or other Federal agencies
to provide for compliance with grant requirements. New Hampshire and/or Vermont also hold the title to
any equipment while subject to a lien. Substantially all of the Organization's 'proper^ and equipment,
including related rmaocing of these" assets, are subject to these requirements. Therefore, the net assets
related to property and equipment acquired through grants is reported^as restricted.

%

Deferred revenue

The Organization records deferred revenue, which represents sponsorship, local grant match pledges, and
advertising Income covering periods beyond June j30, 2022 and unearned sponsorship and muoiclpal
assistance received in advance of the period to which Ac revenue relates.

Compensated Absences "

Employees of the Organization are entitled to paid jvacation and paid sick day^ depending on length of
service. Employees are allowed to accumulate unused vacation time up to a maximum of 125% of annual
hours earned and based on the number of years employed by the Organization.

-11 -



ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30,2022 AND 2021

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

\

Compensated Absences (continued)

Employees that pi^nt a C(jvn>19 vaccination card are also awarded 8 additional vacation hours for each
vaccination shot received. Twice annually employees may request a payout of up to 32 hours of vacation
time and'must be paid out In 8-bour increments. Employees are entitled to a payout of all unused vacationtime upon separation of employment from the Organi^lon.
Unused sick leave may accrue indefinitely without limit Employees may also request a pay out of sick
leave accrued in excess of 200 houis at a rate of 3 hours of sick leave for each one hour of pay. Employees
are not entitled to any payout of unused sick leave upon separation of employment from'the Organization.

Designation of Unrestricted Net Assets

/

It is the policy of the Board of Directors to review its plans for future projxjrty improvements and
acquisitions, as well as other operating needs. &om| time to time and to designate appropriate sums of
unrestricted net assets to assure adequate financing of such purposes.

note 3 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts rcccivoblo Include funds duo the OrganiTation under various grant ownrd agreements.
Accounts receivable as of June 30,2022 and 202! consisted of the following:

2022 2021

New Hampshire Department ofTransportation
Vermont Agency of Transportation

Contracts

Federal and state excise tax

Federal employment credits

Other

Total accounts receivable

$  400,032

' 384,128

18,430

191.718

267,645

7,323

23,963

2,611

923

$  802,599 $ 494.183

NOTE 4 ̂ RESTRICTED MUNICIPAL AND CdNTRACT PLEDGES RECEIVABLE

2022 2021

Donor restricted contributions:

Town of Hanover

Town of Hartford

Town of Norwich

City of Lebanon
Town of Enfield

TownofCauatm

Michaels Student Living LLC j
Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center.

Dartmouth College
Total

150,783
81,747
13,514

124,855
5,400

5,000

540,036
128,100

641,929

1,691,364

81,747

13.514

124,855

5,400

9,550

122,000

569.00b
■ $ 926.066

- 12-



,  ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTSJUNE 30,20j22 AND 2021

NOTE 4 - RESTRICTED MUNICIPAL AND CONTRACT PLEDGES RECEIVABLE (coutin ucd)

I

All conlributions will be received aod rcco^izcd io FY2023 except for Michaels Student Living LLC,
which will be received as follows: •

FY2023

FY2024

FY2025

FY2'026
FY2027

FY2028

Less unamorlized discount

Total

150,000

100,000
100,000

100,000
100,000

25,000

(34,964)

540,036.

The discount rale on the Michaers pledge is calculated at the 5-year Daily Treasury Par Yield Curve
Rate, 2.88»/fl at June 30,2022.

NOTE 5 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consists of the following as

Land

Land iinprovements

Buildliigs and itiipruvctucnls

Transport^ion equipment

Communication and radio equipment

Olfice and shop equipment

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization
Property and equipment, net

NOTE 6 - LINE OF CREDIT

of June 30,2022 and 2021:

2022 2021

263,358 S 263,358

47,804 47,804

4,376,456 4357,300

11,521,017 11,429,226

130,2-11 99.411

938,341 833,124

17,277,220 17,030,223

6,936.185 6,073,589

10.341,035 $  10,956.634

The Organization has available a bank line of credit for up to $200,000 at June 30,2022 and 2021. The
line of credit is due on demand and secured by the business assets of the Organization. Draws on the line
of credit bear interest based on the Wall Street Journal Prime rate (currently indexed to 3.25®/©) for the
year ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. There were rK> outstanding balance on this line of credit as of June
30,2022 and 2021.

NOTE 7 - PAYROLL PROTECTION PROGRAiM GRANT

On April 3, 2020 the Organization applied for and was granted a loan from a bank in (he aggregate
ajnount of $673,300 pursuant to tlw Paycheck Prot^ion Program (the "PPP*") under Division A, Title I
of the CARES Act, which was en^tcd March 27, 2020. The loan was forgiven in full by the lender and
has therefore been reported on the Statement of Activities for the year ended June 30, 2022 as grant
income.

-13-



ADVAJSCE TRANSIT, INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30,2022 AND 2021

NOTE 8 - NET ASSETS

Board Designated Net Assets

In June 2016. the Board approved the cstablishroent of a Board designated capital reserve fund^ In
November of 2018*the Boaid approved a change that modified the purpose to include funds committed
for the coming fiscal year as part of the budget proce.S5 and amounts that arc beyond that period but
reasonably certain to'be incurred.. This figure will be adjusted as capital match requirements change.
EfTcctivc with fiscal year 2021, the capital match reserve was set at $500,000.

Id January 2016 the Board approved the establishment of a Board designated operating r^erve fund. The
purpose of the operating reserve fund is to set aside approximately four months of operating expenses for '
the organization. As of June 30, 2022 the minimum operating reserve calculated and set aside by the.*
Board amounted to $2 million. The amount of the operating reserve target minimum will be reassessed
annually.

During FY2021 the Organization's Board of Directors established a strategic reserve fund. The Strategic
Reserve is intended to provide a ready source of funds for strategic initiatives rtccessary for the effective
o^ratioD of the organization and programs. The target amount of- the Strategic Reserve will be
determined by reference to the forecasted nee^ of the organization, with the minimum established in an
amount deemed sufficient to coyer needs identified in the current strategic plan. ;The initial target
Strmcgic Reserve is equal to $500,000. The amount of the Strategic Reserve ta^et minimum will be
reassessed at least annually. . | . '

Net Assets with Donor Restnctions

Net assets with donor restrictions consist of equipment and vehicles purchased with restricted
resources, thereby limiting the assets use to spcclHed purposes throughout the useful life of the
assets, town appropriotions approved in June 30,2022 but to be paid in 2023 and capital campaign
pledges.

Net assets with donor restrictions are comprised ofthe following:
2022 2021

Net property, plant and equipment funded with restricted resources
Orange^llow line local match contribution ■ '
Municipal and contract pledges j

Total net assets with donor restrictions

Net assets released from restrictions are as foilo^:

Purpose restrictions eccomplished:
Dbpreciation on restricted assets
Expiration of puqjose restrictions on capital campaign funds
Expirallon of purpose restrictions on orange^ellow line (CMAQ)
Expiration of purpose restrictions on capital purchases not depreciated
Cxpirolion of time restrictions on'bonU-ibutions receivable
Expiration of puqMse restrictions on bus disposals

Total net assets released from restriciions

. 14-

10,245,362 $  10,887,606
50,237 40,640

1,691.364 922.128

11,986,963 $  11.840,374

2022 2021

$ 1,138,681 $  1.092.241
- 100,000

42,209
31,511 6,151

926,066 986,691
9,500 4,500

$ 2,147.967 $ 2.189,583



ADVANCE TRANSIT. INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30,2022 AND 2021

NOTE 9 - RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization sponsors a salary reduction contribution plan pursuant to Section 403(b) of the Internal
Revenue Code, covering substantially all employees. Under the plan, employees wntribute a specified
percentage of their '^lary, or a fixed dollar amount, to the plan. The Organization may agree to make
"non-elective" contributions or a matching contribution to their employees'- 403(b) plans. The
Organization currently matches 50% on the first 5%|of employee deferrals. For the years ended June 30.\
2022 and 2021 employer contributions to the plan amounted to S36,192 and $23,829. respectively.

NOTE 10-ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE

The Organization receives substantial grant/contract fuiKls from the New Hampshire Department of
Transportation and Vermont Agency of Transportation and is dependent upon this funding to suppori
most of its activities and operations. Funding from the States of Vermont and New Hampshire is
renegotiated each year and is not guaranteed for future y^ beyond June 30, 2022 and 2023,
respectively. Loss of these funds could jeopardize the Organization's ability to continue its activities and
operations. j

NOTE 11 - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITV OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The following reflects the Organization's financial assets as of the balance sheet dote, reduced by amounts
not available for general use because of contractual |or dooor-imposcd restrictions within one year of Uie
balance sheet date.

Financi^ assets consist of: '
Cash and cash equivalents '
Accounts, municipal and pledges receivable

Total financial assets

Less those unavailable for general expenditures within one year, due to:
Donor restrictioris

Financial assets available to meet cash needs for general expenditure
within one year

2022 2021

3,965,378 $ ■3,451,227
2,493.963 .1,420,249
6,459341 ^ 4,871,476

50.237 40.640

6,409,104 S 4,830,836

As pari of the Organization's liquidity management, it invests cosh In excess of dally requirements in
short-term Investments through a sweep account arrangement with its primary bank.

NOTE 12 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through August 29, 2022, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued and has determined (hat no subsequent events have occurred that A
would require recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended j

Federal Grantor Agency and Program Title

U.S. DepartmentofTninsporiation

Mtyor Programs: '

Stnle of New Hflmpshire Department of

Transrwrtation:

Formula Crants Tor Rural Areas

Slate of Vermont Acencv of TransDortntion:

\

Formula Orsnts for Rural Areas

Formula Grants for Rural Areas

Formula Grants for RunU. Areas

Formula Grants for Rur^ Areas

Formula Grants for Rural Areas ^

Formula Grants for Rural Areas

Formula Gmts for Rural Areas

Formula Grants for Rural Areas

Subtotal CFDA 20.509

.Total Major Prugiams

Federal Tra/tsU Cluster

State of Vermont Agency ofTransodrtatlon:

Bus and Bus Facililies Formula Program

Bus oral Bus Facilities Formula Program

Bus aitd Bus Facilities Formula Program

Federal Transit Capital Investment Grants

Stftte of New Hampshire DepBftment of

TransDortation:

Bus and Bus Facilities Formula Program

Total Federal Transit Cluster

Total Eipeodilures of Federal Awards

unc:30/2022

CFDA

Number

20.309

20.509

20.509

20.509

20.509

20Jp9

20.509

20.509

20.509

io.su

20:5k
20.326

20.500

20.526

Pass-Through
Identifying
Number

NH-2021-17

Fi^gmm or
Award Awords

Amounl Expended

$3,570,000 $2,979,610

ARPA22-90I 560.000 560,000

ARPA22-40I 287,500 225,198

ARPA22-50I 162.500 149,078

ARPA22-S01 48,673 48,573

CRRSAA22-S01 192,927 192,927

rnOI904-06l 4,454 1,601

m0220I-06I 70,400 10,328

PT20210I-06I 135.840 19.557

• 1.207.262

*

4.186.872

rT202207-061 80.000 76,421

m02205-08I 80,000 76,421

Fn02205-071 832,500 90,126

FT04002I-06I 10,818 •  10,8)8

WH-202I-0iO 177.056 177,056

430.842

$4.617.714
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■ ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2022

NOTE 1 - REPORTING ENTITY < |
^  I ' ' *

Advance Transit, Inc. (the "Organization") is a voluntary, not-for-profit organiation incorporated under
the laws of the State of New Hampshire (RSA j292) and is engag^ to provide a .comprehensive
transportation network for the several towns in the Upper Connecticut River Valley Region of New
Hampshire and Vermont The Organization was founded in January 1984 and is headquartered in Wilder,
Vermont. • [

I

NOTE 2 - SCOPE OF THE AUDIT PURSUANT TO THE UNrFOUM GUIDANCE
>  j *

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the "Schedule") pi^sents the activity of all Federal
award programs of Advance Transit Inc. All Federal awards are received directly from Federal agencies
as well as Federal awards passed through other government agencies or other entities arc included in the'
schedule.

NOTE 3 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of F^eral Awards has been prepared in the format as set
forth in Title 2 U.S. Code ofFederal Regulations P^art 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards {Uniform Guidance). Therefore, some amounts
presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the
financial statements.

The Schedule is presented using the accrual basis of accounting, li includes all Federal awards to the
Organization which had expenditure activity duringjthe year ended June 30,2022. Several programs are
jointly funded by the State of Vermont and State of New Hampshire appropriations'in addition to Federal
Awards. The Schedule reflects only .that part ofj the grant activity funded by Federal Awards. The
Organization has elected not to use the 10 percent de minlmis Indirect cost rate allowed under the
Uniform Guidance. j

NOTE 4 - CATALOG OF FEDERAL DOMESTIC ASSISTANCE (CFDA) NUMBERS

The program titles and CFDA numbers were obtained from the 2021 Catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance. I
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Independent Auditors* Report on Intenia Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on nnj Audit of Financial Statements Performed in

KzcQT^diticfwiih Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors

Advance Transit, Inc.

Wilder, Verrnont

We have audited, in accordance with auditing st^dards generally accepted in the United States of
America and .the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standard,
issued by the Comptroiler General of.the United States, the financial statements of Advance Transit, Inc.
(the "O^anization"), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2022, and the
related statements of activities and change in net assets, functional expenses and cash flows for the year
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
August 29, 2022. [

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the Cnanciol statement^ wc considered the Organizabon's
internal control over financial reporting ("internal control") to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstance for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the fmancial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opifilan on the effectiveness of the Organization's Internal control,

we do nut exprwj im opinion on the cffcctlvcnoM of the Organization's iutoi'iiul cunlroi.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the deign or operation of a control doe not allow
management or employee, in the normal course of perfonning Ibeir estgned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. X materidl weakness is a deftciency, or o combination
of deficiencie, in internal control such that there is |a reasonable possibility that a material misstatcment
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented or d^ected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencie, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important, enough to merit attention by those charged with
govem^ce.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and we not designed to identify all deficiencies in intcmal control that
might be material wcakneees or significant deficiencies. Given these limilatioos, during our audit wc did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not tieen identified.
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independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Finnncia! Statements Performed in

accordance with Government U uditing Standards (Continued)

Compliance and Other Matters '
I

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about wh|ether the Organization's financial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompllance with which could have' a direct and material
effect on the dcterrhination of financial statement amounts. However,' providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of ouri audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no in^nces of Doncompli^ce or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe (he scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's
internal control or on compliance. This rq)ort is an intogral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards -in coasidering the Organization's internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Veroff & Austin, PLLC
Springfield, Vermont
August 29,2022
VTKcjgistraUon #092.013574
NH Rcgislnilion #077740
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Independent Auditors* Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and on
Internal ControrOvcr Compliance and Report on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal

Awards Rcquir^ by Uniform Guidance
To the Boanl of Directors ,
Advance Transit, Inc. .
Wilder, Vermont

Report 00 Compliance for Each Major F^eral Program

I

We have audited Advance Trarisit, Inc.'s compliance with the types of compliance requirements
-described in the OMB Compliance. Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the
Organization's, major federal progi^s for the year ended Jiine 30, 2022. The Organization's major
fedeml programs are Identified In the summary of auditors' results section of the accompaoymg schedule
of findings and questioned costs.

Man agement's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliarice with ̂  federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
condilioiis ofilii fcUerul awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

\  ̂

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Advance Transit, Inc.'s major
federal programs based on our audit of the types jof compliance requirements refenred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance wiUi auditing standards generally accepted in the United
Slates of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of (Title 2

■ U.S. Code ofFederal RegulationsiPart 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirementsfor Federal Awards {Uniform Citiddnce). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred |to above that could have a direct and material e^ect
on a major federal program occurr^. An audit Includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the
Organization's ̂ compliance with'those requirements, and performing such other procedures as wc
considered necessary in the circumstances. |

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable tiasis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program'. However, our audit docs not provide a legal determination of the Organization's
compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion. Advance Transit, Inc. compiled,, in all material respects, with the types of compli^ce
requirements refcned to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30,2022. .

I
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Independent Auditors' Report on Coropliance for Each Major Federal Program and on
Internal Control Over Compliance and Report on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal

Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance (Cotitinucd)
✓  j

Repoht on Internal Control over ComplUnce ^
I  I

Management of the Organization is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above, (n planning and performing
our audit of compliance, we considered the Organization's internal control over compliance with the
types of requirements that could have a direct andj material eflect on each major federal program to
determioe the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on compliance for each major, federal program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the eflecUveness of internal control over compliance'. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Organization's internal control over compliance:

A deficiency in infernal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal-course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over rompliance is a
deficicocy, or conibiruiUon of deliciettcics, iu Intcnial cuiilrul uver compliance, such thai there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
prugriuii will tiul be prcvcideil, or delected and corrected, on a-tlmely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a| combination of dcftciencie.%, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program (hat is less severe than a material
wcokncas in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit anention by Ihuse cliarged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over coraplianM was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and we^ not designed to Identify all deficiencies in iotemal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material
Nveaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist (hat were not identified. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over'compliance that we consider to be' material weaknesses.

The purpose of this report on internal control oycfi compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the jresults of that testing based on the requirements of
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Veroff & Austin, PLLC
Springfield, Vermont
August 29,2022
VT Registration #092.013574-
NH Registration #07774 D
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ADVANCE TRANSIT, INC.
I  '

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30,2022

Sectioo I - Summary of Auditors' Report

FInandai Staiements

Type of auditors' report issued;

Internal control over financial reporting:

•  Material Wealcness(es) identified?

•  Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses.

Non-compliance material to the finaocioJ statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

•  Material wcakncss(c5) identified?

•  Significant denciency(ies) Identified (Hat ore
not considered to be material v<eaicness(es)?

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with section
200.5)6 o(the Uniform Guidance? \

Idenl^lcation of Major Programs

I  Name of program or dustier
U.S. Department of Transportation - Formula Grants for Rural Areas

•  i
Dollar threshold used to distinguish betweeo Type A and Type B programs;

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under Section 200320 of the Uniform Guidance:
\  ' I

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

No current year findings.

Section III - Federal Aword Findings and Questioned Costs

No current or prior year findings ,

UnquaUned

No

No

No

No

No

Unqualified

No

CFDA Duipber

20.509

$  . 750,000

Yes
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Advance Transit Offcers and Directors

'

President, Vice President | Treasurer

Matt Osborn ,

(Term ends 6/22)

Nathan Miller |
(Term ends 6/24) '

Robert Starkey
(Term ends 6/24) '

Member At>Large Member At-Large | Member At Large
,  1

Secretary
1

Rebecca Owens,

(Term ends 6/24)

Mark Beliveau

(Term ends 6/22)

Bethany.Fleishman
(Term ends 6/22)

Lebanon Member Hanover Member | Hartford Member

1  •
David Stewart

(Term end 6/23)

Demo Sofronas |
(Term ends 6/22) ' i

Patrick O'Neill

(Term ends 6/23)

Member At-Large Norwich Member | Member At4arge

- .  1
James L Taylor
(Term ends 6/23)

Robert Houseman |
' (Term ends 6/23) [

Kathle Nolet

(Term ends 6/23)

EnOeld Member Hanover Member | Member At-large

i
Joe Major

(Term ends-6/24)

Devin Wllkle

(Term ends -6/24)
■

Hartford Representative Leb'arran Representative

1 .
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Adams

Carroll

linkedin.com/jn/adafnscarroll

Experience

Education

Contact

120 Billings Farm Rd'

White River Junction. VT 03766

acarroll@advancetransit.com

+1(802)295-1824

Advance Transit / Executive Director

JUNE 2022 • PRESENT; WILDER. VT

numo lie / Director of Operations - indi
DECEMBER 2018 • MAY 2022; PITTSBURGH. PA

Pittsburgh Bikeshare Inc. / Director of Operations and Planning
SEPTEMBER aOl'o-DECEMBER 2018; PITTSBURGH. PA

Metropolitan povernment of Nashville and Davidson County /
Active Mobility Planner
JANUARY 2015-SEPTEMBER2016; NASHVILLE.TN '

Walk Bike Nashville / Program Manager
JANUARY2012-AUGUSI 2014; NASHVILLt, IN

Hands On Nashville / Program Coordinator
NOVEMBER 2011-FEBRUARY 2013; NASHVILLE.TN

St. Petersburg State University & Bard College / International

•Program Manager

DECEMBER 2009 • JUNE 2011: ST. PnERSBURG. RUSSIA

University^f Pittsburgh - Katz School Of Business / M.8A.
2019-2022. BUsInESS ADMINISTRATION

Vanderbllt University - Peabody College / M.£d.
2013-2015. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND ACTION

Reed College ̂B.A.
2005-2009. RUSSIAN LITERATURE AND LANGUAGE


